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Office of the Mayor 
1819 Farnam Street, Suite 300 

Omaha, Nebraska  68183-0300 
(402) 444-5000 
(402) 444-6059 

City of Omaha 
Jim Suttle, Mayor 

Dear Citizens and Public Officials: 
 
 
I am pleased to submit the City of Omaha’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the fiscal year 
ending December 31, 2010. 
 
This report is an essential part of our effort to provide accurate financial reporting that ensures fiscal and 
operational accountability in our use of public resources.   It provides a complete picture of the City’s 
financial status and allows us to meet our continuing disclosure responsibilities in accordance with 
governmental reporting standards. 
 
Our ability to manage the City’s fiscal affairs and provide a full disclosure of the City’s fiscal condition 
is exhibited by the opinion that follows.  I am proud to convey that the 2009 report submitted to the 
Government Finance Officers Association was recognized with the prestigious Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.  This recognition is a credit to the City and a 
compliment to the dedication of our Finance Department. 
 
I would like to thank the Finance Department employees for their commitment in dealing with these 
complex accounting issues and to all city departments for their cooperation in the preparation of this 
document. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

Jim Suttle 
Mayor 
City of Omaha 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Honorable Mayor and Members 
 of the City Council 
City of Omaha, Nebraska: 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Omaha, Nebraska (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express 
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of 
Metropolitan Entertainment and Convention Authority (MECA), which represent 100% of the total assets 
and revenues of the discretely presented component unit. Those financial statements were audited by other 
auditors whose report thereon has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts 
included for MECA, is based solely on the report of the other auditor. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. The financial statements of MECA were not audited in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis 
for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles 
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditor, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Omaha, Nebraska as of December 31, 2010, and the respective 
changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 30, 2011 on 
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over 

“ 

 
 

KPMG LLP 
Suite 1501 
222 South 15th Street 
Omaha, NE 68102-1610 
 
Suite 1600 
233 South 13th Street 
Lincoln, NE 68508-2041 

KPMG LLP is a Delaware limited liability partnership, 
the U.S. member firm of KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Net Assets

December 31, 2010

Component
Primary government unit

Governmental Business-type
Assets activities activities Total MECA

Cash and pooled investments $ 36,226,663   47,144,812   83,371,475   10,044,468  
Investments 16,975,473   5,452,752   22,428,225   21,197,136  
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 181,304,717   3,018,712   184,323,429   298,901  
Due from other governments 45,480,712   3,673,072   49,153,784   —  
Internal balances 2,127,553   (2,127,553)  —   —  
Accrued interest 207,451   133,580   341,031   —  
Inventories 682,867   799,342   1,482,209   —  
Other assets 8,191,469   2,351,441   10,542,910   1,617,820  
Deferred charges —   2,719,798   2,719,798   —  
Restricted assets:

Cash —   5,066,757   5,066,757   —  
Investments —   5,087,807   5,087,807   —  
Deposits with trustee 15,850,046   52,241,027   68,091,073   —  

Note receivable 4,157,730   —   4,157,730   —  
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 246,204,367   112,354,920   358,559,287   —  
Depreciable 845,658,697   412,775,973   1,258,434,670   15,351,755  

Total assets $ 1,403,067,745   650,692,440   2,053,760,185   48,510,080  

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other $ 25,059,175   7,429,067   32,488,242   11,315,440  
Accrued interest payable 7,152,769   3,835,209   10,987,978   —  
Due to other governments 777,946   —   777,946   —  
Unearned revenue 1,885,843   —   1,885,843   —  
Long-term liabilities:

Net pension obligation due in more than one year 146,766,334   5,746,651   152,512,985   —  
Postretirement benefit obligation due in more than one year 81,657,307   4,512,487   86,169,794   —  
Other liabilities —   —   —   1,886,926  
Compensated absences:

Due within one year 2,882,107   99,375   2,981,482   —  
Due in more than one year 54,760,029   1,888,102   56,648,131   —  

Grants payable:
Due within one year 2,287,000   —   2,287,000   —  
Due in more than one year 18,063,750   —   18,063,750   —  

Claims and judgments:
Due within one year 5,349,000   5,349,000   —  

Workers’ compensation and healthcare claims:
Due within one year 10,752,005   624,756   11,376,761   —  
Due in more than one year 19,390,002   1,126,675   20,516,677   —  

Bonds, notes, and leases payable:
Due within one year 40,497,258   9,238,692   49,735,950   1,002,226  
Due in more than one year 739,429,831   351,400,711   1,090,830,542   4,810,305  

Total liabilities 1,156,710,356   385,901,725   1,542,612,081   19,014,897  

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 327,786,022   195,594,307   523,380,329   9,539,224  
Restricted for:

Debt service —   31,292,774   31,292,774   —  
Other – Keno 3,146,295   —   3,146,295   —  
Perpetual care:

Expendable 428,925   —   428,925   —  
Nonexpendable 2,775,389   —   2,775,389   —  

Unrestricted (87,779,242)  37,903,634   (49,875,608)  19,955,959  

Total net assets 246,357,389   264,790,715   511,148,104   29,495,183  
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,403,067,745   650,692,440   2,053,760,185   48,510,080  

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Activities

Year ended December 31, 2010

Program revenues Net revenue (expense) and changes in net assets
Component

Operating Capital Primary government unit
Charges for grants and grants and Governmental Business-type

Expenses services contributions contributions activities activities Total MECA

Functions/programs:
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government $ 116,720,038    11,432,415    8,730,023    —     (96,557,600)   —     (96,557,600)   —    
Public safety 193,001,551    18,373,482    5,537,577    —     (169,090,492)   —     (169,090,492)   —    
Transportation services 60,380,233    22,167,354    28,071,800    5,885,330    (4,255,749)   —     (4,255,749)   —    
Other public services 21,001,115    2,582,651    3,014,071    —     (15,404,393)   —     (15,404,393)   —    
Community development 31,987,295    5,748,813    20,210,844    —     (6,027,638)   —     (6,027,638)   —    
Culture and parks 64,931,722    8,772,389    60,316    25,785,887    (30,313,130)   —     (30,313,130)   —    
Interest on long-term debt 38,360,978    —     —     —     (38,360,978)   —     (38,360,978)   —    

Total governmental activities 526,382,932    69,077,104    65,624,631    31,671,217    (360,009,980)   —     (360,009,980)   —    

Business-type activities:
Convention Center Hotel 8,905,205    7,824,146    —     —     —     (1,081,059)   (1,081,059)   —    
Parking 4,376,749    4,170,400    —     —     —     (206,349)   (206,349)   —    
Sewer 51,529,157    49,944,627    —     —     —     (1,584,530)   (1,584,530)   —    
Citywide Sports 149,529    193,202    —     —     —     43,673    43,673    —    
Marinas 414,719    446,039    —     —     —     31,320    31,320    —    
Tennis operations 362,148    263,691    —     —     —     (98,457)   (98,457)   —    
Golf operations and Concessions 3,270,547    3,421,704    —     —     —     151,157    151,157    —    
Air quality 809,331    802,199    —     —     —     (7,132)   (7,132)   —    
Compost 942,074    835,696    —     —     —     (106,378)   (106,378)   —    
Printing and graphics 404,622    474,093    —     —     —     69,471    69,471    —    
River Front Plaza and Marina 15,250    48,532    —     —     —     33,282    33,282    —    

Total business-type activities 71,179,331    68,424,329    —     —     —     (2,755,002)   (2,755,002)   —    
Total primary government $ 597,562,263    137,501,433    65,624,631    31,671,217    (360,009,980)   (2,755,002)   (362,764,982)   —    

Component unit:
MECA $ 26,355,147    28,717,594    —     —     —     —     —     2,362,447   

General revenues:
Property taxes 138,320,939    —     138,320,939    —    
Motor vehicle taxes 9,309,995    —     9,309,995    —    
Sales and use taxes 126,910,238    —     126,910,238    —    
Business taxes 38,228,765    —     38,228,765    —    
Payments in lieu of taxes 4,538,014    —     4,538,014    —    
Unrestricted investment earnings 1,440,989    267,736    1,708,725    —    
Loss on sale of capital assets (252,225)   —     (252,225)   —    

Transfers (4,723,408)   4,723,408    —     —    

Total general revenues and transfers 313,773,307    4,991,144    318,764,451    —    

Change in net assets (46,236,673)   2,236,142    (44,000,531)   2,362,447   

Net assets – beginning of year 292,594,062    262,554,573    555,148,635    27,132,736   
Net assets – end of year $ 246,357,389    264,790,715    511,148,104    29,495,183   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



25

CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Balance Sheet – Governmental Funds

December 31, 2010

Debt Other Total
Service Downtown governmental governmental

Assets General Fund Stadium funds funds

Cash and pooled investments $ —     1,325,828    —     34,900,835    36,226,663   
Investments 10,371,980    —     —     6,603,493    16,975,473   
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 91,684,909    54,370,995    21,500,000    13,748,813    181,304,717   
Due from other governments 23,071,384    382,095    —     22,027,233    45,480,712   
Due from other funds 128,007    15,055,210    —     1,896,269    17,079,486   
Accrued interest 114,334    —     —     93,117    207,451   
Inventories 682,867    —     —     —     682,867   
Other assets 5,303    —     —     498,902    504,205   
Restricted assets:

Deposits with trustee 20,748    —     12,281,985    3,547,313    15,850,046   
Total assets $ 126,079,532    71,134,128    33,781,985    83,315,975    314,311,620   

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other $ 15,786,717    100,852    208,247    7,884,316    23,980,132   
Due to other governments 709,284    —     —     68,662    777,946   
Due to other funds 1,021,681    —     2,860    15,006,435    16,030,976   
Unearned revenue 5,948    4,392    —     1,875,503    1,885,843   
Deferred revenue 78,978,391    54,335,407    21,500,000    23,631,352    178,445,150   

Total liabilities 96,502,021    54,440,651    21,711,107    48,466,268    221,120,047   

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 2,954,432    —     348,525    16,207,111    19,510,068   
Inventories 682,867    —     —     —     682,867   
Reserve for endowment —     —     —     2,775,389    2,775,389   
Debt service —     16,693,477    —     4,634,559    21,328,036   

Unreserved, designated for, reported in:
Special revenue funds —     —     —     6,552,487    6,552,487   

Unreserved, undesignated reported in:
General fund 25,940,212    —     —     —     25,940,212   
Special revenue funds —     —     —     (1,279,186)   (1,279,186)  
Capital projects funds —     —     11,722,353    5,530,422    17,252,775   
Permanent funds —     —     —     428,925    428,925   

Total fund balances 29,577,511    16,693,477    12,070,878    34,849,707    93,191,573   
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 126,079,532    71,134,128    33,781,985    83,315,975   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are
not financial resources and, therefore, are not
reported in the funds 1,091,863,064   

Long-term note receivable is not due and payable in the
current period and, therefore, is not reported in
the funds 4,157,730   

Revenues earned during the current period are not
available as resources and, therefore, are recognized
as deferred revenue in the funds 178,445,150   

Bond costs of issuance are capitalized at the
governmentwide level and amortized over the life of the
related bonds 7,687,264   

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and interest payable,
are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds (1,128,987,392)  

Net assets of governmental activities $ 246,357,389   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances –
Governmental Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Debt Other Total
Service Downtown governmental governmental

General Fund Stadium funds funds

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ 70,912,514    52,067,868    —     7,644,898    130,625,280   
Motor vehicle 9,309,995    —     —     —     9,309,995   
City sales and use 126,910,238    —     —     —     126,910,238   
Business 37,607,464    —     —     621,301    38,228,765   
In lieu 4,474,712    56,028    —     7,274    4,538,014   

Special assessments —     —     —     346,326    346,326   
Licenses and permits 7,935,989    —     —     —     7,935,989   
Intergovernmental 3,421,652    2,737,173    —     32,784,649    38,943,474   
Investment income 504,035    437,998    21,989    327,913    1,291,935   
Revenue from Keno 535,996    —     —     6,423,049    6,959,045   
Charges for services 22,003,940    2,663,559    —     25,252,596    49,920,095   
Rents and royalties 1,076,158    —     —     999,504    2,075,662   
Contributions and grants 469,175    391,028    3,000,000    41,104,394    44,964,597   

Total revenues 285,161,868    58,353,654    3,021,989    115,511,904    462,049,415   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 35,941,173    700,804    —     8,838,181    45,480,158   
Public safety 186,114,812    —     —     6,567,080    192,681,892   
Transportation services 485,735    —     —     46,610,132    47,095,867   
Other public services 16,128,578    —     —     3,884,152    20,012,730   
Community development 6,622,732    —     —     21,367,304    27,990,036   
Culture and parks 26,961,289    —     —     4,955,375    31,916,664   

Debt service:
Principal 2,525,145    29,344,194    —     4,064,911    35,934,250   
Interest 7,281,912    25,072,592    11,973    5,994,501    38,360,978   
Bond issuance costs —     429,311    311,237    —     740,548   

Capital outlay 665,510    —     54,879,877    23,733,392    79,278,779   

Total expenditures 282,726,886    55,546,901    55,203,087    126,015,028    519,491,902   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures 2,434,982    2,806,753    (52,181,098)   (10,503,124)   (57,442,487)  

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 413,373    —     —     6,029,402    6,442,775   
Transfers out (1,360,815)   —     (20,748)   (9,787,723)   (11,169,286)  
Sale of capital assets —     —     —     647,484    647,484   
Proceeds from issuance of bonds —     35,950,000    33,035,000    8,500,000    77,485,000   
Proceeds from bond premium —     2,435,125    —     —     2,435,125   
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent —     (37,988,113)   —     —     (37,988,113)  
Discount on sale of bonds —     —     (346,191)   —     (346,191)  

Total other financing sources (947,442)   397,012    32,668,061    5,389,163    37,506,794   

Net change in fund balances 1,487,540    3,203,765    (19,513,037)   (5,113,961)   (19,935,693)  

Fund balances – beginning of year 28,089,971    13,489,712    31,583,915    39,963,668    113,127,266   
Fund balances – end of year $ 29,577,511    16,693,477    12,070,878    34,849,707    93,191,573   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Reconciliation of the Change in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities – Governmental Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Net change in fund balances – total governmental funds $ (19,935,693)  
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the current period. 48,241,839   

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 23,871,938   

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases, etc.) and long-term liabilities
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, whereas the
repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect
on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs,
premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these
amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount
is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and
related items. (8,912,212)  

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
the governmental funds. (89,502,545)  

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ (46,236,673)  

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Fund Net Assets –
Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2010

Sewer Other Total
Convention Parking revenue enterprise proprietary

Assets Center Hotel facilities fund funds funds

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ —     249,104    45,654,884    1,240,824    47,144,812   
Investments —     —     5,452,752    —     5,452,752   
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 52,046    267,444    2,519,105    180,117    3,018,712   
Due from other governments —     —     3,648,159    24,913    3,673,072   
Accrued interest receivable 102,738    —     30,842    —     133,580   
Inventories —     —     789,483    9,859    799,342   
Other assets 1,916,806    431,761    2,874    2,351,441   
Restricted assets:

Deposits with trustee 21,138,210    —     —     —     21,138,210   

Total current assets 23,209,800    516,548    58,526,986    1,458,587    83,711,921   

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents —     —     5,066,757    —     5,066,757   
Investments —     —     5,087,807    —     5,087,807   
Deposits with trustee 31,102,817    —     —     —     31,102,817   

Deferred charges 1,214,070    343,603    1,162,125    —     2,719,798   

Capital assets:
Land —     2,473,344    2,705,920    —     5,179,264   
Buildings and systems 72,123,541    61,344,255    597,246,008    9,933,926    740,647,730   
Furniture and fixtures 5,616,471    —     —     —     5,616,471   
Machinery and equipment 3,415,444    —     9,027,526    2,795,963    15,238,933   
Cultural assets 498,366    —     —     —     498,366   
Construction in progress 2,785,915    —     103,891,375    —     106,677,290   

84,439,737    63,817,599    712,870,829    12,729,889    873,858,054   

Less accumulated depreciation 20,229,968    28,329,934    293,444,762    6,722,497    348,727,161   

Capital assets, net 64,209,769    35,487,665    419,426,067    6,007,392    525,130,893   

Total noncurrent assets 96,526,656    35,831,268    430,742,756    6,007,392    569,108,072   
Total assets $ 119,736,456    36,347,816    489,269,742    7,465,979    652,819,993   

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 1,384,203    160,198    5,740,188    106,978    7,391,567   
Accrued interest payable 2,184,323    571,640    1,075,404    3,842    3,835,209   
Current installments of long-term debt 470,000    2,560,000    6,183,692    25,000    9,238,692   
Workers’ compensation and healthcare claims —     3,137    455,420    166,199    624,756   
Due to other funds 100,000    135    1,131,613    933,305    2,165,053   
Compensated absences —     —     79,436    19,939    99,375   

Total current liabilities 4,138,526    3,295,110    14,665,753    1,255,263    23,354,652   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt, excluding current installments 144,580,281    38,647,534    167,800,884    372,012    351,400,711   
Pension obligation —     14,336    4,541,636    1,190,679    5,746,651   
Postretirement benefit obligation —     11,257    3,566,267    934,963    4,512,487   
Workers’ compensation and healthcare claims —     5,658    821,298    299,719    1,126,675   
Compensated absences —     —     1,509,283    378,819    1,888,102   

Total noncurrent liabilities 144,580,281    38,678,785    178,239,368    3,176,192    364,674,626   

Total liabilities 148,718,807    41,973,895    192,905,121    4,431,455    388,029,278   

Net assets:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt (49,737,695)   (5,719,869)   245,441,491    5,610,380    195,594,307   
Restricted for debt service 21,138,210    —     10,154,564    —     31,292,774   
Unrestricted (382,866)   93,790    40,768,566    (2,575,856)   37,903,634   

Total net assets (28,982,351)   (5,626,079)   296,364,621    3,034,524    264,790,715   
Total liabilities and net assets $ 119,736,456    36,347,816    489,269,742    7,465,979    652,819,993   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets –
Proprietary Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Convention Sewer Other Total
Center Parking revenue enterprise proprietary
Hotel facilities fund funds funds

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 7,824,146    4,170,400    49,944,627    6,485,156    68,424,329   

Total operating revenues 7,824,146    4,170,400    49,944,627    6,485,156    68,424,329   

Operating expenses:
Personal services 100,000    (693)   14,793,840    3,251,966    18,145,113   
Outside services 144,384    1,903,808    8,977,602    883,217    11,909,011   
Operation and maintenance 1,324,659    33,985    8,858,511    1,544,905    11,762,060   
Cost of sales and services —     —     —     231,087    231,087   
Depreciation and amortization 2,121,137    2,406,396    15,676,720    457,045    20,661,298   

Total operating expenses 3,690,180    4,343,496    48,306,673    6,368,220    62,708,569   

Operating income (loss) 4,133,966    (173,096)   1,637,954    116,936    5,715,760   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment earnings 450,143    —     (161,584)   (20,823)   267,736   
Interest expense (5,215,025)   (33,253)   (3,222,484)   —     (8,470,762)  

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses), net (4,764,882)   (33,253)   (3,384,068)   (20,823)   (8,203,026)  

Loss before contributions and transfers (630,916)   (206,349)   (1,746,114)   96,113    (2,487,266)  

Transfers in —     428,788    9,395,098    —     9,823,886   
Transfers out —     —     (5,097,375)   (3,103)   (5,100,478)  

Change in net assets (630,916)   222,439    2,551,609    93,010    2,236,142   

Net assets at beginning of year (28,351,435)   (5,848,518)   293,813,012    2,941,514    262,554,573   
Net assets at end of year $ (28,982,351)   (5,626,079)   296,364,621    3,034,524    264,790,715   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Cash Flows – Proprietary Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Convention Sewer Other Total
Center Parking revenue enterprise proprietary
Hotel facilities fund funds funds

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 7,772,100    4,181,547    52,062,651    6,426,478    70,442,776   
Payments to suppliers (1,439,136)   (1,991,807)   (17,964,713)   (2,696,324)   (24,091,980)  
Payments to employees (100,000)   (57,211)   (11,594,432)   (3,282,223)   (15,033,866)  

Net cash provided by operating
   activities 6,232,964    2,132,529    22,503,506    447,931    31,316,930   

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in/out —     428,788    4,297,723    (3,103)   4,723,408   
Advances from (to) other funds (4,960)   105,095    (2,537,685)   903,477    (1,534,073)  

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
   financing activities (4,960)   533,883    1,760,038    900,374    3,189,335   

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital expenditures (3,132,133)   —     (40,692,816)   (226,983)   (44,051,932)  
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 59,590    92,648    (746,078)   (3,031)   (596,871)  
Payments on long-term debt (315,000)   (2,470,000)   (34,528,407)   (25,000)   (37,338,407)  
Issuance of long-term debt 37,000,000    —     74,529,562    —     111,529,562   
Premium received (discount paid) on issuance

of long-term debt (250,660)   —     102,857    —     (147,803)  
Interest paid (5,208,548)   (58,814)   (2,981,666)   (16,981)   (8,266,009)  

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
   related financing activities 28,153,249    (2,436,166)   (4,316,548)   (271,995)   21,128,540   

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale of investment securities (34,728,658)   —     (3,926,316)   —     (38,654,974)  
Interest received 347,405    —     (192,426)   —     154,979   

Net cash used in investing activities (34,381,253)   —     (4,118,742)   —     (38,499,995)  

Net increase in cash and cash
   equivalents —     230,246    15,828,254    1,076,310    17,134,810   

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year —     18,858    29,826,630    164,514    30,010,002   
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ —     249,104    45,654,884    1,240,824    47,144,812   

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 4,133,966    (173,096)   1,637,954    116,936    5,715,760   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 2,121,137    2,406,396    15,676,720    457,045    20,661,298   
Cash flows impacted by changes in:

Accounts receivable (52,046)   11,147    2,118,024    (55,189)   2,021,936   
Prepaid assets (1,189,895)   —     —     3,096    (1,186,799)  
Inventories —     —     (330,560)   (3,489)   (334,049)  
Accounts payable and other 1,219,802    (54,014)   201,960    (40,211)   1,327,537   
Claims payable —     (6,985)   204,147    (42,021)   155,141   
Compensated absences —     —     87,695    —     87,695   
Pension obligation —     (29,117)   1,588,233    (9,846)   1,549,270   
Postretirement benefit obligation —     (21,802)   1,319,333    21,610    1,319,141   

Net cash provided by operating
   activities $ 6,232,964    2,132,529    22,503,506    447,931    31,316,930   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets –
Fiduciary Funds

December 31, 2010

Pension Trust
Funds Agency

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,546,450    4,397,460   
Receivables:

Accounts receivable 92,361    65,872   
Accrued interest 1,945,366    2,817   

Due from other funds 1,116,543    —    
Investments, at fair value:

Government securities 53,226,263    1,158,509   
Municipal issues 3,921,934    —    
Corporate bonds 99,665,561    —    
Domestic equities 248,845,850    —    
International equities 98,175,613    —    
Domestic real estate securities 106,381,144    —    
Commodities 37,090,123    —    
Private equity 3,866,754    —    
Cash and cash equivalents 30,242,230    —    

Total assets 686,116,192    5,624,658   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1,129,305    5,624,658   

Total liabilities 1,129,305    5,624,658   

Net assets held in trust for
pension benefits $ 684,986,887    —    

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets –
Pension Trust Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer $ 29,901,224   
Employee 21,129,870   

Total contributions 51,031,094   

Investment earnings:
Dividends and interest 9,813,568   
Net increase in the fair value of investments 93,495,717   

Total investment earnings 103,309,285   

Less investment expenses (4,009,082)  

Net investment earnings 99,300,203   

Total additions 150,331,297   

Deductions:
Benefit payments 83,954,080   

Change in net assets 66,377,217   

Net assets, beginning of year 618,609,670   
Net assets, end of year $ 684,986,887   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.



 

(1) Summ

(a) R

T
u
c
m
a
p

T
u
a
t
a
(
o

T
p
s
g
F
S
O
f
o
C
O

T
g
g
a

M

M
C
a
a
f
s

mary of Signif

Reporting En

The City of O
under a Home
chief executi
members. The
and members
political subd

The governm
units. Compo
accountable o
that exclusion
accountability
(i) either the 
organization t

The basic fin
presented com
substance, par
government. T
Facilities Cor
Stadium Facil
Omaha Facili
financially ac
of the assets,
Commission 
Omaha, Nebra

The discretely
governmentw
government. 
activities of th

MECA 

MECA is a 
Convention C
assets are ves
and general o
financial state
separate finan

N

ficant Accou

ntity 

Omaha, Nebr
e Rule Charte
ve, the May
e seven coun
s of the coun
ivision of the

ental reportin
onent units 
or other organ
n would cause
y is defined a
City’s ability

to provide fin

nancial statem
mponent unit.
rt of the City
The City’s ba
rporation, the
lities Corpora
ities Corpora
countable for
 liabilities, n
(the Commis
aska 68183. 

y presented c
wide financial

The City’s b
he Metropolit

separate non
Center/Arena a
sted with the 
obligation bon
ements for M

ncial statemen

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

nting Policie

raska (the City
er and has a 

yor, and an 
ncil members 
ncil are elect
e State of Neb

ng entity cons
are legally 

nizations who
e the City’s fi

as the appoint
y to impose 
nancial benefit

ments includ
. The blended
’s operations
asic financial
e City of Om
ation, City of 
ation, and Ci
r these organi
net assets, and
sion). Separa

omponent un
l statements 
basic financi
tan Entertainm

nprofit corpor
and Downtow
City. Constru

nds of the Cit
MECA includ
nts are availab

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

33

es 

y) was incorp
mayor counc
elected legis
each represe

ted through p
braska and is e

sists of the C
separate org

ose nature an
financial state
tment of a vo
its will on th
t to or impose

e both blend
d component 
, and data fro
l statements b
maha Impou

f Omaha Nort
ity of Omah
izations. The 
d operating a

ate financial s

nit, on the oth
to emphasiz

ial statements
ment and Con

ration that is
wn Stadium. T
uction activiti
ty. Board mem
ded herein ar
ble at 1819 Fa

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

porated on F
cil form of go
slative body, 
ent one of the
popular vote 
exempt from 

ity (the prima
ganizations f
d significant 

ements to be m
ting majority
he organizati
e a financial b

ded compone
units, althou

om these unit
blend the acti
und Facilities
hwest Library

ha Conventio
City reports 

activity of th
statements ar

her hand, is re
e that it is 
s discretely

nvention Auth

s responsible
Title to the fa
ies were princ
mbers of ME
re for the ye
arnam Street, 

ebruary 2, 18
overnment wi

the council
e City’s seven
to four-year
state and fede

ary governme
for which th

relationship 
misleading or

y of the comp
on or (ii) the
burden on the

ent units and
ugh legally se
s are basic w
ivity of the C
 Corporation
y Facilities C
n Hotel Cor
its respective

he Omaha-Do
re available a

eported in a s
legally separ
present the f

hority (MECA

e for the ope
acilities and al
cipally funde

ECA are appo
ear ended Jun
Omaha, Neb

(C

857. The City
ith an elected
l, composed 
n districts. Th

r terms. The 
eral income ta

ent) and its co
he City is f
with the City
r incomplete. 
onent unit’s b

ere is potenti
e City. 

d the City’s 
eparate entitie

with data of th
City of Omah
n, the City o
Corporation, th
rporation. Th
e ownership p
ouglas Public
at 1819 Farna

separate colu
rate from the
financial pos

A). 

eration of th
ll related infr

ed by private 
ointed by the 
ne 30, 2010. 
raska 68183.

Continued) 

y operates 
d full-time 

of seven 
he Mayor 
City is a 

axes. 

omponent 
financially 
y are such 

Financial 
board and 
al for the 

discretely 
es, are, in 

he primary 
ha Parking 
of Omaha 
he City of 

he City is 
percentage 
c Building 
am Street, 

umn in the 
e primary 
sition and 

he Omaha 
rastructure 
donations 
City. The 
MECA’s 



 

R

T
t
T
A
t

T
i
i
i
s
m
r
a
f
1

(b) B

G

T
g
g
a
C
w
b

T
t
D
a
r
r
n

F

T
S
p
e
a

Related Orga

The City’s off
the City’s acc
The Mayor or
Airport Autho
these organiza

The Douglas 
interlocal agre
is to increase
information, 
services. The
members. Th
representative
and holds titl
from the City 
18th Street, O

Basis of Pres

Governmentw

The statemen
government a
government, 
activities. The
City and betw
which normal
business-type 

The statement
the business-t
Direct expens
are clearly id
recipients of 
restricted to m
not classified 

Fund Financ

The fund fina
Separate stat
presented. Th
each displaye
and reported a

N

anizations 

fficials are res
countability f
r City Counc
ority, and the 
ations. 

Omaha Tech
eement betwe
e the coopera
voice, and d
 City appoin

he Mayor (or
es appointed t
le to its asset
and County. 

Omaha, Nebra

entation 

wide Financi

nt of net ass
and its compo
except for fi
ese statement
ween the Cit
lly are suppor
activities, wh

t of activities
type activities
ses are those 
dentifiable to 

goods or ser
meeting the op

as program re

cial Statemen

ancial stateme
ements for e

he emphasis o
ed in a separa
as nonmajor f

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

sponsible for 
for these orga
cil appoints b

Metro Area 

hnology Comm
een the City a
ative efforts 
data commun
nts two memb
r designee) a
to the Board. 
ts. DOT.Com
Separate fina

aska 68102. 

ial Statemen

sets and state
onent unit. Th
iduciary activ
s distinguish 

ty and its dis
rted by taxes 
hich rely to a 

 presents a co
s of the City 
that are speci
a particular 

rvices offered
peration or ca
evenues, inclu

nts 

ents provide i
each fund c
f fund financ
ate column. A
funds. 

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

34

appointing m
anizations doe
oard member
Transit Autho

mission (DOT
and Douglas 
of the Coun

nication serv
bers to the D
and the City 
DOT.Comm 

mm’s revenue
ancial stateme

nts 

ement of act
hese statemen
vities. Elimin
between the 

scretely prese
and intergove
significant ex

omparison be
and for each

ifically assoc
function. Pro

d by the prog
apital requirem
uding all taxe

information a
ategory – go
ial statements
All remaining

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

members of th
es not extend
rs of the Oma
ority. The Cit

T.Comm) is a
County (the 

nty and the C
vices for gov
DOT.Comm 

Council Pre
has control o

es are primar
ents can be ob

tivities displa
nts include th
nations have 
governmenta

ented compon
ernmental rev
xtent on fees 

etween direct 
h function of 
ciated with a p
ogram revenu
grams and (2
ments of a pa
es, are present

about the City
overnmental, 
s is on major 
g government

he boards of o
d beyond mak
aha Housing 
ty is not finan

a government
County). The
City in conn
vernmental o
board, which
esident (or d
over its operat
rily derived f
btained from 

ay informatio
he financial a
been made 

al and busines
nent unit. Go
venues, are re
charged to ex

expenses and
f the City’s go
program or fu

ues include (
2) grants and 
articular progr
ted as genera

y’s funds, incl
proprietary,

governmenta
tal funds are 

(C

other organiza
king the appo
Authority, th

ncially accou

tal entity form
e purpose of t
nection with 
operations, an
h has a total 
designee) are 
tions and fisc
from mainten
its office at 4

on about the
activities of th
to minimize 
ss-type activit
overnmental 
eported separa
xternal parties

d program rev
overnmental 

function and, 
1) charges pa
contribution

ram. Revenue
al revenues. 

luding fiducia
, and fiducia
al and enterpr

separately a

Continued) 

ations, but 
ointments. 
he Omaha 
untable for 

med by an 
this entity 
electronic 
nd public 

of seven 
the City 

al matters 
nance fees 
408 South 

e primary 
he overall 
interfund 

ties of the 
activities, 

ately from 
s. 

venues for 
activities. 
therefore, 

aid by the 
ns that are 
es that are 

ary funds. 
ary – are 
rise funds, 
ggregated 



 

P
a
p
e

T







T







T













Proprietary fu
associated wi
party receives
earnings, resu

The City repo

 The gen
basic go

 The de
long-ter

 The do
stadium

The City repo

 The con
and ope

 The par
for oper

 The sew
and rela
sewerag

The City repo

 The pe
earning

 The ag
governm

 The per
earning
benefit 

 The spe
restricte

 The cap
develop
and trus

 The ent
to priva
providi
recover

N

und operating
ith the princi
s and gives u

ult from nonex

orts the follow

neral fund is 
overnmental a

bt service fun
rm debt princ

wntown stad
m to be built b

orts the follow

nvention cent
eration of the 

rking facilitie
ration, mainte

wer revenue f
ated expendit
ge system and

orts the follow

ension trust f
gs from the fu

gency funds 
ments. 

rmanent fund
gs, and not pri

of the City or

ecial revenue
ed to expendi

pital projects
pment of maj
st funds). 

terprise funds
ate business e
ng goods or
red primarily 

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

g revenues, su
pal activity o
up essentially
xchange trans

wing major go

used to acco
activities of th

nd is used to
cipal, interest,

dium fund is 
between 10th 

wing major pr

ter hotel fund
Convention C

es fund accoun
enance, and c

fund accounts
tures for oper
d wastewater 

wing additiona

funds accum
unds’ investm

account for 

ds are used to
incipal, may 
r its citizenry

e funds accou
itures for spec

s funds accou
jor capital im

s account for 
enterprises: (a
r services to 

through user

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

35

uch as charge
of the fund. 
y equal value
sactions, or an

overnmental f

ount for all re
he City that a

o account for 
, and related c

used to accou
and 13th Stre

oprietary fun

d is used to ac
Center Hotel.

nts for activit
construction o

s for activity 
ration, mainte
treatment pla

al fund types:

mulate contrib
ents. Disburs

r assets held

o report resou
be used for p

y. 

unt for the p
cified purpose

unt for all res
mprovements 

operations th
a) where the 
the general 

r charges or 

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

s for services
Exchange tra
es. Nonopera
ncillary activi

funds: 

evenues and e
are not accoun

the resource
costs. 

unt for the c
eets between C

ds: 

ccount for co
. 

ty from parkin
of parking gar

from sewer s
enance, and c
ants. 

: 

butions from
ements are m

d by the Cit

urces that are 
purposes that 

proceeds from
es. 

sources receiv
(other than th

hat are finance
intent of the 
public on a
(b) where th

s, result from 
ansactions are
ating revenue
ities. 

expenditures 
nted for throu

es for, and th

onstruction o
Cuming and W

sts associated

ng revenue an
rages. 

service charge
apital improv

m the City an
made from the 

ty as an ag

legally restri
support the C

m specific rev

ved and used
hose financed

ed and operat
governing bo

a continuing 
e governing 

(C

exchange tra
e those in wh
es, such as in

necessary to 
ugh other fund

he payment o

of a new City
Webster Stree

d with the con

nd related exp

es, constructi
vements of th

nd its emplo
funds for ret

gent for vari

icted to the e
City’s program

venue source

d for the acqu
d by propriet

ted in a mann
ody is that th
basis are fin
body has dec

Continued) 

ansactions 
hich each 
nvestment 

carry out 
ds. 

f, general 

y baseball 
ets. 

nstruction 

penditures 

on grants, 
he sanitary 

oyees and 
irement. 

ous local 

extent that 
ms for the 

s that are 

uisition or 
tary funds 

ner similar 
he costs of 
nanced or 
cided that 



 

(c) B

T
e
w
r
w
g
i
a

G
m
a
s
s
i
o
f

P
g
e
A
p
s

P
r
i
r
i
r
e

(d) E

E
p
o
r

periodic
for capi

Basis of Acco

The governm
economic reso
when earned 
related cash f
without direc
grants, entitle
in the fiscal y
are recognized

Governmenta
modified accr
and available
services are a
so as to be bo
incurred, exce
only when du
funds. Procee

Private sector
generally are 
extent that th
Accounting S
private sector
same limitatio

Proprietary fu
revenues and 
in connection
revenues of th
include the co
revenues and
expenses. 

Encumbranc

Encumbrance
purchase orde
order to rese
reservations o

N

c determinati
ital maintenan

ounting 

mentwide, pro
ources measu
and expenses

flows take pla
ctly receiving
ements, and d
year for which
d in the fiscal

l funds are re
rual basis of a
. Property an

accrued when 
oth measurab
ept for debt 
ue. General c
ds and payme

r standards o
followed in b
hose standar

Standards Boa
r guidance fo
on. The City h

unds distingu
expenses gen

n with a pro
he enterprise f
ost of sales an
d expenses n

es 

e accounting 
ers, contracts
erve that po
of net assets si

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

on of revenue
nce, public po

oprietary, and
urement focus
s are recorde

ace. Nonexch
g (or giving) 
donations. On
h the taxes ar
l year in whic

eported using
accounting. U
nd sales taxe
their receipt 

ble and availa
service expe
capital assets
ents of long-t

of accounting
both the gove
rds do not c
ard (GASB). 

or their busin
has elected no

ish operating
nerally result 
oprietary fun
funds are cha
nd service, ad
not meeting t

is employed 
s, and other c
ortion of the
ince they do n

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

36

es earned, exp
olicy, manage

d fiduciary fu
s and the acc
ed at the time
ange transact
equal value 

n an accrual b
re levied. Re

ch all eligible 

g the current 
Under this me
es, interest, ce

occurs withi
able. Expend
nditures and 

s acquisitions
erm debt are 

g and financi
ernmentwide 
conflict with 

Government
ness-type activ
ot to follow su

g revenues an
from providi

nd’s principal
arges to custom
dministrative 
this definitio

in the govern
commitments

e applicable 
not constitute

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

penses incurre
ement control

und financial 
rual basis of 

e liabilities ar
tions, in whic
in exchange,

basis, revenue
venues from 
requirements

financial res
ethod, revenu
ertain state a
n 60 days aft
itures are gen
other long-t

s are reported
reported as o

ial reporting 
and proprieta
or contradic

ts also have t
vities and the
ubsequent pri

nd expenses f
ing services a
l ongoing op
mers for good
expenses, and

on are report

nmental fund
s for the exp
appropriation

e liability. 

ed, and/or net
l, accountabil

statements a
accounting. R

re incurred, r
ch the City giv
, include pro
e from proper
grants, entitl

s have been m

sources measu
ues are recogn
and federal g
ter the end of
nerally record
erm liabilitie
d as expendi
ther financing

issued prior 
ary fund fina
ct guidance 
the option of
eir enterprise
ivate sector gu

from nonoper
and producing
perations. Th
ds and service
d depreciation
ted as nonop

ds. Under enc
penditures of 
n. Encumbra

(C

t income is ap
lity, or other p

are reported 
Revenues are
regardless of 
ves (or receiv

operty and sa
rty taxes is re
lements, and 

met. 

urement focu
nized when m
grants, and ch
f the accounti
ded when a l
es, which are
itures in gove
g sources and

to Decembe
ancial stateme

of the Gove
f following su
e funds, subje
uidance. 

rating items. O
g and deliver
he principal 
es. Operating
n on capital a
perating reve

cumbrance ac
funds are re

ances are rep

Continued) 

ppropriate 
purposes. 

using the 
e recorded 

when the 
ves) value 
ales taxes, 
ecognized 
donations 

us and the 
measurable 
harges for 
ing period 
liability is 
 recorded 
ernmental 

d uses. 

er 1, 1989 
ents to the 
ernmental 
ubsequent 
ect to this 

Operating 
ing goods 
operating 

g expenses 
assets. All 
enues and 

ccounting, 
corded in 
ported as 



 

(e) P

T
c
t
t
F
C
I
B

(f) C

F
h
c

(g) I

I
v
l
I
f

(h) I

I
f
a

(i) P

N
l
l
$

T
c
n
a
a
a
w

T
b
D

Pooled Cash 

The City main
custody of the
the pool. Inter
the City, exce
Fund, Wester
Construction 
Interest is imp
Block Grant f

Cash and Cas

For purposes 
highly liquid d
cash equivalen

Investments 

Investments a
valued at the 
listed on an e
Income from 
funds is recor

Inventories 

Inventories o
first-out meth
and expended

Property Tax

Nebraska Leg
levy certified 
levy ($0.261
$51,144,383. 

The Home Ru
certified in an
necessary to 
administrative
and litigation 
assessed valu
which the 201

The tax levies
before Octob
December 31.

N

and Investme

ntains a poole
e City Treasu
rest earned on
ept for the Do
n Heritage/By
Fund, and A
puted and tran
funds, and We

sh Equivalen

of the accom
debt instrume
nts. 

are stated at 
last reported 
exchange, qu
investments n
ded in the res

f materials a
hod. The costs
d as used. 

xes 

gislative Bill 
in any year s
12 per $100

ule Charter of
ny year shall n

provide for 
e expenses in

expenses in 
ation) was be

10 levy was b

s for all politi
ber 15. Real 
. The first ha

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

ents 

ed cash and in
urer. Each fun
n the City’s p
on Hayes Mem
yron Reed Fu

Aksarben Bon
nsferred to th
estern Heritag

nts 

mpanying sta
ents with an o

fair value. S
sales prices a

uotations are 
not included i
spective funds

and supplies a
s of governm

(LB) 1114 i
shall not exce
0 of assesse

f the City imp
not exceed $0
principal an

ncurred in issu
connection t

elow the lega
based was $27

cal subdivisio
estate taxes 

alf of real esta

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

37

nvestment acc
nd reports its 
pooled cash a
morial Fund,
und, Asarco R

nd Fund, whic
he Keno fund
ge fund. 

tement of ca
original matur

ecurities trad
at current exc
obtained from
in pooled cas
s as it is earne

are stated at 
mental fund in

imposes a tax
eed $0.45 per
ed valuation)

poses a tax ce
0.6125 per $1
nd interest p
uing and main
therewith. Th
al limit by $.3
7,077,712,200

ons in Dougla
are due and

ate taxes bec

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

count for all f
undistributed

and investmen
 Ralph Ander
Remediation 
ch are credite
s, Police Seiz

sh flows, the
rity of three m

ded on a nati
change rates w
m brokerage 
h and investm
ed. 

the lower of
ventories are 

x ceiling for 
r $100 of actu
) was below

eiling for gen
100 of actual 

payments on 
ntaining bond

he 2010 gener
35138, or $95
0. 

as County are
d become an
omes delinqu

funds. These 
d interest in th
nts is credited
rson Memori
Fund, Sewer 
ed directly to
zed Assets fun

e City enterpr
months or less

ional or inter
where marke
firms or nat

ments that are

f cost or mar
recorded as 

general reven
ual valuation

w the legal 

eral revenue 
valuation plu
the indebted

ds and for sat
ral tax levy (
5,145,665. Th

e certified by 
n enforceable
uent on April

(C

funds are pla
he principal b

d to the gener
al Fund, Cash
Revenue Fun

o the respecti
nds, Law Enf

rise funds co
s when purcha

rnational exch
table securiti

tional pricing
e held by the i

rket using th
assets when p

nue purposes
. The 2010 g
limit by $.1

purposes. Th
us whatever t
dness of the 
tisfaction of j
($0.26112 pe
he assessed va

the county bo
e lien on pro
l 1 and the se

Continued) 

aced in the 
balance of 
al fund of 
h Reserve 
nd, Sewer 
ive funds. 
forcement 

onsider all 
ased to be 

hange are 
es are not 

g services. 
individual 

he first-in, 
purchased 

s. The tax 
eneral tax 
18888, or 

e tax levy 
tax levy is 

City for 
udgments 

er $100 of 
alue upon 

oard on or 
operty on 
econd half 



 

b
D
t

M

(j) D

F
f
r

(k) C

W
i
n
d
d
i
s
g
h

T

(l) C

E
e
T
a
b
o
a
o
T
w
t

becomes deli
December 31 
taxes bear 14%

Motor vehicle

Deferred Cha

For governme
from the issu
remaining life

Capital Asset

Within the g
infrastructure,
not available.
donation. Cap
defines capita
in excess of 
straight-line m
governmentw
half-year conv

The estimated

Compensated

Employees ea
employment. 
This balance i
and civilian m
bargaining em
of 2,000 hour
accruing comp
of the paymen
The compens
which it is ea
the right to ca

N

inquent on A
and become 

% interest. 

e taxes are du

arges 

entwide finan
uance of reve
e of the bonds

ts 

governmentwi
, are recorded
 Contributed 

pital assets in
al assets as as
one year. Ca

method over t
wide and pro

vention in the

d useful lives 

Infras
Buildi
Impro
Mach
Vehic

d Absences 

arn annual v
In the event 
is the total of

management e
mployees are 
rs (612.5 hou
pensatory lea
nt of overtime
satory time m
arned and any
ash out the com

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

August 1 foll
delinquent o

ue when an ap

ncial statemen
enue and gen
s on a straight

ide and prop
d at historical
fixed assets 

nclude public 
sets with indi
apital assets 
the lesser of 

oprietary fun
e first and last

are as follow

structure
ings and syste

ovements
inery and equ

cles

vacation and 
of terminatio

f a yearly carr
employees, pl
reimbursed f

urs). Civilian 
ave time at a r
e. Employees

must be taken
y remaining a
mpensatory le

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

38

lowing the le
on April 1 an

pplication is m

nts and proprie
neral obligati
t-line basis. 

prietary fund 
l cost or at es
are valued at
domain infra
ividual costs 
used in ope
the capital le
d financial 
t years of the 

ws: 

ems

uipment

sick leave a
n, an employ
ryover, up to 
lus the curren
for a percenta

and nonexem
rate of one an
s may accrue 
n within thre
amounts are p
eave balance 

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

evy date. Pe
nd August 1 f

made for regis

etary fund fin
ion bonds are

financial sta
stimated histo
t their estimat
astructure, inc
of more than
rations are d

ease period o
statements. A
asset’s usefu

at various sp
yee is reimbur

a maximum o
nt year’s leave
age of accumu
mpt managem
nd one half tim
a maximum o
e months aft
paid out in ca
at any time.

ersonal prope
following the 

stration of a m

nancial statem
e deferred an

atements, cap
orical cost if a
ted fair mark
cluding roads 
n $10,000 and
depreciated o
r their estima
Assets are d
l life. 

15 – 50 years
15 – 40 years
5 – 30 years
5 – 20 years
5 – 15 years

ecific rates d
rsed for accum
of 280 hours 
e balance. Civ
ulated sick le

ment employe
mes the actua
of 120 hours 
ter the end o
ash. However

(C

erty taxes ar
levy date. D

motor vehicle.

ments, charges
nd amortized

pital assets, 
actual historic
et value on th
and bridges.

d estimated us
r amortized 
ated useful liv
depreciated u

s
s

 

during their 
mulated vaca
for civilian b

vilian manage
eave up to a m
ees have the 
al hours work
of compensa

of the calenda
r, the employ

Continued) 

e due on 
Delinquent 

. 

s resulting 
d over the 

including 
cal cost is 
he date of 
 The City 
seful lives 
using the 
ves in the 
using the 

period of 
ation time. 
bargaining 
ement and 
maximum 
option of 

ked in lieu 
atory time. 
ar year in 

yee retains 



 

I
m
a
a
a
2
h
e
t
m
e
a
D
o
e
a

F
o
l
s
s
f
r

(m) S

T
v
c
o
i

(n) L

I
s
g
B
t
i

I
a
a
s
o

In the event o
maximum of 
after 20 years
and 1 for 4 ho
accrue a maxi
24-hour shift 
hours, plus cu
employees ar
termination, F
maximum of
employees are
all hours gre
Department 4
of 240 hours
employees ar
above. 

For the gover
other compen
leave is attribu
such benefits.
such as the em
for compensa
reported only 

Self-Insuranc

The City self
vehicles, med
contents cove
of $100,000 
insurance to c

Long-Term O

In the gover
statements, lo
governmental
Bond premium
the bonds. B
issuance costs

In the fund fi
as well as bon
as other finan
sources, wher
or not withhel

N

of termination
320 hours, p

s, police empl
ours thereafte
imum of 360 
employees a

urrent year ac
re reimbursed
Fire Managem
f 280 hours, 
e reimbursed 

eater than 1,2
0-hour shift e
s, plus curre
re converted 

rnmentwide, 
nsated absence
utable to past
. Such accrua

mployer’s mat
ted absences 
if they have m

ce 

f-insures all c
dical, dental,
erage. The Cit

on buildings
cover helicopt

Obligations 

rnmentwide f
ong-term debt 
l activities, b
ms and discou

Bonds payable
s are reported

inancial statem
nd issuance c
ncing sources
reas discounts
ld from the ac

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

n, police emp
lus the curren
loyees receiv
er up to a ma
hours of com

are reimburse
ccumulation. U
d for accumu
ment employ

plus curren
for accumula

201 to 3,200
employees are
ent year acc
to 24-hour 

proprietary, 
es with simila
t service and 
als are based 
tching Social
on terminatio
matured. 

claims related
 and worker
ty has purcha
s and conten
ters used by th

financial stat
t and other lon
business-type 
unts, as well 
e are reporte

d as deferred c

ments, govern
osts, during t
s. Premiums 
s on debt issu
ctual debt pro

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

39

ployees are re
nt year leave 

ve 1 for 1 for 
aximum of 3,
mpensatory tim
ed for accum
Upon retirem
ulated sick l
yees are reim
nt year accum
ated sick leav
0 for a maxi
e reimbursed 
cumulation. U
shift employ

and fiduciary
ar characteris
it is probable
on current s

l Security and
on. In the gov

d to personal
rs’ compensa
ased separate 
nts. The City
he Police Dep

tements and 
ng-term oblig
activities, or
as issuance c

ed net of the
charges and a

nmental fund
the current pe
received on 

uances are rep
oceeds receive

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

eimbursed for
balance. Up
the first 1,20

200 hours (1
me. In the ev

mulated vacati
ment or resign

eave at 57%
mbursed for a

mulation. Up
ve 1 for 1 for 
mum 1,700. 
for accumula

Upon retirem
yees reimburs

y fund financ
stics are accru
e that the City
alary rates an

d Medicare co
vernmental fu

l liability and
ation and the

commercial 
y has purcha
partment. 

proprietary 
gations are rep
r proprietary 
costs, are defe
e applicable 
mortized ove

d types recogn
eriod. The fac

debt issuanc
ported as fina
ed, are reporte

r accumulated
on retirement
00 hours of a
,700 hours). 
ent of termin
ion time up t
ation, Fire Ba

% of actual h
accumulated v
pon retireme
the first 1,20
In the even

ated vacation 
ment or resig
sed for accum

cial statement
ued as the be

y will compen
nd include sa
osts, associate
unds, a liabilit

d property da
e first $100,
insurance to 

ased separate

fund types 
ported as liab
fund type st

erred and am
bond premiu

er the term of 

nize bond pre
ce amount of 
ces are report
ancing uses. I
ed as current 

(C

d vacation tim
t, death, or re
accumulated s
Police emplo
ation, Fire De
to a maximu
argaining 24-
hours. In the 
vacation time

ent, Fire Ma
0 hours and 1

nt of termina
time up to a m

gnation, 40-h
mulated sick

ts, vacation l
nefits are ear

nsate the empl
alary-related p
ed with payme
ty for these a

amage for Ci
,000 of build
cover losses 

e commercia

in the fund 
ilities in the a
tatement of n

mortized over t
um or discou
the related de

emiums and d
debt issued is
ted as other 
ssuance costs
expenditures

Continued) 

me up to a 
esignation 
sick leave 

oyees may 
epartment 

um of 360 
-hour shift 

event of 
e up to a 

anagement 
1 for 4 for 
ation, Fire 
maximum 
hour shift 
k leave as 

leave, and 
rned if the 
loyees for 
payments, 
ents made 

amounts is 

ity-owned 
dings and 
in excess 
l liability 

financial 
applicable 
net assets. 
the life of 
unt. Bond 
ebt. 

discounts, 
s reported 
financing 

s, whether 
. 



 

(o) I

I
L
a

S
e
b
t
r

(p) R

R

(q) R

A

I
I
i
s
n

I
D
r
m
r
s
a

I
C
r
b
l
p
s

I
o
d
s
e
f

Interfund Tra

Interfund tran
Loans, which 
and are referre

Services prov
expenditures/e
benefiting fun
treated as tran
reconciliation

Restricted As

Restricted ass

Recent Accou

Adoption of N

In June 2007
Intangible As
intangible ass
such assets am
no impact on 

In June 2008
Derivative In
report inform
manage speci
requires gove
statements. T
adoption of th

In December 
Chapter 9 Ba
reporting guid
bankruptcy un
liabilities that
payment plan
statements. 

In June 2010, 
of this statem
disclosure req
significant iss
ended Decem
financial state

N

ansactions 

nsactions are 
are reported 

ed to as either

vided, deeme
expenses. Re
nd, and reduc
nsfers. Trans

n to the govern

ssets 

sets include de

unting Prono

New Accountin

7, GASB issu
ssets. This st
sets, thereby 
mong state an
the financial 

8, GASB issu
nstruments. T
mation about 
ific risks or m
ernments to 

The guidance
his accounting

2009, GASB
ankruptcies. 
dance for gov
nder Chapter
t are adjusted
n. The adopt

GASB issue
ment is to up
quirements o
sues have bee

mber 31, 2010
ements. 

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

reflected as e
as receivable
r “due to/from

ed to be at 
eimbursement
ces its related 
fers between 
nmentwide pr

eposits with t

ouncements 

ng Pronounce

ued GASB S
atement estab
enhancing th

nd local gover
statements. 

ued GASB S
This statemen

derivative in
make investm

measure mo
 in this stat
g pronouncem

B issued GASB
The objectiv
vernments tha
r 9 of the U.

d in bankruptc
tion of this a

d GASB Stat
pdate and im
f certain fina

en identified i
0. The adopti

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

40

either loans, 
es and payabl
m other funds

market or n
ts are when o
cost as a reim
governmenta

resentation. 

trustees of var

ements 

Statement No
blishes accou

he comparabil
rnments. The

Statement No
nt is intended
nstruments, fi

ments, in their 
ost derivative
ement also a

ment had no im

B Statement N
ve of this sta
at have petiti
.S. Bankruptc
cy when the b
accounting p

tement No. 59
mprove existin
ancial instrum
in practice. T
on of this ac

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

services prov
les, are subjec
s” or “advance

ear market r
one fund inc
mbursement. 
al or propriet

rious enterpri

o. 51, Accoun
unting and fi
lity of the ac
 adoption of 

o. 53, Accoun
d to improve 
inancial arran
financial sta

e instrument
addresses hed
mpact on the 

No. 58, Acco
atement is to
ioned for pro
cy Code. It r
bankruptcy co
ronouncemen

9, Financial I
ng standards 
ments and ex
he guidance i

ccounting pro

vided, reimbu
ct to eliminati
es to/from oth

rates, are tre
urs a cost, ch
All other inte

tary funds ar

ise funds and 

nting and Fi
inancial repor
counting and
this accountin

nting and Fi
how state a

ngements use
atements. The
ts at fair va
dge accounti
financial state

ounting and F
o provide acc
otection from 
requires gove
ourt confirms
nt had no im

Instruments O
regarding fi

xternal invest
is effective fo

onouncement 

(C

ursements, or 
ion upon con
her funds.” 

eated as reve
harges the ap
erfund transa
e netted as p

capital projec

inancial Repo
rting requirem

d financial rep
ng pronounce

inancial Repo
and local gov
ed by govern
e statement sp
alue in their 
ing requirem
ements.  

Financial Rep
counting and 
creditors by 

ernments to r
s (i.e., approv
mpact on the 

Omnibus. The
financial repo
tment pools f
or the City fo
had no impa

Continued) 

transfers. 
solidation 

enues and 
ppropriate 
actions are 
part of the 

cts. 

orting for 
ments for 
porting of 
ement had 

orting for 
vernments 
nments to 
pecifically 

financial 
ments. The 

porting for 
financial 
filing for 

remeasure 
ves) a new 

financial 

 objective 
orting and 
for which 

or the year 
act on the 



 

N

I
G
f
c
s
e
r
D

I
E
r
m
b
e

I
S
b
p
b
w
t
c
g

I
O
t
G
r
D
a
g

I
F
S
P
l
p
G
O

New Accounti

In February 
Governmenta
fund balance
consistently a
statement esta
extent to whic
reported in g
December 31,

In December
Employers an
related to th
measurements
benefit (OPEB
ending Decem

In November 
Service Conce
by addressing
public-private
between a tra
which (1) the
through the u
consideration 
guidance is ef

In November
Omnibus, an 
to improve fi
GASB Statem
requirements 
Discussion an
and to addres
guidance is ef

In December
Financial Re
Standards Bo
Pronounceme
literature cert
pronounceme
GASB prono
Opinions, or; 

N

ing Pronounc

2009, GAS
l Fund Type D
 information
applied and 
ablishes fund
ch a governm
governmental
, 2011. 

r 2010, GAS
nd Agent Mul
he use of th
s by employ
B) plans (i.e

mber 31, 2012

2010, GASB
ession Arrang
g issues rela
e or public-pu
ansferor (a go
e transferor co
use of infrast

and (2) the 
ffective for th

r 2010, GAS
amendment o
inancial repor
ment No. 14

of GASB 
nd Analysis—f
ss reporting e
ffective for th

r 2010, GAS
eporting Gui
oard (FASB)

ents. The obj
tain accounti
nts issued on

ouncements: 
Accounting 

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

cements Not A

SB issued G
Definitions. T

n by providin
by clarifyin

d balance clas
ment is bound 
l funds. The

B issued G
ltiple-Employ

he alternative
yers that part
., agent emp

2. 

B issued GAS
gements. The
ated to servic
ublic partner
overnment) an
onveys to an 
tructure or an

operator co
he City for the

SB issued G
of GASB State
rting for a g

4, The Finan
Statement N

—for State and
entity issues t
he City for the

B issued GA
idance Conta
) and Amer
ective of this
ing and finan

n or before No
FASB State
Research Bu

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

41

Adopted 

GASB Statem
The objective
ng clearer fu

ng the existi
ssifications th
to observe co

e guidance i

ASB Statem
yer Plans. The
e measureme
ticipate in a
loyers). The 

B Statement 
e objective of
ce concessio
ship. As use
nd an operato
operator the 

nother public
llects and is 
e year ending 

GASB Statem
ements No. 1
overnmental 

ncial Reporti
No. 34, Bas
d Local Gover
that have aris
e year ending 

ASB Statem
ained in Pr
rican Institut
s Statement i
ncial reportin
ovember 30, 
ements and 
ulletins of the

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

ment No. 54
 of this statem

fund balance 
ing governm
hat comprise 
onstraints imp
s effective f

ment No. 57,
e objective o
nt method a

agent multipl
guidance is 

No. 60, Acco
f this Stateme
n arrangeme
d in this stat
or (governme
right and rel

c asset (a "fac
compensated
December 31

ment No. 61,
4 and No. 34
financial rep

ing Entity, a
sic Financia
rnments, were
sen since the
December 31

ment No. 62,
re-November 
te of Certif
is to incorpor
ng guidance 
1989, which 
Interpretatio

e AICPA Co

4, Fund Ba
ment is to enh

classificatio
mental fund t

a hierarchy b
posed upon th
for the City 

, OPEB Me
f this stateme
and the freq
e-employer o
effective for

ounting and F
ent is to impro
ents (SCAs), 
tement, an SC
ental or nong
lated obligati
cility") in ex
d by fees fro
1, 2012. 

 The Financ
4. The objecti
porting entity
and the relate
al Statements
e amended to 
e issuance of 
1, 2012. 

, Codification
30, 1989 F

fied Public A
rate into the 
that is inclu
does not con
ns; Account

ommittee on 

(C

alance Repor
hance the use
ons that can 
type definitio
based primari
he use of the 

for the yea

easurements 
ent is to addr
quency and t
other postem
r the City for

Financial Rep
ove financial 
which are a

CA is an arr
governmental 
ion to provide
xchange for s
om third par

cial Reportin
ive of this sta

y. The require
ed financial 
s—and Mana
better meet u
those statem

n of Accoun
Financial A
Accountants 
GASB’s aut

uded in the 
nflict with or c
ting Principl
Accounting P

Continued) 

rting and 
fulness of 
be more 

ons. This 
ily on the 
resources 

ar ending 

by Agent 
ress issues 
timing of 

mployment 
r the year 

porting for 
reporting 

a type of 
rangement 
entity) in 

e services 
significant 
rties. This 

ng Entity: 
atement is 
ements of 
reporting 

agement's 
user needs 

ments. The 

nting and 
ccounting 
(AICPA) 

thoritative 
following 
contradict 
es Board 
Procedure 



 

(
t

T

(r) U

T
e
c
r
t

(2) Interfu

Individ

Police
Civilia
Civilia
Civilia
Civilia
Debt S
Debt S
Debt S
Debt S
Debt S
Nonm
Nonm
Genera
Genera
Genera
Genera

 

All rem
provide
(3) pay

(collectively r
the City for th

The City has n

Use of Estima

The preparatio
estimates and
contingent ass
revenues and 
those estimate

und Receivab

dual interfund

Rec

/Fire Retirem
an Retirement
an Retirement
an Retirement
an Retirement
Service Fund
Service Fund
Service Fund
Service Fund
Service Fund

major Debt Ser
major Special R

al Fund
al Fund
al Fund
al Fund

maining balan
ed or reimbu

yments betwe

N

referred to as
he year ending

not completed

ates 

on of the fina
d assumptions
sets and liabi
expenditures

es. 

bles, Payable

d receivables a

ceivable fund

ment Reserve F
t Reserve Fun
t Reserve Fun
t Reserve Fun
t Reserve Fun

rvice Fund
Revenue Fund

nces result fro
rsable expend
en funds are m

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

 the ―FASB
g December 3

d its assessme

ancial stateme
s that affect th
ilities at the d
s/expenses du

es, and Trans

and payables 

d

Fund
nd
nd
nd
nd

d

om the time la
ditures occur
made. All am

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

42

B and AICPA
31, 2011. 

ent of the imp

ents in confor
he reported am
date of the fin
uring the rep

sfers 

at December

A

$

2

12

1

ag between th
, (2) transacti

mounts are exp

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

A pronouncem

pact of the ad

rmity with GA
mounts of ass
nancial statem

porting period

r 31, 2010 are

Amount

883,877   
137,804   

57,362   
31,452   

6,049   
100,000   

2,108,963   
2,860   

80,461   
2,762,926   

838,527   
1,057,742   

8,269   
135   

42,419   
77,184   

he dates that (
ions are reco
pected to be p

ments). The gu

option of thes

AAP requires
sets and liabi
ments, and th
d. Actual res

e as follows: 

P

General Fu
General Fu
Nonmajor S
Sewer Reve
Nonmajor E
Hotel Fund
Nonmajor C
Downtown
Nonmajor E
Nonmajor S
Nonmajor E
Sewer Reve
Nonmajor E
Parking Fac
Sewer Reve
Nonmajor S

(1) interfund 
rded in the a

paid within on

(C

uidance is eff

se statements

s managemen
lities and disc

he reported am
sults could di

Payable fund

und
und
Special Reven
enue Fund
Enterprise Fu

d
Capital Proje

n Stadium Fun
Enterprise Fu
Special Reven
Enterprise Fu
enue Fund
Enterprise Fu
cilities Fund
enue Fund
Special Reven

goods and se
accounting sy
ne year. 

Continued) 

fective for 

. 

nt to make 
closure of 
mounts of 
iffer from 

d

nue Fund

unds

cts Fund
nd
unds
nue Fund

unds

unds

nue Fund

ervices are 
ystem, and 



 

Transfe
special

 

Major 
Gen
Dow

Major 
Sew

Nonm

 

During

(3) Deposi

The Ci
investm
with N

(a) D

C
i
h

(b) C

I
S
A
b
t
f
m

C
c
s
d
a
s

fers are relate
l revenues. Th

Transfers 

governmenta
neral fund
wntown Stadiu
enterprise fun

wer
ajor governm

Total

g 2010, the Go

its and Inves

ity has genera
ment purpose

Nebraska State

Deposits 

Custodial cred
its deposits. A
held by the Ci

City Investme

Investments a
Security Act,
Allowable inv
bonds and no
the State of N
federal farm c
money marke

Custodial Cr
counterparty, 
securities that
deposit with a
any amount i
securities be h

N

ed to funding
he following s

out

al funds:

um
nds:

mental

olf Operation

stments 

ally pooled th
s. Interest ear

e Statute Secti

dit risk is the 
As of Decemb
ity’s agent in 

ents 

are stated at 
, Chapter 77,
vestments inc
otes, certain s
Nebraska and
credit system,
t mutual fund

redit Risk – 
the City wo

t are in the po
any financial 
insured by th
held in the Cit

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

g for capital 
schedule brie

General
fund

$ —  
20,748  

—  
392,625  

$ 413,373  

ns Fund transf

he cash resou
rned on poole
ion 77-2315, 

risk that in th
ber 31, 2010,
the City’s na

fair value. C
, Article 23,
clude U.S. go
state and poli
d Nebraska p
, FHLB, FNM
d consists of o

Custodial cr
ould not be 
ossession of 
institution be

he FDIC. The
ty’s name in t

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

43

projects, lea
fly summariz

Tr
Nonmajo

governmen

932,02
—

5,097,37
—

6,029,40

ferred $3,103 

urces of the v
ed funds is c
R.R.S. 1943.

he event of a 
, all of the Ci
ame. 

City funds are
, specifically
overnment bo
itical subdivi

political subdi
MA, and the S
only those sec

redit risk is t
able to reco
an outside pa
e secured with
e City’s inve
the City’s saf

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

ase payments
zes the City’s 

ransfer in
or
ntal Sew

27  
—  

75  
—  9,395,

02  9,395,

of capital ass

various funds
redited to the
 

bank failure,
ity’s deposits

e invested in
y 77-2387, o
onds, U.S. Tre
sion bonds, r
ivisions, and 
Small Busine
curities that ar

the risk that,
over the valu
arty. The City
h securities e
estment polic
fekeeping acc

s, debt servic
transfer activ

wer Par

—  428
—  

—  
,098  

,098  428

sets to govern

s, except the p
e City’s gene

 the City will
s were collate

n conformity 
of the Nebra
easury bills a
repurchase ag
certain instru

ess Administr
re allowed by

, in the even
ue of its inv
y’s policy req
qual or greate

cy also requir
count. 

(C

ce, or realloc
vity: 

rking T

,788  1,
—  

—  5,
—  9,

,788  16,

nmental activi

pension trust
ral fund in ac

l not be able t
eralized with 

with the pub
aska Revised 
and notes, U.
greements, w
uments of th
ation. The go

y N.R.S. 77-2

nt of the failu
vestments or 
quires that all
er than the de
res that all in

Continued) 

cations of 

Total

360,815  
20,748  

097,375  
787,723  

266,661  

ities. 

t fund, for 
ccordance 

to recover 
securities 

blic funds 
Statutes. 

S. agency 
warrants of 
he FHLM, 
overnment 
2387. 

ure of the 
collateral 

l funds on 
eposit less 
nvestment 



 

I
d
a
U
b
f

T

U
U

T

U

C
o
s
q

T

U
U

T

U

C
m

Interest Rate
decrease as a 
as follows: U
U.S. Treasury
banks cannot
five-year matu

The City had 

In

U.S. agencies
U.S. Treasuri

The City had 

In

U.S. agencies

Credit Risk –
of the counte
specific inves
quality rating.

The pooled in

U.S. agencies
U.S. Treasuri

The deposits w

U.S. agencies

Concentratio
magnitude of 

N

e Risk – Inte
result of an in

U.S. Treasury
y notes or bon
t exceed 30 
urity from the

the following

nvestment typ

s
ies

the following

nvestment typ

s

– Credit risk i
erparty to fu
stment vehicl
. 

nvestment’s qu

Inves

s
ies

with trustees’

Inves

s

on of Credit 
the City’s inv

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

erest rate risk
ncrease in int

y securities c
nds cannot ex

months; all 
e date of purc

g maturities fo

pe

g maturities fo

pe

is the risk tha
ulfill their ob
les. There is 

uality rating i

stment type

’ quality ratin

stment type

Risk – Con
vestment in a

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

44

k is the risk th
erest rates. Th

cannot exceed
xceed two yea

other invest
chase. 

or pooled inve

Fair v

$ 45,534
48

or investment

Fair v

$ 28,483

at the City wi
bligation. Sta

no statutory 

is as follows:

ng are as follo

ncentration of
a single issuer

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

hat the fair v
he City’s inve
d five years;
ars; Certificat
tments not m

estments: 

value

4,246   
8,858   

ts held by trus

value

3,161   

ll not recover
ate statute lim

requirement

$

ws: 

$

f credit risk i
r. State statut

value of the C
estment polic
; Zero-coupo
tes of deposit
mentioned ab

Inves
Less than

1 year

6,574,402 
48,858 

stees: 

Inves
Less than

1 year

10,846,316 

r its investme
mits investme
t for investm

Fair value

45,534,246 
48,858 

Fair value

28,483,161 

is the risk of
e does not res

(C

City’s investm
cy related to m
on or strippe
t issued by co
bove cannot 

stment term

1 – 5

  38,9
  

stment term

1 – 5

  17,6

ents due to the
ent options t
ents to meet 

Qu
ratin

  A
  A

Qu
rating

  A

f loss attribut
strict the conc

Continued) 

ments will 
maturity is 
d coupon 

ommercial 
exceed a 

5 years

959,844   
—    

 

5 years

636,845   

 

e inability 
to certain 
a certain 

uality
g AAA

AAA
AAA

 

uality
g AAA

AA

 

ted to the 
centration 



 

o
b
i

C

U
U

C
t

U

F
a
c

S

of investment
be invested in
its agencies. 

Concentration

U.S. agencies
U.S. Treasuri

Concentration
table: 

U.S. agencies

Foreign Cur
adversely imp
currency risk.

Summary – T

N

t in any issuer
n the issuance

ns of investme

Inves

s
ies

ns of investm

Inves

s

rency Risk –
pact the fair v
 

The following

Depos
Poole
Truste
Impre

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

r. The City’s 
e of any singl

ent by issuer 

stment type

ment by issuer

stment type

– Foreign Cu
value of an in

g is a complet

Investm

sits
d investment
ee accounts
est funds

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

45

policy states 
le institution o

for pooled inv

r for deposits

urrency Risk 
nvestment. Th

te listing of d

ment type

s

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

that no more
other than sec

vestments are

$

s held by trus

$

is the risk th
he City does 

eposits and in

$

$

 than 25% of
curities of the

e displayed in

Fair value

45,534,246 
48,858 

stees are disp

Fair value

28,483,161 

hat changes i
not have a po

nvestments of

Fair value

75,858,062
45,583,104
68,091,073

69,067

189,601,306

(C

f the total port
e U.S. govern

n the followin

Perc

  
  

played in the 

Perce

  

in exchange 
olicy related t

f the City: 

   
4   
   
   

6   

 

Continued) 

tfolio will 
nment and 

ng table: 

centage

100%
100

 

following 

entage

100.0%

 

rates will 
to foreign 



 

T
a

I
R
R
R

(c) P

T
p
S
q
t
g
p
s
m
c

The deposits 
are reflected i

In

Cash and poo
Investments
Restricted de
Restricted inv
Restricted ca

Pension Trus

The pension 
pension progr
State Statute 
quarterly by e
the parties re
guidelines for
performance o
stocks, corpo
money marke
can be in mutu

N

and investme
in the financia

nvestment typ

oled investme

eposits with tr
vestments
sh

st Funds 

trust funds c
rams operate
30-3209. City

each plan’s In
esponsible fo
r the investm
of the investm
rate bonds, c

et funds, bank
ual funds or p

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

ents of the C
al statements 

pe

ents

rustee

consist of tw
e in complian
y pension fun
nvestment Co
or managing 
ent of the fun

ment manager
cash-equivale
k short-term i
privately man

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

46

ity, excluding
as follows: 

Governm
stateme

net as

$ 83,37
22,428
68,09
5,087
5,066

$ 184,045

wo funds: the 
nce with Om
nds are invest
mmittee. The
the investme

nd’s assets, a
rs. The plan a

ent securities,
investment fu

naged account

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

g the pension

entwide
ent of s
ssets

1,475   
8,225   
1,073   
7,807   
6,757   

5,337   

Civilian Pla
maha Municip

ted according
e plans define
ent process, 

and establish 
authorizes inv
, certificates 
unds, GICs, B
ts. 

n trust fund, a

Fiduciary
funds

statement of
net assets

4,397,460 
1,158,509 

—  
—  
—  

5,555,969 

an and the U
pal Code Cha
g to a plan de
e the purposes
establish bo
criteria to mo
vestments in c
of deposits o

BICs, and go

(C

at December

f
To

  87,7
  23,5
  68,0
  5,0
  5,0

  189,6

Uniformed Pla
apter 22 and 
eveloped and 
s of the assets
th broad and
onitor and ev
common and 
of insured in
vernment bon

Continued) 

31, 2010, 

otal

768,935   
586,734   
091,073   
087,807   
066,757   

601,306   

 

an. These 
Nebraska 
reviewed 

s, identify 
d specific 

valuate the 
preferred 

nstitutions, 
nds. They 



 

I
I
s
t
a
1
g
a
b

U
U
M

Interest Rate
Investment C
specific inves
the general as
assets is betw
12% and 28%
guidelines are
accounts man
bond mutual f

Investm

U.S. treasurie
U.S. agencies
Municipal bo
Corporate bo

Ma

0 – 1 years
1 – 5 years
6 – 10 years
10 + years

N

e Risk – The 
ommittee app

stment policie
sset allocation

ween 16% and
%. The City i
e being establ
naged by four
funds. Maturi

ment type

es
s
onds
onds

aturity

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

Pension Boar
proves fund m
es each mana
n to fixed inco
d 28% of the 
s not within 
lished to take
r managers: $
ities of the sec

Less
1 y

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

47

rd of each pla
manager agre
ager must adh
ome. The unif
portfolio valu
guidelines du

e this into acc
$134.6 million
curities in the

Managed a

s than
year

—%
—
—
3.0

Bond mutua

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

an with the re
eements. The
here to. The 
formed plan f
ue and the ci
ue to an upda
count. Fixed i
n in managed
ese commingl

ccounts
Maturity r

1 – 5

5.5%
11.3
0.2

24.8

al funds

ecommendati
se manageme
Retirement C

fund’s target r
ivilian plan fu
ate of the ass
income inves
d accounts an
led funds are 

range (years)

6 – 10

4.
1.
1.

38.

(C

ion from the r
ent agreemen
Committees d
range for fixe
und’s range is
set allocation,
tments are he

nd $22.2 milli
as follows: 

)

0 1

1%
2
0
5

Pe
of

Continued) 

respective 
nts outline 
do restrict 
ed income 
s between 
, and new 
eld in five 
on in two 

10 +

3.5%
0.9
1.7
4.5

ercent
f total

9.3%
68.3
10.0
12.4

 



 

C
i
m
v
m
m

U
U
U
M

A
A
B
N

Credit Risk –
income inves
managers bas
varying type 
managed by 
mutual funds.

U.S. Treasuri
U.S. agencies
U.S. agencies
Municipal bo
Corporate bo
Corporate bo
Corporate bo

TSY/AGY
AAA/Aaa
AA+/A3
BBB/Ba2
N/R

N

– Credit risk 
stments. The 
sed on an inv

of investme
four manage
 The quality r

Inves

ies
s
s
onds
onds
onds
onds

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

involves the 
Investment 

vestment polic
ent style. Fix
ers: $134.6 m
ratings of the

stment type

Rating

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

48

potential of 
Committees 

cy that divers
xed income i

million in man
 securities in 

Managed a

Bond mutu

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

loss of fair v
of each pla

sifies the plan
investments a
naged accoun
these commi

accounts

al funds

value due to t
an monitor a
n’s risks. Eac
are held in f
nts and $22.2
ngled funds a

Ratings

AAA
AAA/AA+

N/R
AAA/A3
AAA/A3

BAA1/BBB
N/R

(C

the quality of
and select fi
ch manager e
five accounts
2 million in 
are as follows

Perc
of 

Perc
of 

Continued) 

f the fixed 
ixed fund 
employs a 
s and are 
two bond 

s: 

centage
total

13.6%
12.6
0.8
2.5

26.5
36.6
7.1

centage
total

58.8%
24.6
13.3
2.5
0.8

 



 

C
i
e
p
3
e
i
s

M

D
I
D

P

F
e
f
i

(4) Net As

The go
Net ass

 I
i
o
t

 R
c
c

 U
p

In the 
availab

Concentratio
individual ma
each portfolio
portfolio. Equ
35%), small c
estate securiti
in mutual fun
single issuer. 

Government 
Municipal iss
Corporate bo
Domestic equ
International 
Domestic rea
Commodities
Private Equit
Cash and cas

Foreign Cur
equities. Fore
fair value of 
international e

ssets/Fund B

overnmentwid
sets are catego

Invested in C
infrastructure
of debt that a
the balance in

Restricted N
contributors, 
constitutional

Unrestricted
project or oth

fund financ
ble or have be

N

on of Credit R
anagement co
o. Combined 
uity investmen
cap domestic
ies shall be 9%
nds and inves

Inves

securities
sues

onds
uities
equities

al estate secur
s
ty
h equivalents

Total

rrency Risk 
eign currency

an investme
equities are d

alances 

de and busine
orized as inve

Capital Asset
, into one com

are attributabl
n this category

et Assets – T
or laws or re

l provisions o

 Net Assets 
her purpose. 

cial statement
een earmarke

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

Risk – Fixed 
ntract. This a
target alloca
nts shall be 3

cs (10% to 20
% to 21% of 

stment pools. 

stment type

rities

s

– The City 
y risk is the ri

nt. The City 
enominated in

ss-type activi
ested in capita

ts, Net of Rel
mponent of n
le to the acqu
y. 

This category
egulations of 
r enabling leg

– This categ

ts, reservatio
d for specific

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

49

income secur
allows a wide
tion for fixed
9% to 87% o
0%), and inte

f the portfolio
There are no

is exposed to
isk that chan
does not ha

n U.S. dollars

ities fund fina
al assets (net 

lated Debt –
et assets. Acc
uisition, cons

y presents exte
other govern

gislation. 

gory represen

ons segregate
c purposes. Th

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

rities guidelin
e variety of m
d income sec
of the portfoli
ernational eq

o. They may b
o individual i

$

$

o foreign cur
ges in exchan

ave policy re
s. 

ancial stateme
of related deb

This category
cumulated dep
struction, or i

ernal restricti
nments and re

nts net assets

e portions of
he various re

nes are govern
management st

urities shall b
io with large 

quities (9% to
be held indivi
investments g

Fair value

53,226,263 
3,921,934 

99,665,561 
248,845,850 

98,175,613 
106,381,144 

37,090,123 
3,866,754 

30,242,230 

681,415,472 

rrency risk r
nge rates wil

elated to fore

ents utilize a n
bt), restricted

y groups all c
preciation an
improvement 

ions imposed 
estrictions im

s of the City 

f fund balanc
eserves are est

(C

ned by each m
tyles, thus div
be 12% to 28
cap domestic

o 32%). Dom
idually or com
greater than 5

Perce
allo

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  

related to inte
ll adversely im
eign currency

net assets pre
d, and unrestri

capital assets, 
d outstanding
of these asse

by creditors,
mposed by law

not restricte

ce that are e
tablished by 

Continued) 

manager’s 
versifying 
8% of the 
cs (20% to 
mestic real 
mmingled 
5% with a 

entage
cated

7.8%
0.6

14.6
36.6
14.4
15.6
5.4
0.6
4.4

100.0%

 

ernational 
mpact the 

y risk. All 

esentation. 
icted. 

including 
g balances 
ets reduce 

, grantors, 
w through 

d for any 

either not 
actions of 



 

the Co
Decem

 E
n

 I

 D

 P

(5) Specia

The Ci
require
in plac

ouncil and m
mber 31, 2010

Encumbrance
not been recei

Inventories – 

Debt service –

Perpetual car

al Assessmen

ity did not o
ements in the 
e that will ult

N

management a
, reservations

es – to reflect 
ived. 

to reflect the 

– to reflect th

re – to reflect 

t Note Payab

obtain a note
special asses

timately be as

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

and can be in
s of fund balan

the outstandi

portion of as

he portion of a

the portion o

ble 

e for 2010, a
ssment fund f
ssessed to the

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

50

ncreased, red
nce are descr

ing contractu

ssets that do n

assets that are

of assets that a

as there were
for the purpos
e benefited pro

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

duced, or elim
ibed as follow

al obligations

not represent a

e held for pay

are held for p

e sufficient fu
se of meeting
operty owner

minated by s
ws: 

s for which go

available spen

yment of debt 

erpetual care 

funds availabl
g obligations t
s. 

(C

similar action

oods and serv

ndable resour

service. 

costs. 

le to fund th
to contractors

Continued) 

ns. As of 

vices have 

rces. 

he current 
s for work 



 

(6) Bonds 

The fol

Governm
Bond

G
A

Sp
Sp
R
D

Spec
pa

Leas
pa

Note
Gran
Com
Work

he
Claim
Net p
Postr

Busines
Conv

R
D

 Payable and

llowing is a s

mental activities
ds payable:

General obligation
Annexed general 

bonds
pecial tax revenu
pecial obligation
evenue bonds

Deferred amounts
Unamortized p
Unamortized d
Loss on refund

Total bon

cial assessment n
ayable
e-purchase contr
ayable
es payable
nts payable

mpensated absenc
kers’ compensat
ealthcare claims
ms and judgmen
pension obligatio
retirement benef

Total gov
long-t
liabili

ss-type activities
vention Center H
evenue bonds

Deferred amounts
Unamortized p
Unamortized d
Loss on refund

N

d Other Long

summary of lo

s:

n bonds $
obligation

ue bonds
n bonds

s:
premium
discount
ding

nds payable

notes

racts

ces
tion and

nts payable
on
fit obligation

vernmental
term
ities 1,

s:
Hotel:

s:
premium
discount
ding

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

g-Term Obli

ong-term liab

Balances at
January 1,

2010

531,695,000  

14,134,194  
47,825,000  
63,047,858  

2,065,000  

35,807,018  
(103,153)

(34,325,256)

660,145,661  

257,000  

107,131,168  
2,658,233  
3,200,000  

58,539,540  

25,923,371  
941,435  

109,583,654  
54,216,989  

,022,597,051  

109,750,000  

2,886,406  
—  

(4,069,344)

108,567,062  

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

51

igations 

ility transacti

Issuances
or other
additions

44,450,000

660,000
—
—
—

2,435,125
(346,191)

(2,573,113)

44,625,821

—

36,035,000
—

19,975,750
—

4,218,636
4,407,565

37,182,680
27,440,318

173,885,770

37,000,000

—
(250,660)

—

36,749,340

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

ions for the ye

Retiremen
or other

reduction

  52,045,0

  12,714,1
—  2,315,0
—  1,251,4
—  145,0

  2,307,8
) (12,7
) (2,395,1

  68,370,6

—  257,0

  2,068,2
—  229,9

  2,825,0
—  897,4

  
  
  
  

  74,648,1

  315,0

—  118,4
) (3

—  (166,9

  266,1

ear ended Dec

nts Balan
r Decemb
ns 20

000  524,10

94  2,08
000  45,5
492  61,79
000  1,92

843  35,93
17) (43
82) (34,50

630  636,40

000  

248  141,09
916  2,42
000  20,35
404  57,64

—  30,14
—  5,34
—  146,76
—  81,65

98  1,121,83

000  146,43

417  2,76
49) (25
47) (3,90

21  145,05

(C

cember 31, 20

ces at Am
ber 31, wi
10

00,000  30

80,000  
10,000  2
96,366  1
20,000  

34,300  
36,627) 
03,187) 

00,852  35

—  

97,920  4
28,317  
50,750  2
42,136  2

42,007  10
49,000  5
66,334  
57,307  

34,623  61

35,000  

67,989  
50,311) 
02,397) 

50,281  

Continued) 

010: 

mount due
ithin one

year

0,845,000  

840,000  
2,390,000  
1,300,878  

65,000  

—  
—  
—  

5,440,878  

—  

4,818,875  
237,505  

2,287,000  
2,882,107  

0,752,005  
5,349,000  

—  
—  

1,767,370  

470,000  

—  
—  
—  

470,000  

 



 

Park
Le

D

W

Pe
Po

Sewe
R

N
Sp

C
W

Pe
Po

Nonmaj
Leas

pa
Defe

U
Com
Work

he
Pens
Postr

ob

ing Facilities Fu
ease-purchase co

payable
Deferred amounts

Unamortized p
Unamortized d
Loss on refund

Workers’ compen
healthcare claim

ension obligatio
ostretirement be

obligation

er Revenue Fund
evenue bonds

Plus unamortiz
premium

Notes payable
pecial obligation

Plus unamortiz
premium

ompensated abs
Workers’ compen

healthcare claim
ension obligatio
ostretirement be

obligation

jor business-type
e-purchase contr
ayable
erred amounts:

Unamortized prem
mpensated absenc

kers’ compensat
ealthcare claims
sion obligation
retirement benef
bligation

Total bus
activit

Total all 

N

und:
ontracts

$
s:
premium
discount
ding
nsation and
ms
n
nefit

d:

zed

n bonds
zed

ences
nsation and
ms
n
nefit

e activities:
racts 

mium
ces
tion and

fit

siness-type
ties

funds $ 1,

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

Balances at
January 1,

2010

44,085,000  

53,005  
(8,029) 

(511,256) 

15,780  
43,453  

33,059  

43,711,012  

82,095,000  

806,115  
32,628,407  
18,792,142  

160,917  
1,501,024  

1,072,571  
2,953,403  

2,246,934  

142,256,513  

420,000  

2,169  
470,708  

435,989  
1,200,525  

913,353  

3,442,744  

297,977,331  

,320,574,382  

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

52

Issuances
or other
additions

—

—
—
—

—
—

—

—

67,879,570

102,857
6,649,992

—

—
87,695

204,147
1,588,233

1,319,333

77,831,827

—

—
20,204

37,634
138,872

148,987

345,697

114,926,864

288,812,634

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

Retiremen
or other

reduction

—  2,470,0

—  7,0
—  (9
—  (64,8

—  6,9
—  29,1

—  21,8

—  2,469,0

  1,900,0

  31,1
  32,628,4

—  563,5

—  7,3
  

  
  

  

  35,130,4

—  25,0

—  1
  92,1

  7,7
  148,7

  127,3

  401,1

  38,266,7

  112,914,9

nts Balan
r Decemb
ns 20

000  41,6

027  4
54) 
87) (44

985  
17  

802  

090  41,24

000  148,07

94  87
407  6,64
508  18,22

315  15
—  1,58

—  1,27
—  4,54

—  3,56

424  184,95

000  39

57  
54  39

705  46
718  1,19

377  93

11  3,38

746  374,63

944  1,496,47

(C

ces at Am
ber 31, wi
10

15,000  2

45,978  
(7,075) 
46,369) 

8,795  
14,336  

11,257  

41,922  2

74,570  5

77,778  
49,992  
28,634  

53,602  
88,719  

76,718  
41,636  

66,267  

57,916  6

95,000  

2,012  
98,758  

65,918  
90,679  

34,963  

87,330  

37,449  9

72,072  71

Continued) 

mount due
ithin one

year

2,560,000  

—  
—  
—  

3,137  
—  

—  

2,563,137  

5,594,570  

—  
—  

589,122  

—  
79,436  

455,420  
—  

—  

6,718,548  

25,000  

—  
19,939  

166,199  
—  

—  

211,138  

9,962,823  

1,730,193  

 



 

Govern

Long-t

Am
$ 21,

16,
30,

205,
31,

42,

26,

46,

75,

17,
37,

7,
11,

8,
35,

8,

nmental Activ

term debt at D

O
mount i
,000,000  11
,000,000  03
,175,000  03
,875,000  04
,660,000  04

,800,000  11

,625,000  10

,785,000  10

,540,000  10

,880,000  07
,050,000  04
,440,000  10
,160,000  10
,510,000  10
,950,000  11
,500,000  11

N

vities 

December 31, 

riginal
ssued

1/15/01 Vario
3/01/03 Vario
3/01/03 G.O. 
4/01/04 G.O. 
4/01/04 Vario

ser
1/15/05 Vario

ser
0/15/06 Vario

ser
0/15/07 Vario

ser
0/30/08 Vario

ser
7/24/08 G.O. 
4/06/09 G.O. 
0/15/09 Vario
0/15/09 Vario
0/15/09 G.O. 
1/10/10 G.O. 
1/18/10 Vario

CITY OF OM

Notes to Basi

Dece

2010 compri

Gen

Issue
ous purpose
ous purpose
– defeasance bond
– defeasance bond

ous purpose – refu
ries
ous purpose – refu
ries
ous purpose – refu
ries
ous purpose – refu
ries
ous purpose – refu
ries
– defeasance bond
– defeasance bond

ous purpose
ous purpose
– defeasance bond
– defeasance bond

ous purpose

Total general obli

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

53

ises the follow

neral Obligation B

Eff
inter

pay
semia

3.00
2.75

ds 1.50
ds 5.25

und
2.00

und
4.00

und
4.00

und
4.00

und
5.00

ds 3.75
ds 3.125

2.00
4.229

ds 2.00
ds 2.00

.70 

gation bonds

BRASKA 

Statements 

10 

wing individu

Bonds

fective
est rate
yable S

annually
 – 4.75 2002
 – 5.00 2003
 – 4.30 2003
 – 5.25 2012

 – 4.50 2005

 – 4.75 2006

 – 4.25 2007

 – 4.75 2008

 – 5.74 2009
 – 5.00 2009

5 – 5.00 2010
 – 3.00 2010
 – 5.721 2018
 – 5.00 2010
 – 4.50 2011
– 5.00 2011

ual issues: 

F
Series d

due ca
2 – 2021 2
3 – 2022 2
3 – 2021 2
2 – 2027 2

5 – 2024 2

6 – 2025 2

7 – 2026 2

8 – 2027 2

9 – 2028 2
9 – 2025 2
0 – 2025 2
0 – 2017 n
8 – 2029 2
0 – 2026 2
1 – 2030 2
1 – 2030 2

(C

First
date Dece

allable
2011 $
2013
2013 1
2014 20

2014 1

2015 3

2016 1

2017 4

2018 6
2018 1
2019 3
none
2019 1
2019
2020 3
2020
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1,050,000 
2,525,000 

16,595,000 
05,875,000 

18,975,000 

32,100,000 

18,915,000 

41,295,000 

69,800,000 
16,095,000 
30,315,000 

6,510,000 
11,160,000 

8,440,000 
35,950,000 

8,500,000 

24,100,000 

 



 

Am

$ 2,
1,

1,
2,
2,
3,
1,
4,
2,

O
mount i

,500,000  05
,245,000  05
780,000  12

,500,000  06
,950,000  02
,750,000  06
,750,000  10
,000,000  11
,150,000  10
,500,000  11

N

riginal
ssued

5/02/06 S.I.D
5/01/08 S.I.D
2/01/07 S.I.D
6/15/06 S.I.D
2/15/07 S.I.D
6/15/06 S.I.D
0/01/07 S.I.D
1/01/06 S.I.D
0/01/06 S.I.D
1/15/06 S.I.D
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Gen

Issue

A
D. #272
D. #353
D. #406
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D. #449
D. #459
D. #459
D. #461
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D. #498

Total annexed are
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neral Obligation B

Eff
inter

pay
semia

Annexed Area Bo
3.65
3.10

6.
4.00
3.75
4.15
4.40
4.10
4.10
4.00

ea bonds

gation and annexe
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Bonds

fective
est rate
yable S

annually

onds
 – 4.45 2007
 – 4.20 2009
.25  2008
 – 5.25 2006
 – 5.05 2007
 – 5.15 2007
 – 5.35 2008
 – 5.00 2007
 – 5.15 2007
 – 5.00 2007

ed area bonds

F
Series d

due ca

7 – 2016 2
9 – 2018 2
8 - 2020 2
6 – 2026 2
7 – 2027 2
7 – 2026 2
8 – 2027 2
7 – 2026 2
7 – 2031 2
7 – 2026 2

(C

First
date Dece

allable

2011 $
2013
2012
2011
2011
2011
2013
2011
2011
2011
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ember 31,
2010

245,000 
1,120,000 

120,000 
50,000 
85,000 
60,000 

265,000 
20,000 
20,000 
95,000 

2,080,000 

26,180,000 

 



 

A

$ 6

8

20

1

4

2

4

5

A

$
1

Ori
mount iss

,195,000  11/

,670,000  02/

,325,000  09/

,095,000  12/

665,000  12/

,075,000  12/

,000,000  03/

,865,000  11/

385,000  10/

,170,000  10/

Ori
mount iss

760,000  03/
,420,000  09/

N

iginal
sued

/02/99 Downto
Rede

/01/02 Riverfro
Proje

/01/04 Perform
Rede

/20/07 Homela
Proje

/20/07 Homela
Proje

/20/07 Various
Rede

/25/08 Special 
Refun

/13/08 Special 
Rede

/29/09 Special 
Rede

/29/09 Special 
Rede
Serie

iginal
sued

/01/04 Highwa
/30/06 Highwa
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Spec

Issue

own Northeast
evelopment Project
ont Redevelopmen
ect Series 2002A
ming Arts Complex
evelopment Bonds
and Redevelopmen
ect Series 2007A
and Redevelopmen
ect Series 2007B
s Projects
evelopment Series 

Tax Revenue
nding Series 2008
Tax Revenue

evelopment Series 
Tax Revenue

evelopment Series 
Tax Revenue

evelopment Taxabl
es 2009A (BAB)

Governme

Issue

ay Allocation
ay Allocation
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cial Tax Revenue

E
int

p
sem

t 4.0
nt

5.1
x

2.
nt

4.
nt

4.

2007 3.

8 3.

2008 4.

2009A

le
1.1

ental Activities Re

E
int

p
sem

1.
3.

BRASKA 
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e Bonds

Effective
terest rate
payable

miannually

% – 6.25% 200

125 – 5.50 200

50 – 5.00 200

00 – 4.25 200

50 – 4.70 200

60 – 5.13 200

03 – 4.32 200

00 – 5.25 200

3.00  201

59 – 6.022 201

evenue Bonds

Effective
terest rate
payable

miannually

20 – 3.65 200
85 – 4.45 200

Series
due

00 – 2019

02 – 2031

05 – 2024

07 – 2016

07 – 2011

07 – 2027

09 – 2013

09 – 2028

11 – 2012

10 – 2023

Series
due

04 – 2014
07 – 2026

(C

First
date De

callable

2009 $

Various

2014 1

None

None

2017

None

2018

None

2019

$ 4

First
date De

callable

2009 $
2011

$

Continued) 

cember 31,
2010

3,575,000  

8,670,000  

16,920,000  

1,095,000  

75,000  

4,060,000  

1,230,000  

4,530,000  

385,000  

4,970,000  

45,510,000  

cember 31,
2010

500,000  
1,420,000  

1,920,000  

 



 

Am

$ 2,0
53,

109,7

37,0

29,9

33,

34,0

Am

$ 29

38

Busine

Long-t

Am

$ 22

Or
mount is

010,000  05/
170,000  11/

750,000  05/

000,000  12/

975,000  12/

800,000  11/

079,570  11/

Or
mount is

9,800,000  02/

8,535,000  03/

ess-Type Acti

term debt at D

Or
mount is

2,200,000  02/

N

riginal
ssued

/20/03 Elkhorn
/15/06 Sanitar

Reve
/15/07 Conven

Reve
/15/10 Conven

Reve
/10/09 Sanitar

Reve
/18/10 Sanitar

Reve
/18/10 Sanitar

Reve

riginal
ssued

/01/02 Riverfr
Proje

/25/08 Riverfr
Refu

ivities 

December 31, 

Special Obl

riginal
ssued

/01/02 Riverfr
Proje
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n Sewer Revenue
ry Sewer System
enue Bonds Series
ntion Center Hotel
enue, Series 2007A
ntion Center Hotel
enue, Series 2010B
ry Sewer System
enue Series 2009B
ry Sewer System
enue, Series 2010A
ry Sewer System
enue, Series 2010B

Special Obligati

Issue

ront Redevelopmen
ect Series 2002A
ront Redevelopmen
und Series 2008

2010 compri

ligation Bonds – B

Issue

ront Redevelopmen
ect Series 2002A

MAHA, NEB

ic Financial S

ember 31, 201

56

prise Funds Reve

Ef
inte

p
semi

1.25%

s 2006 4.0
l
A 4.0
l
B (BAB) 3.90

B (BAB) 1.04

A 2.00

B (RZDB) .993

ion Bonds – Gove

Ef
inte

p
semi

nt
4.00%

nt
4.0

ises the follow

Business-Type A

Ef
inte

p
semi

nt
4.00%
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enue Bonds

ffective
erest rate
ayable S
iannually

% – 3.70% 200

00 – 4.50 200

00 – 5.00 201

05 – 7.125 201

4 – 6.153 201

0 – 3.625 201

3 – 5.076 201

ernmental Activit

ffective
erest rate
ayable S
iannually

% – 5.50% 200

00 – 6.40 200

wing individu

ctivities (Sewer R

ffective
erest rate
ayable S
iannually

% – 5.50% 200

Series
due ca

03 – 2013

06 – 2036

0 – 2035

6 – 2040

0 – 2039

1 – 2026

1 – 2040

ties

Series
due ca

03 – 2032

09 – 2026

ual issues: 

Revenue Fund)

Series
due ca

03 – 2032

(C

First
date Dec

allable

2008 $

2016 5

2017 10

2010 3

2019 2

2010 3

2010 3

$ 29

First
date Dec

allable

2012 $ 2

None 3

$ 6

First
date Dec

allable

2012 $ 1
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cember 31,
2010

650,000  

50,250,000  

09,435,000  

37,000,000  

29,295,000  

33,800,000  

34,079,570  

94,509,570  

cember 31,
2010

24,471,366  

37,325,000  

61,796,366  

 

cember 31,
2010

18,228,634  

 



 

As of 
years a

Year e
201
201
201
201
201
201
202
202
203

Year e
201
201
201
201
201
201
202
202
203
203

Genera
improv

December 31
are as follows

ending Decem
11
12
13
14
15
16 – 2020
21 – 2025
26 – 2030
31 – 2035

ending Decem
11
12
13
14
15
16 – 2020
21 – 2025
26 – 2030
31 – 2035
36 – 2040

al obligation b
vements. Thes

N

1, 2010, the d
: 

mber 31:

mber 31:

bonds have b
se bonds repr
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requirements 

Princ

$ 35,440
39,250
40,362
39,25
38,834

187,000
170,080

76,257
8,92

$ 635,406

Princi

$ 6,653
7,009
7,652
6,576
6,895

41,334
51,880
66,297
88,208
30,230

$ 312,738

d by the vote
edness suppor
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of the City 

Gover
cipal

0,878   
0,264   
2,515   
8,363   
4,942   
0,352   
0,000   
7,760   
1,292   

6,366   

Busin
ipal

3,692   
9,736   
2,485   
6,637   
5,058   
4,648   
0,000   
7,240   
8,708   
0,000   

8,204   

ers and issued
rted by the ful

for principal

rnmental act
Interest

29,907,225 
28,265,102 
26,647,366 
24,980,528 
23,297,296 
89,803,779 
45,201,550 

9,166,268 
463,157 

277,732,271 

ness-type acti
Interest

14,215,835 
14,860,185 
14,655,246 
14,421,065 
14,204,562 
66,559,816 
56,842,325 
42,374,880 
23,086,325 
5,491,991 

266,712,230 

d by the City
ll faith and cr

(C

l and interest 

tivities
T

  65,3
  67,5
  67,0
  64,2
  62,1
  276,8
  215,2
  85,4
  9,3

  913,1

ivities
To

  20,8
  21,8
  22,3
  20,9
  21,0
  107,8
  108,7
  108,6
  111,2
  35,7

  579,4

y for various m
redit of the Ci

Continued) 

in future 

otal

348,103   
515,366   
009,881   
238,891   
132,238   
804,131   
281,550   
424,028   
384,449   

138,637   

 

otal

69,527   
69,921   
07,731   

997,702   
099,620   

94,464   
722,325   
672,120   
295,033   
721,991   

450,434   

 

municipal 
ity. 



 

Notes P

Notes 
three lo
with in

Year e
201
201
201
201
201
201
202

Year e
201
201
201
201
201
201
202
202

Grants

The Ci
follows

Payable 

payable cons
oan contracts

nterest rates ra

ending Decem
11
12
13
14
15
16 – 2020
21 – 2025

ending Decem
11
12
13
14
15
16 – 2020
21 – 2025
26 – 2030

s Payable 

ity has entere
s: 

N

sists of a loan
s between the
anging from 0

mber 31:

mber 31:

ed into variou

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016 – 2020
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n contract be
e City and th
0% to 3%. Ma

us agreement

0
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etween the C
he Nebraska 
aturities of th

Princ

$ 237
24
14
153
15
880
60

$ 2,42

Princ

$ 29
29
29
299
304

1,59
1,716
1,85

$ 6,649

ts with not-fo
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City and the U
Department o

he notes payab

Gover
cipal

7,505   
5,346   
8,019   
3,203   
8,568   
0,128   
5,548   

8,317   

Busin
cipal

5,418   
1,279   
5,550   
9,908   
4,352   
1,596   
6,818   
5,071   

9,992   

or-profit orga

$

$

U.S. Army C
of Environm
ble are as foll

rnmental act
Interest

83,288 
75,447 
68,130 
62,947 
57,581 

200,619 
42,899 

590,911 

ness-type acti
Interest

93,429 
97,568 
93,296 
88,939 
84,495 

352,636 
227,414 

89,158 

1,126,935 

anizations to p

2,287,000
2,300,000
2,250,000
1,635,250
1,725,200

10,153,300

20,350,750

(C

orps of Engi
ental Quality
ows: 

tivities
T

  3
  3
  2
  2
  2
  1,0
  6

  3,0

ivities
T

  3
  3
  3
  3
  3
  1,9
  1,9
  1,9

  7,7

provide grant

0   
0   
0   
0   
0   
0   

0   

 

Continued) 

neers and 
y (NDEQ) 

otal

320,793   
320,793   
216,149   
216,150   
216,149   
080,747   
648,447   

019,228   

 

otal

388,847   
388,847   
388,846   
388,847   
388,847   
944,232   
944,232   
944,229   

776,927   

 

t funds as 



 

Tax In

At Dec
increm
within 
base is
value 
develop
during 
propert
is not l
of paid

Tax inc
listed a

O

$ 3

14
3

4
1

11
1

1
1

2

ncrement Fin

cember 31, 20
ment financing

those district
 frozen at the
are remitted 
per expressly
the 15-year p

ty values.  Th
liable for the o
d taxes. 

crement notes
as follows and

Original
amount

3,440,000   
600,000   

4,515,000   
3,500,000   

620,000   
4,649,620   
1,420,380   
1,585,000   
1,464,000   

594,000   
1,224,000   
1,135,000   

290,000   
479,000   
377,000   
540,000   

2,650,000   
94,140   

200,000   
374,000   

88,830   
500,000   

N

ancing Notes

010, $265,92
g allows citi
ts that will ge
e predevelopm

as payment 
y limit the C
period. At th

he related tax 
outstanding d

s and bonds o
d on the follow

FNB Data 
FNB Data 
FNB Towe
FNB Towe
Child Care
Riverfront 
Riverfront 
Convention
Riverfront 
Riverfront 
Westin Aqu
Food Servi
Orchard M
Lozier III
Drake Will
Rivergate A
First Data R
Caldwell L
Upstream B
Securities B
Kellom Pla
Premier Pla
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s and Bonds

5,126 of tax 
es to create 

enerate public
ment level, an

on the note
City’s commi
he end of the 

increment di
debt. The City

outstanding at
wing pages:

Tax Incr

Issue

Center – Seri
Center – Seri

er Project – Se
er Project – Se
e Facility Proj

Redevelopme
Redevelopme

n Center Hote
Place Redeve
Place Redeve
uila
ices of Ameri

Manor

liams Steel
Apartments
Resources

Limited Partne
Brewing Co.
Building Ltd.
aza (26th St. L
ace Developm
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increment fin
special distr

c/private-secto
nd taxes gene
es and bonds
itment for de
15-year perio
stricts are not

y’s responsibi

t December 3

ement Notes

e

ies 1998
ies 2004
eries 1999A
eries 1999B
ject – Series 2
ent – Series 2
ent – Series 2
el Redevelopm
elopment 200
elopment 200

ica

ership

. Partnership
Limited Ptr.)
ment
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nancing note
ricts and to m
or developme
erated from th
s. The loan 
ebt repaymen
od, the tax ju
t component u
ility for this li

1, 2010 comp

s and Bonds

i

6
6

2003
2A
2B
ment
09A
09B

s and bonds 
make public/

ent. For a peri
he incrementa
agreements b

nt to the incr
urisdiction co
units of the C
iability is lim

prise the follo

Effective
interest rate
at issuance

6.25%
5.90

6.965 – 7.675
6.965 – 7.675

5.00
6.50
6.50

2.5 – 4.85
4.05
7.90
7.00
8.00
9.50
7.00
9.25
8.75
8.00

10.00
10.13

8.00
10.00

9.25

(C

were outstan
/private impr
iod of 15 year
al increases in
between the 
remental tax 
llects on the 

City; therefore
mited only to r

owing individ

Decem
20

% $ 1,0
1

6,4
1,5

2
5
1

8,0
1,3

5

1,4
1
2
5
1

2,1

1
2

4

Continued) 

nding. Tax 
rovements 
rs, the tax 
n assessed 

City and 
collected 
increased 

e, the City 
remittance 

dual issues 

mber 31,
010

54,000   
26,500   
90,000   
60,000   
70,800   
55,350   
69,650   
50,000   
54,000   
60,000   
76,855   
51,477   
27,296   
75,375   
85,212   
55,866   
80,928   
44,208   
44,401   
01,448   
20,175   
91,096   

 



 

O

$
1

7

2

5
2
1

4

Original
amount

42,885   
1,519,000   

424,000   
110,000   
139,000   
195,000   
400,000   

7,200,000   
419,000   
202,000   
243,600   
175,000   
180,225   

76,000   
790,000   
378,000   
918,400   
118,000   
894,600   

2,087,400   
186,000   
180,000   

5,972,725   
2,098,000   
1,553,000   

77,950   
495,000   
100,000   
285,000   
100,000   

50,000   
71,000   

4,100,000   
202,000   
238,000   
150,000   
285,000   

N

Ames/Font
Downtown
Bull Durha
Grace Plaz
Riverview 
Campus fo
American L
Aksarben F
Spagetti Bu
Riley Build
Village De
Immaculate
Robbins Sc
L&R Holdi
Bemis Com
Joslyn Loft
St. Joseph 
South Oma
707 South 
1023 Jones
E.A. Peder
1234 South
Ames Cent
Airlite Plas
Hilton Gar
Roman Ma
Abbot Driv
Meredith M
1613 Farna
Cox/Subur
T&B Prope
Big Jim’s P
Omaha Wo
Chanell Co
Cohen Squ
Fullwood S
O’Keefe E

Redevel
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tenelle LLC
n Northeast
am
za/Twentieth P
Meadows
r Hope
Laboratories
Future Trust
uilding Devel
ding LLC
evelopment – 
e Conception
chool LLP
ings, LLC

mpany, Inc.
fts Limited Pa
Terrace Apts

aha Affordabl
11th Street L
s Street LLP
rsen Redevelo
h 13th Street L
ter/Benson Pl
stics Compan
den Inn

arble Products
ve Plaza Rede
Manor
am Street LLC
rban Electric R
erties, LLC
Plus Gas & C
orld Herald
onstruction
uared LLC
Square Apartm
levator Comp
lopment
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ement Notes

e

Plaza

lopment

Lake Street L
n School

artnership
s. LLC
le Housing C

Limited Prtnr.

opment
LLC
laza

ny

s, Inc.
evelopment

C
Redevelopme

Convenience S

ments Ltd Ptn
pany Inc.
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s and Bonds

i

LLC

orp

ent

Store

nrshp

Effective
interest rate
at issuance

9.00%
8.00
9.00
8.50
9.00
2.71
9.00
7.42
9.00
8.00
8.00
8.00
9.00
8.50
8.50
8.00
8.00
8.50
7.50
7.25
8.00
8.78
8.00
7.75
9.00
8.00
8.00

10.00
8.50
8.50
9.50

9.375
9.00
8.00
8.75
8.75

8.50

(C

Decem
20

% $
7
2
1
2

5
1,8

1
2
1
2
1

1,6
3
6
1
9

1,8
3
3

9,4
3
8

9

1
1

1
2,4

2
1
2

1

Continued) 

mber 31,
010

48,152   
58,367   
69,828   
00,753   
91,585   
72,231   
16,168   
80,710   
22,061   
63,138   
69,422   
10,885   
61,160   
25,425   
51,498   
92,033   
11,119   
28,147   
45,965   
02,938   
00,899   
60,218   
63,399   
27,559   
31,752   
83,438   
15,189   
87,421   
50,813   
17,140   
47,681   
11,850   
73,321   
44,556   
89,119   
05,275   

47,939   

 



 

O

$

1

1

1

1

2
4

1
1
1
8

Original
amount

307,200   
355,000   
438,000   
106,800   
553,000   

1,600,000   
602,498   
125,000   
120,000   

86,600   
1,108,538   

243,000   
790,000   

1,800,000   
580,000   

1,335,000   
721,000   
526,000   
150,000   

856,000   
600,000   
125,000   

2,750,000   
4,200,000   

777,000   

450,000   
1,495,000   
1,840,000   
1,150,000   
8,490,000   

510,750   
525,000   
232,000   
150,000   

108,000   

N

Ames Aven
Village De
Turner Par
Bradford In
Cintas Gro

Busines
Drake Cou
Signa Deve
Kellom Vil
Kellom Ga
Armored K
Phillips Re
King’s Her
1000 Dodg
Livestock E
Miami Hei
Greater Om
Airlite Plas
California 
QRS (Qual

Redevel
Hy-Vee, In
Twenty Fo
701 South 
Courtland P
Riverfront 
1111 Jones

Kaneko)
DTG LLC 
National Pa
Model ‘T’ 
T.S. McSh
Sorenson P
Sutherland
U.S. Food 
The Villag
5217 South

Redevel
Underwood
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Issue

nue LLC
evelopment
k LLC Redev
nvestment Gr

oup (North Om
s Park)

urt Apts. (710 
elopment Svc
lla Limited

ardens Limite
Knights
ealty LLC
ritage Estates
ge Street LLC
Exchange Bu
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maha Packing
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Effective
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8.00
8.00
9.00

8.50
7.00
7.50
7.25
7.25
5.00
5.00
8.00
6.50
7.00
5.70
6.00
6.00
7.50

8.25
7.00
7.00
8.00
8.00
5.25

7.00
7.00
5.50
7.00
7.00
6.00
6.50
8.00
4.90
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3
5
2

8
1,5
1,1

1
1

8
2
6
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4
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4
5

2
9
8
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5

1,0
1,6
1,6
9,4

6
5
2

1
1
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64,096   

10,263   
73,810   
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275,000   
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3,573,281   
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1,349,000   

239,817   
104,000   
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160,000   
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6.00
7.00
7.00
7.00
6.50
8.00
7.25
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6.00
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7.25
7.25
8.00
8.50
6.50

8.50
6.25
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7.50
8.25
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7.50
7.62
7.62
7.62
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7.25
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Decem
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5
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1,0
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61,934   
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58,843   
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53,629   
15,248   
22,911   
73,516   
55,312   
99,835   
32,736   
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24,665   
34,645   
69,068   
61,488   
04,747   
35,840   
19,630   
51,328   

52,083   

50,522   

88,978   
47,462   

88,671   

58,722   
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844,000   
293,500   
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8.00

6.00

—
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5
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1
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3
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2

7
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1,7
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4
2
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2
1
5

1,5
2
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3
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97,669   
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31,561   
01,051   
30,675   

26,176   
67,346   

86,122   

10,964   

16,023   

51,638   

81,559   

71,030   
65,684   
48,330   
79,320   
11,531   
06,581   
89,923   
55,619   
36,355   
66,297   
83,769   
04,369   
78,354   
35,821   
15,000   
69,909   
26,035   
00,006   
23,019   
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7.00
8.00
8.00
6.50
7.50
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5
62

2,16
73
69
42

1,06
78
44
44
22

$ 265,92

including ann
clude bonds a
ersonal prope
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28,715   
63,715   
38,509   
98,537   
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N
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2004 Conven
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S.I.D. #423
S.I.D. #423
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S.I.D. #459
S.I.D. #461
S.I.D. #470
S.I.D. #498
S.I.D. #534
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bonds

enue Bonds

$
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onds by placin
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101,605,000
10,500,000

7,560,000

119,665,000

1,390,000
480,000

1,200,000
110,000

2,610,000
2,545,000
3,075,000

925,000
4,080,000
2,065,000
2,825,000

21,305,000

140,970,000
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241,875,000
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ainst the new 
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ng the procee
ld bonds. Acc
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0   
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0   

 

0   
0   
0   
0   
0   
0   
0   
0   
0   
0   
0   

0   

0   
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202
203
203

Less a

The Ci
that ex
are det
paymen

s 

ity is leasing 
s times throug
is approxim

ements of cert
ion to purcha

d lease obligat
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N
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er capital leas
.10% to 6.19%
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G
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equal to the 
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Governmenta
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10,967,337 
11,011,688 
10,968,751 
10,987,525 
10,953,942 
51,398,062 
42,362,464 
36,969,444 
36,135,484 
7,435,015 

229,189,712 

88,091,792 

141,097,920 

oining Hall o
mission. The a

tion and main
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agreements e
et book value
qual the deb
facilities. The
total of all r

e-purchase ag
31, 2010: 

al Busine
activ

  4,5
  4,5
  4,5
  4,3
  4,3
  16,8
  10,2
  9,2
  5,4
  

  64,2
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203,549   
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010,000   

 

der a lease 
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tual rental 
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Receiv
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Hotel mo
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Cable TV
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Motor ve
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Donor’s T
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vables 

vables at Dec
ing the applic
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otel occupation tax
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nt Tax

V and Gas
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ehicle tax
ssessment
distribution
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rty tax receiva
rty tax receiva
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rs Trust (down
rty tax receiva
al assessments
s (general fun
s (other gover
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cable allowanc

Debt
General service

76,031,750 51,471,273
2,713,700 —

378,044 —

193,024 —
1,667,970 —

1,346,692 —
837,756 —
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682,521 —
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1,427,261 —
— —
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City’s major
lectible accou

Total
governmental

major activities

71,526 133,374,549
— 2,713,700
— 378,044

— 193,024
— 1,667,970

— 1,346,692
— 837,756

3,550 76,991
— 682,521

34,347 5,502,874
— 1,427,261
— 21,500,000

39,390 11,603,335

48,813 181,304,717
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nt period. At 
 follows: 

funds)
ds)
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r funds and 
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Fund Fund

—
—
—

—
—

—
—
—
—
—
—
—
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U

$

$
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d Fund No

— —
— —
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— —
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— —
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444 2,519,105
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2,868,527  
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5,871,526  
2,634,347  
2,952,590  

15,115,137  

178,445,150  
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Total
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— —
— —

— —
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180,117 3,018,712

evenues not c
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(16) Subsequent Events 

Above average snowpack and record spring rains in the Missouri River watershed have caused extensive 
flooding along the Nebraska /Iowa section of the Missouri River. Water releases from upstream dams are 
expected to remain at record levels until this September. The City and its properties are protected by 
13 miles of levees. Thus far, the levees are holding and are expected to withstand the increased river flow. 
The City has incurred about $3 million of expenses to enhance the levee system and increase water 
pumping capacity. The City is covered by a $75 million insurance policy and the State has submitted a 
disaster declaration to the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) on behalf of the City. We 
expect these proactive costs to be covered by our insurance coverage or the FEMA declaration. 

On March 9, 2011, the City of Omaha sold a baseball stadium commonly known as Omaha’s Johnny 
Rosenblatt Stadium to Donors’ Trust, a Nebraska nonprofit corporation. The stadium was situated on 
approximately 36 acres of land and located at 1202 Bert Murphy Avenue, Omaha, Nebraska. The sales 
price was $12,000,000. The City used these proceeds plus $604,638 to advance refund and defease 
$11,930,000 of outstanding lease purchase bonds issued for stadium improvements. No other stadium 
related debt remains outstanding. 

(17) MECA 

(a) Nature of Operations 

MECA was incorporated under the Nebraska Nonprofit Corporation Act, Neb. Stat §21-1901, et seq. 
in the State of Nebraska. Formal operations of MECA commenced on August 25, 2000, when the 
City approved an Agreement and Lease between the City and MECA to implement the Convention 
Center/Arena Redevelopment Plan, to provide bond funds to MECA, to allow MECA to supervise 
the design and construction of the Convention Center/Arena Facility, to allow MECA to operate the 
Convention Center/Arena and Parking Facility for 99 years, and to provide a multiyear operating 
subvention from the City. The agreement and lease required the City to make annual subvention 
payments to MECA, initially to fund start-up, preconstruction, planning, and other preoperational 
activities, and thereafter to help offset anticipated annual operating losses. In 2004, MECA amended 
its agreement and lease with the City to provide for the repayment of construction funds. In 2006, 
MECA further amended the agreement and lease. Under the amended agreement and lease, the City 
agreed to transfer to MECA the final subvention amount of $1,815,000 in 2008. No further 
subvention payments are required under the agreement. 

Title to the facility and all related infrastructure assets are vested with the City. Construction 
activities were principally funded by private donations and general obligation bonds of the City 
(the Project Funds). Construction costs, bond proceeds, and payments are not reflected in MECA’s 
financial statements as these assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenditures are accounted for 
separately by the City. Construction was completed and operations commenced for the Qwest Center 
Omaha facility during 2004. 

In June 2004, MECA Authority entered into a facility management services and lease agreement 
with the City, to manage and operate the Civic Auditorium, the Music Hall, and the Mancuso Center 
(collectively referred to as the Civic Auditorium) for a three-year period beginning July 1, 2004. The 
City and MECA are required under the agreement to make advances to fund Civic Auditorium 
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operations if the facility operates at a loss. Any advances made by MECA during the term of this 
agreement will be repaid through operating profits of the Civic Auditorium or through a subvention 
payment by the City in 2013. In March 2006, MECA and the City extended the Civic Auditorium 
lease agreement through June 30, 2012. 

In May 2008, MECA entered into the Sixth Amendment to the Agreement and Lease with the City to 
implement the Downtown Omaha Stadium Project Plan by expanding the property currently leased 
to MECA under the agreement to provide adequate parking, to provide bond and donation funds to 
MECA, to allow MECA to cause the design and construction of the Omaha Baseball Stadium, and to 
allow MECA to operate the Omaha Baseball Stadium and additional parking areas. Construction of 
the stadium is expected to be completed by 2011. MECA also concurrently entered into agreements 
with the City, the National Collegiate Athletic Association, and College World Series, Inc. to clarify 
the terms by which the Men’s College World Series Baseball Championship will be held at the 
Omaha Baseball Stadium for a 25-year term. 

(b) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Reporting Entity – MECA is a component unit of the City, for financial reporting purposes. The 
GASB establishes the criteria used in determining which organizations should be included in 
financial statements. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
require the inclusion of the transactions of government organizations for which an organization is 
financially accountable. 

The extent of financial accountability is based upon several criteria including: appointment of a 
voting majority, imposition of will, financial benefit to or burden on a primary government, and 
financial accountability as a result of fiscal dependency. 

MECA’s financial statements are included in the City’s financial statements as a discretely presented 
component unit. 

Measurement Focus Basis of Accounting – MECA accounts for its operations on the flow of 
economic resources measurement focus and uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, 
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. 
MECA distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
are those revenues that are generated from primary operations. Operating expenses are those that are 
essential to the primary operations of MECA. All other revenues and expenses are nonoperating. 

Accounting Standards – In its accounting and financial reporting, MECA follows the 
pronouncements of the GASB. In addition, MECA follows the pronouncements of all applicable 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting 
Principles Board (APB) Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARBs) of the Committee on 
Accounting Procedure issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless they conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements. 

Revenue Recognition – MECA recognizes its suite license and club seat revenues over the life of the 
agreements. Amounts received in advance are recorded as deferred revenues based on the fair value 
of services to be provided to the licensee, as determined by management. Amounts received in 



CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 31, 2010 

 89 (Continued) 

excess of the fair value are recorded as donation revenue when received. Advance ticket sales, 
parking, facility rental deposits, and other event revenue received in advance are initially recorded as 
deferred revenues, which are recognized as revenues as the events take place or services are 
provided. Naming rights and advertising revenues will be recognized ratably over the life of the 
agreements. 

Use of Estimates – The preparation of MECA’s financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires MECA’s management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – MECA considers all highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable – Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts receivable from various 
events. MECA provides an allowance for doubtful accounts equal to the estimated uncollectible 
amounts. Management regularly reviews the accounts receivable listing to determine uncollectible 
amounts, at which time, any uncollectible receivables will be written off. Recoveries of accounts 
receivable previously written off are recorded when received. 

Capital and Intangible Assets, Net – Capital assets are recorded at cost. Additions, renewals, and 
betterments are capitalized and recorded at cost. Expenses for maintenance and repairs are expensed 
as incurred. The cost and related accumulated depreciation of assets retired or sold is removed from 
the appropriate asset and contra asset accounts, with the resulting gain or loss recognized. 

Depreciation is provided in amounts sufficient to relate the cost of the depreciable assets to 
operations over their estimated service lives on the straight-line method. Building rights are 
amortized over 15 years, leasehold improvements are depreciated over 2 to 25 years and furniture, 
fixtures, and equipment are depreciated over 5 to 10 years. 

Compensated Absences – Eligible employees are entitled to an all-purpose time-off policy to use for 
vacation, illness, or injury, and any personal business. The amount of paid time-off employees 
receive each year increases with the length of their employment, with a maximum accrual of 
35 days. MECA accrues accumulated unpaid time-off pay when earned by the employee. 

Net Assets – Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt – This component of net assets consists 
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and related debt. 

Unrestricted Net Assets – This component of net assets consists of net assets not meeting the 
definition of invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 

Capital Improvements and Repair and Civic Reserves – On June 14, 2007, the MECA Board 
established a Capital Improvement Reserve to be used to fund future upgrades and improvements to 
the facility in excess of $100,000. The MECA Board also established a Repair and Replacement 
Reserve to be used for all other capitalized asset purchases that are under $100,000. Amounts are 
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added to the reserve at the end of each fiscal year. Fifteen percent (15%) of MECA’s net operating 
profit is allocated to the Capital Improvement Reserve and twenty percent (20%) of MECA’s net 
operating profit is allocated to the Repair and Replacement Reserve, with a minimum funding 
requirement of $600,000 per year broken out as follows: $270,000 to the Capital Improvements 
Reserve and $330,000 to the Repair and Replacement Reserve. 

The Civic Auditorium also has a reserve established, which is calculated at 50% of the Civic’s cash 
basis net profit. 

MECA’s reserves at June 30, 2010 are as follows: 

Capital improvement reserve $ 7,677,631   
Repair and replacement reserve 4,632,374   
Civic Auditorium reserve 212,916   

Total deposits $ 12,522,921   

 

Income Taxes – MECA is a tax-exempt 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation. In April 2006, MECA 
received a favorable ruling from the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) in response to a Private Letter 
Ruling request filed in July 2003. The ruling found that MECA is lessening the burdens of the City 
by managing the operations of Qwest Center Omaha. As a result of this finding, the IRS determined 
that the revenues derived from the facility’s operations are not subject to unrelated business income 
tax (UBIT). 

(c) Deposits and Investments 

Bank Deposits – MECA’s bank deposits are collateralized at June 30, 2010 as follows: 

Deposits per bank $ 1,127,911   
Money market 8,944,259   

Total deposits 10,072,170   

FDIC coverage 250,000   

Uninsured and
uncollateralized $ 9,822,170   
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Investments – As of June 30, 2010, MECA’s investments consist of various government agency 
discount notes, commercial paper and brokered certificates of deposit. In addition, MECA has 
various mutual fund investments in a deferred compensation account. MECA management adheres 
to an investment policy approved by the Board of Directors that describes what types of investments 
MECA is able to purchase, minimum rating criteria, reporting, and oversight responsibilities. 

Investments Maturities Credit rating Fair value

Certificates of deposits 7/9/09 – 6/11/10 IDC >or = 200 $ 5,570,000   
Commercial paper 8/21/09 A&P-A1 and Moody’s-P1 5,523,297   
Government discount notes 11/2/09 – 6/11/10 N/A 10,009,025   
Mutual funds None N/A 94,814   

Total investments $ 21,197,136   

 

(d) Property, Equipment, and Intangible Assets 

Activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 for property, equipment, and intangible assets and 
accumulated depreciation and amortization are as follows: 

July 1, June 30,
2009 Additions Dispositions 2009

Leasehold improvements $ 5,196,443   166,092   74,739   5,437,274   
Furniture, fixtures, and

equipment 9,173,776   377,177   (21,067)  9,529,886   
Building rights 10,079,196   —    —    10,079,196   
Construction in progress 74,739   —    (74,739)  —    

24,524,154   543,269   (21,067)  25,046,356   

Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (8,066,768)  (1,648,900)  21,067   (9,694,601)  

Total $ 16,457,386   (1,105,631)  —    15,351,755   

 

(e) Long-Term Debt 

MECA’s long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 is as follows: 

Balance
Balance June 30,

July 1, 2009 Additions Reductions 2010

City $ 5,509,622   —    (675,946)  4,833,676   
Food service contract 1,305,135   —    (326,280)  978,855   

Total $ 6,814,757   —    (1,002,226)  5,812,531   
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Through the amended agreement and lease with the City, MECA agreed to exercise good faith and 
best efforts to raise and pay over to the City the sum of $14,000,000 to offset additional funds 
provided by the City for the construction of the facility. Proceeds from the sale of Naming Rights 
were specifically identified as a source of repayment. The Naming Rights have been sold to Qwest 
Communications International, Inc. under a Convention Center/Arena Naming Rights Agreement, 
which terminates on September 1, 2018. As a result, the obligation for the repayment of this portion 
of the construction funds has been recorded as long-term debt payable to the City offset by recording 
intangible Building Rights. 

Under a long-term contract for food service operations, MECA received a $4 million interest-free 
loan from the contractor for the purchase of food service equipment and leasehold improvements. 
The loan is to be repaid over the 10-year period of the contract, which began in July 2003. 

Debt service payments for the City and food service contract debt are as follows: 

Principal Interest

Years:
2011 $ 1,002,226   149,054   
2012 1,002,226   149,054   
2013 1,002,241   149,054   
2014 675,946   149,054   
2015 675,946   149,054   
2016 – 2018 – Contingencies Baseball Stadium 1,453,945   621,054   

$ 5,812,530   1,366,324   

 

(f) Commitments and Contingencies 

Baseball Stadium Construction – TD Ameritrade Park Omaha 

MECA, pursuant to the Sixth Amendment to the Agreement and Lease executed June 9, 2008 with 
the City, has entered into a number of agreements relating to the design, construction, and operation 
of TD Ameritrade Park Omaha. The commitments are estimated not to exceed $51,331,894. MECA 
will authorize such costs to be paid from the project funds. 
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Food Service Contract 

MECA entered into a long-term contract for food service operations in November 2001. The terms 
of the contract commit MECA to a 10-year CPI indexed annual payment to the contractor of 
$718,044 and $691,500 for the year ended June 30, 2010 and 2009. There are incentive provisions in 
the contract that may result in additional payments to the contractor. Such incentives totaled 
$179,512 for the year ended June 30, 2010. The remaining cost of such commitments as of June 30, 
2010 is as follows: 

Year ending June 30:
2011 $ 1,000,000   
2012 1,000,000   
2013 1,000,000   

$ 3,000,000   

 

(g) Employee Benefits 

MECA has established a 401(k) profit sharing plan for all employees. Participants can contribute up 
to 15% of their pretax compensation, subject to IRS limitations. MECA, at its discretion, may make 
matching contributions equal to a discretionary percentage of the participant’s elective deferrals to be 
determined by MECA. Total matching contributions for the year ended June 30, 2010 were 
$114,491. MECA, at its discretion, may also make profit sharing contributions. No profit sharing 
contributions were made to the plan during the year ended June 30, 2010. 

(h) Deferred Compensation 

Effective November 18, 2004, certain MECA employees were able to participate in a nonqualified 
deferred compensation plan in the form of a Rabbi Trust. The plan is intended to qualify as a plan 
described in Section 201(2) of the Employee Retirement Security Act and is maintained primarily for 
the purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly 
compensated employees. MECA contributes a specified amount to the employees’ accounts on an 
annual basis. The value of debt and equity securities held in the Rabbi Trust at June 30, 2010 was 
$4,814 and is included in short-term investments. 
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(i) Project Oversight 

MECA has been delegated fiscal oversight responsibility for TD Ameritrade Park Omaha 
construction activities by the City of Omaha. MECA disburses project funds to contractors and 
vendors in accordance with its established procedures for accounts payable. A summary of 
construction expenditures paid under MECA’s oversight responsibility for the year ended June 30, 
2010 is as follows: 

Construction costs $ 46,577,687   
Professional fees 726,141   
Other expenditures 953,014   

Total expenditures $ 48,256,842   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule – General Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Property tax $ 70,315,904    70,315,904    70,912,516    596,612   
Motor vehicle taxes 9,300,000    9,300,000    9,309,995    9,995   
City sales and use tax 122,954,000    122,954,000    126,138,188    3,184,188   
Business taxes 34,812,000    34,812,000    37,607,464    2,795,464   
Taxes in lieu —     —     4,474,712    4,474,712   
Licenses and permits 8,664,362    8,664,362    7,935,989    (728,373)  
Intergovernmental revenues 9,309,753    9,309,753    3,421,652    (5,888,101)  
Charges for services 19,547,602    19,547,602    21,961,139    2,413,537   
Revenue for KENO —     —     535,996    535,996   
Interest income 2,850,000    2,850,000    646,181    (2,203,819)  
Rent and royalties 220,000    220,000    1,118,960    898,960   
Miscellaneous 991,103    991,103    469,175    (521,928)  
Revenue from Stadium 1,921,110    1,921,110    —     (1,921,110)  

Total revenues 280,885,834    280,885,834    284,531,967    3,646,133   

Expenditures:
General government:

Mayor’s office 1,054,850    1,054,850    1,063,228    (8,378)  
City clerks 624,851    624,851    567,692    57,159   
City council 1,017,313    1,017,313    990,599    26,714   
Law 3,638,730    3,638,730    3,322,110    316,620   
Human resources 1,918,540    1,918,540    1,896,137    22,403   
Human rights and relations 672,270    672,270    673,790    (1,520)  
Finance 2,505,735    2,505,735    2,417,849    87,886   
Planning 6,784,881    6,784,881    6,633,359    151,522   
Employee benefits 23,252,805    23,252,805    20,289,850    2,962,955   
Other agencies 29,899,855    29,899,855    29,172,082    727,773   

Total general government 71,369,830    71,369,830    67,026,696    4,343,134   

Public safety:
Fire 68,782,298    68,782,298    71,977,607    (3,195,309)  
Police 98,289,052    98,289,052    100,729,317    (2,440,265)  

Total public safety 167,071,350    167,071,350    172,706,924    (5,635,574)  

Public works:
Environmental 15,010,700    15,010,700    15,495,904    (485,204)  
Street and highway 1,261,910    1,261,910    1,235,748    26,162   

Total public works 16,272,610    16,272,610    16,731,652    (459,042)  

Culture and recreation:
Parks and recreation 18,297,135    18,297,135    18,134,827    162,308   
Libraries 10,294,689    10,294,689    9,874,149    420,540   

Total culture and recreation 28,591,824    28,591,824    28,008,976    582,848   

Total expenditures 283,305,614    283,305,614    284,474,248    (1,168,634)  

(Deficiency) excess of revenues
over expenditures (2,419,780)   (2,419,780)   57,719    2,477,499   

Net changes in fund balances (2,419,780)   (2,419,780)   57,719    2,477,499   

Fund balances – beginning of year 2,769,442    2,769,442    1,873,465    (895,977)  
Lapsed encumbrances —     —     1,603,249    1,603,249   
Transfers out —     —     (932,027)   (932,027)  
Transfers in —     —     413,373    413,373   

Fund balances – end of year $ 349,662    349,662    3,015,779    2,666,117   

See accompanying notes to budgetary comparison schedule – general fund.
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(1) Budget and Budgetary Accounting 

The Mayor is required by the City Charter to prepare and submit an annual budget to the City Council. A 
budget is prepared for the general fund and all special revenue funds, exclusive of all grant funds and the 
service-type special assessments fund. These budgets are prepared primarily on a cash basis for revenues 
and modified accrual basis for expenditures. The budget presented reflects the original budget and the 
revised budget prior to the closing ordinance. In addition, encumbrances are reported as expenditures for 
budgetary purposes. Under this system, purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of funds are recorded as encumbrances in order to reserve a portion of the applicable 
appropriation. 

Budgetary control is maintained by department/division and by the following category of expenditures: 
personnel services, nonpersonnel services, capital outlay, and debt service. All budget amendments must 
be approved by the Mayor and/or City Council. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal 
year. Encumbered funds are carried over to the ensuing fiscal year until utilized or canceled. 

The City Charter also requires the City Council each year to make an ad valorem tax levy for a sinking 
fund (debt service fund) that shall provide for principal and interest payments on the general obligation 
bonded indebtedness of the City. 

Appropriations for certain special revenue funds and capital projects funds are controlled on a project basis 
and are carried forward each year until the project is completed or grant funds are expended. 

Budgets are also prepared for the proprietary funds as a management control device. The budgets for these 
funds are prepared on a revenue and expenditure basis similar to the budgets for the governmental fund 
types. 

(2) Reconciliation of Budget-Basis Revenues and Expenditures to GAAP 

Revenue and expenditures presented on a non-GAAP budget basis of accounting differ from the revenues 
and expenditures presented in accordance with GAAP because of the different treatment of encumbrances 
and accruals (revenue recognition). 

In addition, Section 5.14 of the City of Omaha’s Home Rule Charter requires, in relevant part, that the 
year-end general fund balance “. . . be applied as general fund revenue in the budget for the fiscal year two 
years subsequent to that fiscal year.” Therefore, the amount of the general fund carryover coming into a 
particular fiscal year has already been determined. Any general fund encumbrances at the end of a fiscal 
year are not included in the year-end general fund balance because those encumbrances will normally need 
to be paid in the following fiscal year and cannot be held until the fiscal year two years subsequent to the 
fiscal year when the encumbrance was incurred. 
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All general fund encumbrances are charged to the appropriate accounts at the end of the fiscal year. This 
allows those funds to be kept separate from the year-end general fund balance. Therefore, when the actual 
payments to the vendors are required in the following fiscal year, there are general fund moneys available. 
A reconciliation of the differences between the budgetary versus GAAP is presented as follows: 

General
fund

Budget basis:
2009 carryover to 2011 $ —    
2010 carryover to 2012 3,015,779   

Total budget basis 3,015,779   

Basis differences:
Taxes accrued 22,810,099   
Accrued interest 114,334   
Encumbrances 2,954,432   
Inventories 682,867   

GAAP basis $ 29,577,511   

 

(3) Expenditures in Excess of Budget 

Budgeted expenditures were exceeded in the following departments/divisions: 

Department/division Amount

General fund:
Mayor's office $ (8,378)  
Human rights and relations (1,520)  
Public safety:

Fire (3,195,309)  
Police (2,440,265)  

Public works:
Environmental (485,204)   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Debt Service Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Taxes property $ 51,448,253    51,448,253    52,067,868    619,615   
Taxes in lieu —     56,028   
Intergovernmental —     —     2,737,173    2,737,173   
Investment income 150,000    150,000    437,998    287,998   
Charges for services 2,473,898    2,473,898    2,663,559    189,661   
Contributions and grants 2,451,470    2,451,470    391,028    (2,060,442)  

Total revenues 56,523,621    56,523,621    58,353,654    1,830,033   

Expenditures:
General Government 475,071    475,071    700,804    (225,733)  
Debt service principal 29,214,194    29,214,194    29,344,194    (130,000)  
Debt service interest 25,702,425    25,702,425    25,072,592    629,833   
Debt service bond issuance costs 250,000    250,000    429,311    (179,311)  

Total expenditures 55,641,690    55,641,690    55,546,901    94,789   

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 881,931    881,931    2,806,753    1,924,822   

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from issuance of bonds —     —     35,950,000    35,950,000   
Proceeds from bond premium —     —     2,435,125    2,435,125   
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent —     —     (37,988,113)   (37,988,113)  

Total other financing sources —     —     397,012    397,012   

Net change in fund balance 881,931    881,931    3,203,765    2,321,834   

Fund balances – beginning 13,795,210    13,795,210    13,489,712    (305,498)  
Fund balances – ending $ 14,677,141    14,677,141    16,693,477    2,016,336   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Downtown Stadium and Companion Projects Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Investment income $ —     —     21,989    21,989   
Contributions and grants 3,000,000    3,000,000    3,000,000    —    

Total revenues 3,000,000    3,000,000    3,021,989    21,989   

Expenditures:
Debt service interest 224,419    224,419    11,973    212,446   
Debt service bond issuance costs —     —     311,237    (311,237)  
Capital outlay 42,739,690    42,739,690    55,228,403    (12,488,713)  

Total expenditures 42,964,109    42,964,109    55,551,613    (12,587,504)  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (39,964,109)   (39,964,109)   (52,529,624)   (12,565,515)  

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out —     —     (20,748)   (20,748)  
Proceeds from sale of bonds 29,371,265    29,371,265    33,035,000    3,663,735   
Discount on sale of bonds —     —     (346,191)   (346,191)  

Total other financing sources (uses) 29,371,265    29,371,265    32,668,061    3,296,796   

Net change in fund balance (10,592,844)   (10,592,844)   (19,861,563)   (9,268,719)  

Fund balances – beginning 34,984,934    34,984,934    31,583,915    (3,401,019)  
Fund balances – ending $ 24,392,090    24,392,090    11,722,352    (12,669,738)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Civilian Plan Schedule of Funding Progress (Unaudited) 
(Dollars in millions) 

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial accrued Unfunded percentage
value of liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of covered

Actuarial assets entry age (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll
valuation date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

2010 $ 232.4    414.5    182.1    56.1% $ 56.7    321.2%
2009 213.2    402.8    189.6    52.9 55.7    340.4
2008 204.5    387.7    183.2    52.7 56.4    324.8
2007 294.7    369.0    74.3    79.9 54.0    137.6
2006 292.0    361.7    69.7    80.7 48.2    144.6
2005 277.1    352.0    74.9    78.7 53.4    140.3

 

Civilian Plan Schedule of Employer Contributions (Unaudited)

Annual Percentage Net
pension of APC pension

Fiscal year ended cost (APC) contributed obligation

2010 $ 13,928,232   41% $ (33,263,609)  
2009 12,737,738   42 (25,052,987)  
2008 9,089,878   59 (17,626,003)  
2007 8,794,542   57 (13,910,207)  
2006 6,135,462   67 (10,090,703)  
2005 6,822,028   65 (8,100,275)  

 

Uniformed Plan Schedule of Funding Progress (Unaudited) 
(Dollars in millions) 

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial accrued Unfunded percentage
value of liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of covered

Actuarial assets entry age (UAAL) ratio payroll payroll
valuation date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

2010 $ 452.6    1,093.3    640.7    41.4% $ 111.2    576.2%
2009 405.4    1,026.0    620.6    39.5 104.0    596.7
2008 365.9    947.6    581.7    38.6 99.5    584.6
2007 530.8    882.7    351.9    60.1 99.6    353.3
2006 507.6    801.1    293.5    63.4 91.7    320.1
2005 453.3    703.8    250.5    64.4 86.8    288.6
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Uniformed Plan Schedule of Employer Contributions (Unaudited)

Annual Percentage Net
pension of APC pension

Fiscal year ended cost (APC) contributed obligation

2010 $ 54,704,821   44% $ (119,249,376)  
2009 49,964,986   45 (88,728,048)  
2008 37,671,425   58 (61,464,670)  
2007 34,563,067   60 (45,494,051)  
2006 30,917,700   65 (31,630,196)  
2005 26,145,454   78 (20,884,106)  

 

Postretirement Obligation Schedule of 
Funding Progress 

(Dollars in millions) 

Schedule of Funding Progress (Unaudited)

UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded percentage
value of accrued AAL Covered of covered

Actuarial assets liability (AAL) (UAAL) Funded ratio payroll payroll
valuation date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

March 1, 2010 $ —  478.1  478.1  —% $ 167.9  285%
March 1, 2008 —  388.5  388.5  — 153.6  249
March 1, 2006 —  307.5  307.5  — 153.7  200
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

December 31, 2010

Total
nonmajor

Special Debt Capital Permanent governmental
Assets revenue service projects funds funds

Cash and pooled investments $ 22,692,703    209,631    11,872,234    126,267    34,900,835   
Investments 2,012,899    —     1,532,972    3,057,622    6,603,493   
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 4,329,816    5,316,500    4,102,497    —     13,748,813   
Due from other governments 17,899,677    387,837    3,739,719    —     22,027,233   
Due from other funds 1,057,742    3,092,086    —     —     4,149,828   
Accrued interest 45,821    —     5,152    42,144    93,117   
Other assets —     —     498,902    —     498,902   
Restricted assets:

Deposits with trustee 3,146,295    —     401,018    —     3,547,313   
Total assets $ 51,184,953    9,006,054    22,152,494    3,226,033    85,569,534   

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 5,822,044    9,756    2,030,797    21,719    7,884,316   
Due to other governments —     —     68,662    —     68,662   
Due to other funds 15,151,031    —     2,108,963    —     17,259,994   
Unearned revenue 1,875,140    363    —     —     1,875,503   
Deferred revenue 11,673,513    4,361,376    7,596,463    —     23,631,352   

Total liabilities 34,521,728    4,371,495    11,804,885    21,719    50,719,827   

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 11,389,924    —     4,817,187    —     16,207,111   
Endowment —     —     —     2,775,389    2,775,389   
Debt service —     4,634,559    —     —     4,634,559   

Unreserved, designated for, reported in:
Special revenue 6,552,487    —     —     —     6,552,487   

Unreserved, undesignated reported in:
Special revenue (1,279,186)   —     —     —     (1,279,186)  
Capital projects —     —     5,530,422    —     5,530,422   
Permanent —     —     —     428,925    428,925   

Total fund balance 16,663,225    4,634,559    10,347,609    3,204,314    34,849,707   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 51,184,953    9,006,054    22,152,494    3,226,033    85,569,534   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

December 31, 2010

Total
nonmajor

Special Debt Capital Permanent governmental
revenue service projects funds funds

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ 1,633,004    6,011,894    —     —     7,644,898   
Business 621,301    —     —     —     621,301   
In lieu 1,649    5,625    —     —     7,274   

Special assessments —     —     346,326    —     346,326   
Intergovernmental 31,284,649    1,500,000    —     —     32,784,649   
Investment income (loss) 256,570    —     94,652    (23,309)   327,913   
Revenue from Keno 6,423,049    —     —     —     6,423,049   
Charges for services 24,763,882    —     488,714    —     25,252,596   
Rents and royalties 174,504    825,000    —     —     999,504   
Contributions and grants 31,493,600    228,722    9,382,072    —     41,104,394   

Total revenues 96,652,208    8,571,241    10,311,764    (23,309)   115,511,904   

Expenditures:
Governmental activities:

General government 8,425,055    59,707    353,419    —     8,838,181   
Public safety 6,567,080    —     —     —     6,567,080   
Transportation services 46,610,132    —     —     —     46,610,132   
Other public services 3,884,152    —     —     —     3,884,152   
Community development 21,287,549    —     79,755    —     21,367,304   
Culture and parks 4,641,035    —     227,366    86,974    4,955,375   
Investment expense —     —     —     —     —    

Debt service:
Principal 241,419    3,566,492    257,000    —     4,064,911   
Interest 94,940    5,892,020    7,541    —     5,994,501   

Capital outlay:
Other public services 536,660    —     1,517,228    —     2,053,888   
Public safety 1,160,811    —     2,704,082    —     3,864,893   
Culture and parks 50,581    —     6,404,741    —     6,455,322   
General government —     —     1,448,640    —     1,448,640   
Transportation 1,168,436    —     8,597,667    —     9,766,103   
Community development —     —     144,546    —     144,546   

Total expenditures 94,667,850    9,518,219    21,741,985    86,974    126,015,028   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 7,815,581    —     3,541,320    —     11,356,901   
Transfers out (11,494,023)   —     (3,621,199)   —     (15,115,222)  
Sale of capital assets —     —     647,484    —     647,484   
Proceeds from the sale of bonds —     —     8,500,000    —     8,500,000   
Premium on sale of bonds —     —     —     —     —    
Discount on sale of bonds —     —     —     —     —    

Total other financing sources (uses) (3,678,442)   —     9,067,605    —     5,389,163   

Net change in fund balance (1,694,084)   (946,978)   (2,362,616)   (110,283)   (5,113,961)  

Beginning fund balance 18,357,309    5,581,537    12,710,225    3,314,597    39,963,668   
Ending fund balance $ 16,663,225    4,634,559    10,347,609    3,204,314    34,849,707   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Balance Sheet   

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds    

December 31, 2010   

Contingent Public Douglas County
Liability Library Library Fines Library

Assets Judgment Reserve Cash Reserve Contribution and Fees Supplement

Cash and pooled investments $ 3,161,020    778,725    977,289    660,905    90,745    —    
Investments —     —     2,012,899    —     —     —    
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 1,601,882    —     —     —     —     —    
Due from other governments 5,189    —     —     —     —     610,338   
Due from other funds —     —     —     —     —     —    
Accrued interest —     —     5,365    —     —     —    
Restricted assets:

Deposits with trustee —     —     —     —     —     —    
Total assets $ 4,768,091    778,725    2,995,553    660,905    90,745    610,338   

Liabilities and Fund Balances    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 1,433    —     —     43,744    —     —    
Due to other funds —     —     —     —     —     543,519   
Unearned revenue 137    —     —     —     —     —    
Deferred revenue 1,600,774    —     —     —     —     —    

Total liabilities 1,602,344    —     —     43,744    —     543,519   

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances —     —     —     64,405    —     —    
Unreserved, designated for, reported in:

Special revenue 3,165,747    —     —     —     —     —    
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Special revenue —     778,725    2,995,553    552,756    90,745    66,819   

Total fund balance (deficit) 3,165,747    778,725    2,995,553    617,161    90,745    66,819   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 4,768,091    778,725    2,995,553    660,905    90,745    610,338   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. (Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Balance Sheet   

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds    

December 31, 2010   

 SID Street and
Miscellaneous Keno/Lottery Administrative Storm Water City Street Highway

Assets Contribution Proceeds Fee Revenue Fee Revenue Maintenance Allocation

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,515,802    1,758    —     714,836    923,656    4   
Investments —     —     —     —     —     —    
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 235,498    323,225    —     —     1,337,315    213,511   
Due from other governments —     —     —     —     1,638,218    3,027,525   
Due from other funds —     —     —     —     —     —    
Accrued interest —     —     —     —     —     —    
Restricted assets:

Deposits with trustee —     —     —     —     —     —    
Total assets $ 1,751,300    324,983    —     714,836    3,899,189    3,241,040   

Liabilities and Fund Balances    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 3,520    477,669    —     31,066    265,232    1,867,023   
Due to other funds —     —     —     —     —     126,021   
Unearned revenue —     —     —     —     —     —    
Deferred revenue 186,058    —     —     —     520,021    482,906   

Total liabilities 189,578    477,669    —     31,066    785,253    2,475,950   

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 25,732    —     —     1,574    518,311    1,579,841   
Unreserved, designated for, reported in:

Special revenue —     —     —     —     —     —    
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Special revenue 1,535,990    (152,686)   —     682,196    2,595,625    (814,751)  

Total fund balance (deficit) 1,561,722    (152,686)   —     683,770    3,113,936    765,090   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,751,300    324,983    —     714,836    3,899,189    3,241,040   

(Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Balance Sheet   

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds    

December 31, 2010   

Interceptor Community Federal Emergency State
Sewer Park Management Police/FBI Metro Area Turn Back

Assets Construction Development Fund Seized Assets Seized Assets Revenue

Cash and pooled investments $ 8,619,647    —     1,747,336    561,772    397,653    161,036   
Investments —     —     —     —     —     —    
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —     127,544    —     —     —     —    
Due from other governments —     —     50,000    —     2,715    —    
Due from other funds —     —     —     —     —     —    
Accrued interest —     —     —     —     —     —    
Restricted assets:

Deposits with trustee —     —     —     —     —     —    
Total assets $ 8,619,647    127,544    1,797,336    561,772    400,368    161,036   

Liabilities and Fund Balances    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 667,646    —     14,871    8,592    3,316    142,500   
Due to other funds —     2,635,101    —     —     —     —    
Unearned revenue —     —     1,762,465    —     —     —    
Deferred revenue —     101,002    20,000    —     800    —    

Total liabilities 667,646    2,736,103    1,797,336    8,592    4,116    142,500   

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 5,337,864    5,605    —     29,593    590    —    
Unreserved, designated for, reported in:

Special revenue —     —     —     —     —     —    
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Special revenue 2,614,137    (2,614,164)   —     523,587    395,662    18,536   

Total fund balance (deficit) 7,952,001    (2,608,559)   —     553,180    396,252    18,536   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 8,619,647    127,544    1,797,336    561,772    400,368    161,036   

(Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

December 31, 2010

Greater Omaha Total
Convention Household Special

Keno Lottery and Visitors Chemical Development Revenue
Assets Reserve Grants Bureau Disposal Revenue Funds

Cash and pooled investments $ 199,989    1,106,283    896,057    5,827    172,363    22,692,703   
Investments —     —     —     —     —     2,012,899   
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —     468,216    3,965    —     18,660    4,329,816   
Due from other governments —     11,955,570    610,122    —     —     17,899,677   
Due from other funds —     1,057,742    —     —     —     1,057,742   
Accrued interest 40,456    —     —     —     —     45,821   
Restricted assets:

Deposits with trustee 3,146,295    —     —     —     —     3,146,295   
Total assets $ 3,386,740    14,587,811    1,510,144    5,827    191,023    51,184,953   

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ —     2,206,852    76,225    12,355    —     5,822,044   
Due to other funds —     11,837,865    7,007    1,518    —     15,151,031   
Unearned revenue —     112,538    —     —     —     1,875,140   
Deferred revenue —     8,742,496    796    —     18,660    11,673,513   

Total liabilities —     22,899,751    84,028    13,873    18,660    34,521,728   

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances —     3,693,934    132,061    —     414    11,389,924   
Unreserved, designated for, reported in:

Special revenue 3,386,740    —     —     —     —     6,552,487   
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Special revenue —     (12,005,874)   1,294,055    (8,046)   171,949    (1,279,186)  

Total fund balance (deficit) 3,386,740    (8,311,940)   1,426,116    (8,046)   172,363    16,663,225   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 3,386,740    14,587,811    1,510,144    5,827    191,023    51,184,953   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances          

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds    

December 31, 2010   

Douglas
Contingent Public County

Liability Library Library Fines Library
Judgment Reserve Cash Reserve Contribution and Fees Supplement

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ 1,633,004    —     —     —     —     —    
Business —     —     —     —     —     —    
In lieu 1,649    —     —     —     —     —    

Intergovernmental —     —     —     —     —     1,234,716   
Investment income —     —     49,671    —     —     —    
Revenue from Keno —     —     —     —     —     —    
Charges for services —     —     —     —     428,583    —    
Rents and royalties —     —     —     —     —     —    
Contributions and grants —     —     —     558,166    —     —    

Total revenues 1,634,653    —     49,671    558,166    428,583    1,234,716   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 1,073,274    291,677    —     —     —     —    
Public safety —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transportation services —     —     —     —     —     —    
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     —    
Community development —     —     —     —     —     —    
Culture and parks —     —     —     597,276    555,120    1,126,817   

Debt service:
Principal —     —     —     —     —     —    
Interest —     —     —     —     —     —    

Capital outlay:
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public safety —     —     —     —     —     —    
Culture and parks —     —     —     14,445    —     —    
Transportation —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total expenditures 1,073,274    291,677    —     611,721    555,120    1,126,817   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     750,000    —     —     —     —    
Transfers out —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total other financing sources (uses) —     750,000    —     —     —     —    

Excess (deficiency) revenues over expenditures (net change in fund balance) 561,379    458,323    49,671    (53,555)   (126,537)   107,899   

Beginning fund balance (deficit) 2,604,368    320,402    2,945,882    670,716    217,282    (41,080)  
Ending fund balance (deficit) $ 3,165,747    778,725    2,995,553    617,161    90,745    66,819   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. (Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances          

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds    

December 31, 2010   

SID Street and
Miscellaneous Keno/Lottery Administrative Storm Water City Street Highway
Contribution Proceeds Fee Revenue Fee Revenue Maintenance Allocation

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ —     —     —     —     —     —    
Business —     —     —     —     —     —    
In lieu —     —     —     —     —     —    

Intergovernmental —     —     —     —     —     27,674,538   
Investment income 1,439    —     —     —     —     —    
Revenue from Keno —     6,423,049    —     —     —     —    
Charges for services 381,084    —     4,700    1,307,879    21,152,706    679,230   
Rents and royalties 21,830    —     —     —     29,359    103,227   
Contributions and grants 497,594    —     —     —     300,000    48,918   

Total revenues 901,947    6,423,049    4,700    1,307,879    21,482,065    28,505,913   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 5,673    3,092,251    —     —     388,453    3,206,789   
Public safety 100,873    717,237    —     —     —     —    
Transportation services —     —     —     —     18,761,136    27,303,007   
Other public services —     120,000    —     924,943    —     —    
Community development 219,179    429,500    11,761    —     —     —    
Culture and parks 679,635    1,550,000    —     —     —     14,595   

Debt service:
Principal —     —     —     —     —     145,000   
Interest —     —     —     —     —     84,503   

Capital outlay:
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public safety —     476,000    —     —     —     —    
Culture and parks 36,136    —     —     —     —     —    
Transportation —     —     —     —     —     1,168,436   

Total expenditures 1,041,496    6,384,988    11,761    924,943    19,149,589    31,922,330   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 25,094    —     —     —     —     1,554,464   
Transfers out (151,924)   (5,186)   —     —     (1,554,464)   (100,000)  

Total other financing sources (uses) (126,830)   (5,186)   —     —     (1,554,464)   1,454,464   

Excess (deficiency) revenues over expenditures (net change in fund balance) (266,379)   32,875    (7,061)   382,936    778,012    (1,961,953)  

Beginning fund balance (deficit) 1,828,101    (185,561)   7,061    300,834    2,335,924    2,727,043   
Ending fund balance (deficit) $ 1,561,722    (152,686)   —     683,770    3,113,936    765,090   

(Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances          

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds    

December 31, 2010   

Interceptor Community Federal Emergency State
Sewer Park Management Police/FBI Metro Area Turn Back

Construction Development Fund Seized Assets Seized Assets Revenue
Revenues:

Taxes:
Property $ —     —     —     —     —     —    
Business —     —     —     —     —     —    
In lieu —     —     —     —     —     —    

Intergovernmental —     —     —     —     —     —    
Investment income —     —     —     1,278    594    —    
Revenue from Keno —     —     —     —     —     —    
Charges for services 511,534    151,280    —     —     —     —    
Rents and royalties —     —     —     —     —     —    
Contributions and grants —     —     976,396    722,336    306,015    313,580   

Total revenues 511,534    151,280    976,396    723,614    306,609    313,580   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public safety —     —     —     244,446    238,153    —    
Transportation services —     —     —     —     —     —    
Other public services —     —     439,736    —     —     —    
Community development —     —     —     —     —     481,989   
Culture and parks —     11,534    —     —     —     —    

Debt service:
Principal —     96,419    —     —     —     —    
Interest —     10,437    —     —     —     —    

Capital outlay:
Other public services —     —     536,660    —     —     —    
Public safety —     —     —     215,796    40,396    —    
Culture and parks —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transportation —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total expenditures —     118,390    976,396    460,242    278,549    481,989   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transfers out (2,170,843)   —     —     —     —     —    

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,170,843)   —     —     —     —     —    

Excess (deficiency) revenues over expenditures (net change in fund balance) (1,659,309)   32,890    —     263,372    28,060    (168,409)  

Beginning fund balance (deficit) 9,611,310    (2,641,449)   —     289,808    368,192    186,945   
Ending fund balance (deficit) $ 7,952,001    (2,608,559)   —     553,180    396,252    18,536   

(Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

December 31, 2010

Greater Omaha Total
Convention Household Special

Keno lottery and Visitors Chemical Development Revenue
reserve Grants Bureau Disposal Revenue Funds

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ —     —     —     —     —     1,633,004   
Business —     —     621,301    —     —     621,301   
In lieu —     —     —     —     —     1,649   

Intergovernmental —     —     2,337,289    38,106    —     31,284,649   
Investment income 203,588    —     —     —     —     256,570   
Revenue from Keno —     —     —     —     —     6,423,049   
Charges for services —     —     93,637    —     53,249    24,763,882   
Rents and royalties —     —     20,088    —     —     174,504   
Contributions and grants —     27,493,595    —     277,000    —     31,493,600   

Total revenues 203,588    27,493,595    3,072,315    315,106    53,249    96,652,208   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government —     301,245    65,693    —     —     8,425,055   
Public safety —     5,266,371    —     —     —     6,567,080   
Transportation services —     545,989    —     —     —     46,610,132   
Other public services —     2,024,413    —     375,060    —     3,884,152   
Community development —     17,132,719    2,922,598    —     89,803    21,287,549   
Culture and parks 26,176    79,882    —     —     —     4,641,035   

Debt service:
Principal —     —     —     —     —     241,419   
Interest —     —     —     —     —     94,940   

Capital outlay:
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     536,660   
Public safety —     428,619    —     —     —     1,160,811   
Culture and parks —     —     —     —     —     50,581   
Transportation —     —     —     —     —     1,168,436   

Total expenditures 26,176    25,779,238    2,988,291    375,060    89,803    94,667,850   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     5,486,023    —     —     —     7,815,581   
Transfers out —     (7,511,606)   —     —     —     (11,494,023)  

Total other financing sources (uses) —     (2,025,583)   —     —     —     (3,678,442)  

Excess revenues over expenditures (net change in fund balance) 177,412    (311,226)   84,024    (59,954)   (36,554)   (1,694,084)  

Beginning fund balance (deficit) 3,209,328    (8,000,714)   1,342,092    51,908    208,917    18,357,309   
Ending fund balance (deficit) $ 3,386,740    (8,311,940)   1,426,116    (8,046)   172,363    16,663,225   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Judgment Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Taxes property $ 1,601,004    1,601,004    1,633,004    32,000   
Taxes in lieu —     —     1,649    1,649   

Total revenues 1,601,004    1,601,004    1,634,653    33,649   

Expenditures:
General government 2,110,607    2,110,607    1,073,274    1,037,333   

Total expenditures 2,110,607    2,110,607    1,073,274    1,037,333   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (509,603)   (509,603)   561,379    1,070,982   

Net change in fund balances (509,603)   (509,603)   561,379    1,070,982   

Fund balances – beginning 2,026,044    2,026,044    2,604,368    578,324   
Fund balances – ending $ 1,516,441    1,516,441    3,165,747    1,649,306   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Contingent Liability Reserve Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Miscellaneous $ —     —     —     —    

Total revenues —     —     —     —    

Expenditures:
General government 450,000    450,000    291,677    158,323   

Total expenditures 450,000    450,000    291,677    158,323   

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (450,000)   (450,000)   (291,677)   158,323   

Other financing sources:
Transfers in 250,000    250,000    750,000    500,000   

Total other financing sources 250,000    250,000    750,000    500,000   

Net change in fund balance (200,000)   (200,000)   458,323    658,323   

Fund balances – beginning 361,925    361,925    320,402    (41,523)  
Fund balances – ending $ 161,925    161,925    778,725    616,800   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Cash Reserve Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Investment income $ 165,000    165,000    49,671    (115,329)  

Total revenues 165,000    165,000    49,671    (115,329)  

Expenditures:
General government —     —     —     —    

Total expenditures —     —     —     —    

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 165,000    165,000    49,671    (115,329)  

Other financing sources:
Transfers out —     —     —     —    

Total other financing sources —     —     —     —    

Net change in fund balance 165,000    165,000    49,671    (115,329)  

Fund balances – beginning 5,751,001    5,751,001    2,945,882    (2,805,119)  
Fund balances – ending $ 5,916,001    5,916,001    2,995,553    (2,920,448)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Library Fine and Fees Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 415,000    415,000    428,583    13,583   

Total revenues 415,000    415,000    428,583    13,583   

Expenditures:
Culture and parks 555,120    555,120    555,120    —    

Total expenditures 555,120    555,120    555,120    —    

Excess of revenues
over expenditures (140,120)   (140,120)   (126,537)   13,583   

Net change in fund balance (140,120)   (140,120)   (126,537)   13,583   

Fund balances – beginning 220,148    220,148    217,282    (2,866)  
Fund balances – ending $ 80,028    80,028    90,745    10,717   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Douglas County Library Supplement Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental revenues $ 1,205,040    1,205,040    1,234,716    29,676   

Total revenues 1,205,040    1,205,040    1,234,716    29,676   

Expenditures:
Culture and parks 1,119,986    1,119,986    1,126,817    (6,831)  

Total expenditures 1,119,986    1,119,986    1,126,817    (6,831)  

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 85,054    85,054    107,899    22,845   

Net change in fund balance 85,054    85,054    107,899    22,845   

Fund balances – beginning (34,054)   (34,054)   (41,080)   (7,026)  
Fund balances – ending $ 51,000    51,000    66,819    15,819   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Keno/Lottery Proceeds Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Revenue from Keno $ 3,489,179    3,489,179    6,423,049    2,933,870   

Total revenues 3,489,179    3,489,179    6,423,049    2,933,870   

Expenditures:
General government —     —     3,092,251    (3,092,251)  
Public safety 1,196,000    1,196,000    1,193,237    2,763   
Other public services —     —     120,000    (120,000)  
Community development 700,000    700,000    429,500    270,500   
Culture and parks 1,550,000    1,550,000    1,550,000    —    

Total expenditures 3,446,000    3,446,000    6,384,988    (2,938,988)  

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 43,179    43,179    38,061    (5,118)  

Other financing uses:
Transfers out —     —     (5,186)   (5,186)  

Total other financing —     —     (5,186)   (5,186)  

Net change in fund balance 43,179    43,179    32,875    (10,304)  

Fund balances – beginning (15,115)   (15,115)   (185,561)   (170,446)  
Fund balances – ending $ 28,064    28,064    (152,686)   (180,750)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – SID Administrative Fees Revenue Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 110,000    110,000    4,700    (105,300)  

Total revenues 110,000    110,000    4,700    (105,300)  

Expenditures:
Community development 72,813    72,813    11,761    61,052   
Transportation services 83,542    83,542    —     83,542   

Total expenditures 156,355    156,355    11,761    144,594   

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (46,355)   (46,355)   (7,061)   39,294   

Net change in fund balance (46,355)   (46,355)   (7,061)   39,294   

Fund balances – beginning 59,869    59,869    7,061    (52,808)  
Fund balances – ending $ 13,514    13,514    —     (13,514)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Storm Water Fee Revenue Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,046,760    1,046,760    1,307,879    261,119   

Total revenues 1,046,760    1,046,760    1,307,879    261,119   

Expenditures:
Other public services 1,046,301    1,046,301    926,517    119,784   

Total expenditures 1,046,301    1,046,301    926,517    119,784   

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 459    459    381,362    380,903   

Net change in fund balance 459    459    381,362    380,903   

Fund balances – beginning 84,912    84,912    300,834    215,922   
Fund balances – ending $ 85,371    85,371    682,196    596,825   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – City Street Maintenance Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 18,250,000    18,250,000    21,152,706    2,902,706   
Rents and royalties —     —     29,359    29,359   
Contributions and grants 300,000    300,000    300,000    —    

Total revenues 18,550,000    18,550,000    21,482,065    2,932,065   

Expenditures:
General government 311,000    311,000    388,453    (77,453)  
Transportation services 19,190,195    19,190,195    19,279,447    (89,252)  

Total expenditures 19,501,195    19,501,195    19,667,900    (166,705)  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (951,195)   (951,195)   1,814,165    2,765,360   

Other financing uses:
Transfers out —     —     (1,554,464)   (1,554,464)  

Total other financing uses —     —     (1,554,464)   (1,554,464)  

Net change in fund balances (951,195)   (951,195)   259,701    1,210,896   

Fund balances – beginning 1,289,833    1,289,833    2,335,924    1,046,091   
Fund balances – ending $ 338,638    338,638    2,595,625    2,256,987   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Street and Highway Allocation Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 28,215,000    28,215,000    27,674,538    (540,462)  
Charges for services —     —     679,230    679,230   
Miscellaneous rents and royalties 75,000    75,000    103,227    28,227   
Contributions and grants 619,017    619,017    48,918    (570,099)  

Total revenues 28,909,017    28,909,017    28,505,913    (403,104)  

Expenditures:
General government 3,240,344    3,240,344    3,206,789    33,555   
Transportation services 27,227,237    27,227,237    30,051,284    (2,824,047)  
Culture and parks 14,595    14,595    14,595    —    
Debt service Principal 145,000    145,000    145,000    —    
Debt service Interest 84,503    84,503    84,503    —    

Total expenditures 30,711,679    30,711,679    33,502,171    (2,790,492)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (1,802,662)   (1,802,662)   (4,996,258)   (3,193,596)  

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     —     1,554,464    (1,554,464)  
Transfers out —     —     (100,000)   100,000   

Total other financing sources (uses) —     —     1,454,464    (1,454,464)  

Net change in fund balance (1,802,662)   (1,802,662)   (3,541,794)   (1,739,132)  

Fund balances – beginning 2,093,728    2,093,728    2,727,043    633,315   
Fund balances – ending $ 291,066    291,066    (814,751)   (1,105,817)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Community Park Development Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 10,000    10,000    151,280    141,280   

Total revenues 10,000    10,000    151,280    141,280   

Expenditures:
Culture and parks —     —     11,534    (11,534)  
Debt service principal 94,418    94,418    96,419    (2,001)  
Debt service interest 10,966    10,966    10,437    529   

Total expenditures 105,384    105,384    118,390    (13,006)  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (95,384)   (95,384)   32,890    128,274   

Net change in fund balance (95,384)   (95,384)   32,890    128,274   

Fund balances – beginning (3,118,301)   (3,118,301)   (2,641,449)   476,852   
Fund balances – ending $ (3,213,685)   (3,213,685)   (2,608,559)   605,126   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.



126

CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – State Turn Back Revenue Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Contributions and grants $ 292,005    292,005    313,580    21,575   

Total revenues 292,005    292,005    313,580    21,575   

Expenditures:
Community development 292,005    292,005    481,989    (189,984)  

Total expenditures 292,005    292,005    481,989    (189,984)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures —     —     (168,409)   (168,409)  

Net change in fund balance —     —     (168,409)   (168,409)  

Fund balances – beginning —     —     186,945    186,945   
Fund balances – ending $ —     —     18,536    18,536   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Keno/Lottery Reserve Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Investment income $ 78,856    78,856    203,588    124,732   

Total revenues 78,856    78,856    203,588    124,732   

Expenditures:
Culture and parks 26,175    26,175    26,176    (1)  

Total expenditures 26,175    26,175    26,176    (1)  

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 52,681    52,681    177,412    124,731   

Net change in fund balance 52,681    52,681    177,412    124,731   

Fund balances – beginning 3,151,723    3,151,723    3,209,328    (57,605)  
Fund balances – ending $ 3,204,404    3,204,404    3,386,740    182,336   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.



128

CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Greater Omaha Convention and Visitors Bureau Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Taxes Business $ 675,000    675,000    621,301    (53,699)  
Intergovernmental 2,378,485    2,378,485    2,337,289    (41,196)  
Charges for services 50,000    50,000    93,637    43,637   
Rents and royalties 19,950    19,950    20,088    138   

Total revenues 3,123,435    3,123,435    3,072,315    (51,120)  

Expenditures:
General government —     —     65,693    (65,693)  
Community development 2,935,881    2,935,881    3,054,656    (118,775)  

Total expenditures 2,935,881    2,935,881    3,120,349    (184,468)  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 187,554    187,554    (48,034)   (235,588)  

Net change in fund balance 187,554    187,554    (48,034)   (235,588)  

Fund balances – beginning 1,163,264    1,163,264    1,342,092    178,828   
Fund balances – ending $ 1,350,818    1,350,818    1,294,058    (56,760)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Interceptor Sewer Construction Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 1,900,000    1,900,000    511,534    (1,388,466)  

Total revenues 1,900,000    1,900,000    511,534    (1,388,466)  

Expenditures:
Other public services 1,700,000    1,700,000    5,337,864    (3,637,864)  

Total expenditures 1,700,000    1,700,000    5,337,864    (3,637,864)  

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 200,000    200,000    (4,826,330)   (5,026,330)  

Other financing uses:
Transfers out —     —     (2,170,843)   (2,170,843)  

Total other financing uses —     —     (2,170,843)   (2,170,843)  

Net change in fund balance 200,000    200,000    (6,997,173)   (7,197,173)  

Fund balances – beginning 12,333,809    12,333,809    9,611,310    (2,722,499)  
Fund balances – ending $ 12,533,809    12,533,809    2,614,137    (9,919,672)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Household Chemical Disposal Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 132,000    132,000    38,106    (93,894)  
Contributions and grants 277,000    277,000    277,000    —    

Total revenues 409,000    409,000    315,106    (93,894)  

Expenditures:
Other public services 400,057    400,057    375,060    24,997   

Total expenditures 400,057    400,057    375,060    24,997   

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 8,943    8,943    (59,954)   (68,897)  

Net change in fund balance 8,943    8,943    (59,954)   (68,897)  

Fund balances – beginning 144,131    144,131    51,908    92,223   
Fund balances – ending $ 153,074    153,074    (8,046)   (161,120)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund

December 31, 2010

Riverfront
Redevelopment

Special
Assets Tax

Cash and pooled investments $ 209,631   
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 5,316,500   
Due from other governments 387,837   
Due from other funds 3,092,086   

Total assets $ 9,006,054   

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 9,756   
Unearned revenue 363   
Deferred revenue 4,361,376   

Total liabilities 4,371,495   

Fund balances:
Reserved for:

Debt service 4,634,559   

Total fund balance 4,634,559   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 9,006,054   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Debt Service Fund

December 31, 2010

Riverfront
Redevelopment

Special
Tax

Revenues:
Taxes: $

Property 6,011,894   
In lieu 5,625   

Intergovernmental 1,500,000   
Miscellaneous 825,000   
Contributions and grants 228,722   

Total revenues 8,571,241   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 59,707   
Debt service:

Principal 3,566,492   
Interest 5,892,020   

Total expenditures 9,518,219   

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from the sale of bonds —    
Sale of capital assets —    
Proceeds from bond premium —    

Total other financing sources —    

Net change in fund balances (946,978)  

Beginning fund balance 5,581,537   
Ending fund balance $ 4,634,559   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Debt Service Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Taxes property $ 51,448,253    51,448,253    52,067,868    619,615   
Taxes in lieu —     —     56,028    56,028   
Intergovernmental —     —     2,737,173    2,737,173   
Investment income 150,000    150,000    437,998    287,998   
Charges for services 2,473,898    2,473,898    2,663,559    189,661   
Contributions and grants 2,451,470    2,451,470    391,028    (2,060,442)  

Total revenues 56,523,621    56,523,621    58,353,654    1,830,033   

Expenditures:
General government 475,071    475,071    700,804    (225,733)  
Debt service principal 29,214,194    29,214,194    29,344,194    (130,000)  
Debt service interest 25,702,425    25,702,425    25,072,592    629,833   
Debt service bond issuance costs 250,000    250,000    429,311    (179,311)  

Total expenditures 55,641,690    55,641,690    55,546,901    94,789   

Excess of revenues
over expenditures 881,931    881,931    2,806,753    1,924,822   

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from issuance of bonds —     —     35,950,000    35,950,000   
Proceeds from bond premium —     —     2,435,125    2,435,125   
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent —     —     (37,988,113)   (37,988,113)  

Total other financing sources —     —     397,012    397,012   

Net change in fund balance 881,931    881,931    3,203,765    2,321,834   

Fund balances – beginning 13,795,210    13,795,210    13,489,712    (305,498)  
Fund balances – ending $ 14,677,141    14,677,141    16,693,477    2,016,336   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Riverfront Redevelopment Special Tax Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Taxes Property $ 6,274,297    6,274,297    6,011,894    (262,403)  
Taxes In lieu —     —     5,625    5,625   
Intergovernmental 1,500,000    1,500,000    1,500,000    —    
Miscellaneous Rents & Royalties —     —     825,000    825,000   
Contributions and grants 1,021,901    1,021,901    228,722    (793,179)  

Total revenues 8,796,198    8,796,198    8,571,241    (224,957)  

Expenditures:
General Government 23,700    23,700    59,707    (36,007)  
Debt service Principal 3,566,492    3,566,492    3,566,492    —    
Debt service Interest 5,830,783    5,830,783    5,892,020    (61,237)  
Debt service Bond issuance costs 25,000    25,000    —     25,000   

Total expenditures 9,445,975    9,445,975    9,518,219    (72,244)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (649,777)   (649,777)   (946,978)   (297,201)  

Net change in fund balance (649,777)   (649,777)   (946,978)   (297,201)  

Fund balances – beginning 5,026,118    5,026,118    5,581,537    (555,419)  
Fund balances – ending $ 4,376,341    4,376,341    4,634,559    258,218   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Balance Sheet   

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds    

December 31, 2010   

ASARCO/ Airport 1998 Training
Lewis & 2006 2000 Street Business 2006 Facility

Clark Advanced City Capital Environmental Highway Park Transportation 2006 Public Construction
Assets Remediation Acquisition Improvement Bond 2001 #1 Development Bond Facilities Bond Bond

Cash and pooled investments $ 378,391    3,193,657    —     —     —     694,717    1,306,799    2,446,597    —    
Investments 1,532,972    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Due from other governments —     —     963,231    30,588    —     —     643,589    —     —    
Accrued interest 4,594    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Other assets —     —     498,902    —     —     —     —     —     —    
Deposits with trustee —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total assets $ 1,915,957    3,193,657    1,462,133    30,588    —     694,717    1,950,388    2,446,597    —    

Liabilities and Fund Balances    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ —     —     307,984    347,093    —     —     530,829    179,426   
Due to governments —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Due to other funds —     —     309,107    133,962    —     —     —     —     99,561   
Deferred revenue —     —     878,983    30,588    —     —     626,631    —     —    

Total liabilities —     —     1,496,074    511,643    —     —     1,157,460    179,426    99,561   

Fund balance (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances —     —     1,081,797    495,716    —     —     1,467,042    510,350    55,032   
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Capital projects 1,915,957    3,193,657    (1,115,738)   (976,771)   —     694,717    (674,114)   1,756,821    (154,593)  

Total fund balance 1,915,957    3,193,657    (33,941)   (481,055)   —     694,717    792,928    2,267,171    (99,561)  
Total liabilities and fund balance (deficits) $ 1,915,957    3,193,657    1,462,133    30,588    —     694,717    1,950,388    2,446,597    —    

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. (Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Balance Sheet   

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds    

December 31, 2010   

Pedestrian
Trail Bridge Missouri

2006 2000 Park and 2006 Parks Joint Use Stadium River South Omaha
Public Safety Recreation and Recreation Omaha/Council Expansion/ Pedestrian Gallup Campus Back to the Library

Assets Bond Bond 2002 #1 Bond Bluffs Improvement Bridge Construction River Project Construction

Cash and pooled investments $ 1,583,050    —     1,965,228    201,828    —     —     —     —     —    
Investments —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —     —     70,562    —     —     321,249    —     —     —    
Due from other governments —     95,840    —     —     —     1,513,460    —     417,740    —    
Accrued interest —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Other assets —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Deposits with trustee —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total assets $ 1,583,050    95,840    2,035,790    201,828    —     1,834,709    —     417,740    —    

Liabilities and Fund Balances    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 63,457    —     68,525    835    —     —     —     372    —    
Due to governments —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Due to other funds —     —     —     —     —     969,619    —     428,413    —    
Deferred revenue —     95,840    70,565    —     —     1,834,709    —     417,740    —    

Total liabilities 63,457    95,840    139,090    835    —     2,804,328    —     846,525    —    

Fund balance (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances 37,541    —     580,732    —     —     1,026    —     85,753    —    
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Capital projects 1,482,052    —     1,315,968    200,993    —     (970,645)   —     (514,538)   —    

Total fund balance 1,519,593    —     1,896,700    200,993    —     (969,619)   —     (428,785)   —    
Total liabilities and fund balance (deficits) $ 1,583,050    95,840    2,035,790    201,828    —     1,834,709    —     417,740    —    

(Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

December 31, 2010

UNMC Library Capital Total
Infrastructure Downtown Facilities Special Service Special Capital

Assets Improvement Development Capital Assessment Assessment Projects

Cash and pooled investments $ —     90,000    —     —     11,967    11,872,234   
Investments —     —     —     —     —     1,532,972   
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —     1,452    67,825    1,565,726    2,075,683    4,102,497   
Due from other governments 68,662    —     —     942    5,667    3,739,719   
Accrued interest —     —     —     34    524    5,152   
Other assets —     —     —     —     —     498,902   
Deposits with trustee —     —     401,018    —     —     401,018   

Total assets $ 68,662    91,452    468,843    1,566,702    2,093,841    22,152,494   

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ —     31,050    275,702    224,101    1,423    2,030,797   
Due to governments 68,662    —     —     —     —     68,662   
Due to other funds —     86,565    3,333    78,403    —     2,108,963   
Deferred revenue —     —     —     1,565,727    2,075,680    7,596,463   

Total liabilities 68,662    117,615    279,035    1,868,231    2,077,103    11,804,885   

Fund balance (deficits):
Reserved for:

Encumbrances —     —     229,710    272,488    —     4,817,187   
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Capital projects —     (26,163)   (39,902)   (574,017)   16,738    5,530,422   

Total fund balance —     (26,163)   189,808    (301,529)   16,738    10,347,609   
Total liabilities and fund balance (deficits) $ 68,662    91,452    468,843    1,566,702    2,093,841    22,152,494   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances          

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds    

December 31, 2010   

ASARCO/ Airport 1998 Training
Lewis & 2006 2000 Street Business 2006 Facility

Clark Advanced City Capital Environmental Highway Park Transportation 2006 Public Construction
Remediation Acquisition Improvement Bond 2001 #1 Development Bond Facilities Bond Bond

Revenues:
Special assessments $ —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Investment income 10,031    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Charges for services —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Contributions and grants —     —     1,809,890    130,715    —     —     2,021,435    —     —    

Total revenues 10,031    —     1,809,890    130,715    —     —     2,021,435    —     —    

Expenditures:
Current:

General government —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public safety —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transportation services —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Community development —     29,474    (1,088)   —     —     26,375    —     —     —    
Culture and parks —     —     —     —     —     —     —     2,684    —    

Debt service:
Principal —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Interest —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Debt issuance costs —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Capital outlay:
Other public services —     —     —     1,517,228    —     —     —     —     —    
Public safety —     —     —     —     —     —     —     1,016,661    477,729   
Culture and parks —     —     —     —     —     —     —     384,385    —    
General government —     —     1,418,817    —     —     —     —     29,823    —    
Transportation —     —     324,975    —     —     —     7,653,961    400,573    —    
Community development —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total expenditures —     29,474    1,742,704    1,517,228    —     26,375    7,653,961    1,834,126    477,729   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     —     1,258,936    —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transfers out —     —     —     —     —     —     (1,278,845)   —     —    
Sale of capital assets —     647,484    —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Proceeds from the sale of bonds —     —     —     600,000    —     —     4,300,000    1,100,000    —    

Total other financing sources (uses) —     647,484    1,258,936    600,000    —     —     3,021,155    1,100,000    —    

Excess revenues over expenditures
(net change in fund balances) 10,031    618,010    1,326,122    (786,513)   —     (26,375)   (2,611,371)   (734,126)   (477,729)  

Fund balances (deficits) – beginning 1,905,926    2,575,647    (1,360,063)   305,458    —     721,092    3,404,299    3,001,297    378,168   
Fund balance (deficits) – ending $ 1,915,957    3,193,657    (33,941)   (481,055)   —     694,717    792,928    2,267,171    (99,561)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. (Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances          

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds    

December 31, 2010   

Pedestrian
Trail Bridge Missouri

2006 2000 Park and 2006 Parks Joint Use Stadium River South Omaha
Public Safety Recreation and Recreation Omaha/Council Expansion/ Pedestrian Gallup Campus Back to the Library

Bond Bond 2002 #1 Bond Bluffs Improvement Bridge Construction River Project Construction
Revenues:

Special assessments $ —     —     339,017    —     —     —     —     —     —    
Investment income —     —     4    —     —     —     —     —     —    
Charges for services —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Contributions and grants —     —     1,205,190    100,000    —     3,089,492    —     994,456    —    

Total revenues —     —     1,544,211    100,000    —     3,089,492    —     994,456    —    

Expenditures:
Current:

General government —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public safety —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transportation services —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Community development —     —     —     —     —     —     18,100    —     —    
Culture and parks —     —     —     64,472    —     112,430    —     11,046    —    

Debt service:
Principal —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Interest —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Debt issuance costs —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Capital outlay:
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public safety 1,209,692    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Culture and parks —     —     4,052,601    —     —     99,455    —     —     6,734   
General government —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transportation —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Community development —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total expenditures 1,209,692    —     4,052,601    64,472    —     211,885    18,100    11,046    6,734   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     —     88,899    100,000    —     1,200,032    —     —     —    
Transfers out (169,270)   —     —     —     (79,599)   —     (1,200,032)   —     (143,453)  
Sale of capital assets —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Proceeds from the sale of bonds —     —     2,500,000    —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total other financing sources (uses) (169,270)   —     2,588,899    100,000    (79,599)   1,200,032    (1,200,032)   —     (143,453)  

Excess revenues over expenditures
(net change in fund balances) (1,378,962)   —     80,509    135,528    (79,599)   4,077,639    (1,218,132)   983,410    (150,187)  

Fund balances (deficits) – beginning 2,898,555    —     1,816,191    65,465    79,599    (5,047,258)   1,218,132    (1,412,195)   150,187   
Fund balance (deficits) – ending $ 1,519,593    —     1,896,700    200,993    —     (969,619)   —     (428,785)   —    

(Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

December 31, 2010

UNMC Library Capital Total
Infrastructure Downtown Facilities Special Service Special Capital 
Improvement Development Capital Assessment Assessment Projects

Revenues:
Special assessments $ —     —     —     —     7,309    346,326   
Investment income —     —     1,484    51,016    32,117    94,652   
Charges for services —     17,424    —     197,534    273,756    488,714   
Contributions and grants 6,894    —     24,000    —     —     9,382,072   

Total revenues 6,894    17,424    25,484    248,550    313,182    10,311,764   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government —     223,000    —     125,206    5,213    353,419   
Public safety —     —     —     —     —     —    
Transportation services —     —     —     —     —     —    
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     —    
Community development 6,894    —     —     —     —     79,755   
Culture and parks —     —     —     36,734    —     227,366   

Debt service:
Principal —     —     —     257,000    —     257,000   
Interest —     —     —     7,541    —     7,541   
Debt issuance costs —     —     —     —     —     —    

Capital outlay:
Other public services —     —     —     —     —     1,517,228   
Public safety —     —     —     —     —     2,704,082   
Culture and parks —     —     1,861,566    —     —     6,404,741   
General government —     —     —     —     —     1,448,640   
Transportation —     —     —     218,158    —     8,597,667   
Community development —     144,546    —     —     —     144,546   

Total expenditures 6,894    367,546    1,861,566    644,639    5,213    21,741,985   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     —     143,453    750,000    —     3,541,320   
Transfers out —     —     —     —     (750,000)   (3,621,199)  
Sale of capital assets —     —     —     —     —     647,484   
Proceeds from the sale of bonds —     —     —     —     —     8,500,000   

Total other financing sources (uses) —     —     143,453    750,000    (750,000)   9,067,605   

Excess revenues over expenditures
(net change in fund balances) —     (350,122)   (1,692,629)   353,911    (442,031)   (2,362,616)  

Fund balances (deficits) – beginning —     323,959    1,882,437    (655,440)   458,769    12,710,225   
Fund balance (deficits) – ending $ —     (26,163)   189,808    (301,529)   16,738    10,347,609   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Advanced Acquisition Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
$ —     —     —     —    

Total revenues —     —     —     —    

Expenditures:
Community development —     —     29,474    (29,474)  

Total expenditures —     —     29,474    (29,474)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures —     —     (29,474)   (29,474)  

Other financing sources:
Sale of capital assets —     —     647,484    647,484   

Total other financing sources —     —     647,484    647,484   

Net change in fund balance —     —     618,010    618,010   

Fund balances – beginning 279,441    279,441    2,575,647    2,296,206   
Fund balances – ending $ 279,441    279,441    3,193,657    2,914,216   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – City Capital Improvement Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Grants and contributions $ —     1,809,890    1,809,890   

Total revenues —     —     1,809,890    1,809,890   

Expenditures:
Community development —     (1,088)   1,088   
Capital outlay —     1,743,792    (1,743,792)  

Total expenditures —     —     1,742,704    (1,742,704)  

Excess of revenues
over expenditures —     —     67,186    67,186   

Other financing sources:
Transfers in —     1,258,936    1,258,936   

Total other financing sources —     —     1,258,936    1,258,936   

Net change in fund balance —     —     1,326,122    1,326,122   

Fund balances – beginning —     —     (1,360,063)   (1,360,063)  
Fund balances – ending $ —     —     (33,941)   (33,941)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – 2006 Environmental Bond Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Grants and contributions $ —     —     130,715    130,715   

Total revenues —     —     130,715    130,715   

Expenditures:
Capital outlay 806,000    806,000    2,012,941    (1,206,941)  

Total expenditures 806,000    806,000    2,012,941    (1,206,941)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (806,000)   (806,000)   (1,882,226)   (1,076,226)  

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from sale of bonds 1,785,000    1,785,000    600,000    (1,185,000)  

Total other financing sources 1,785,000    1,785,000    600,000    (1,185,000)  

Net change in fund balance 979,000    979,000    (1,282,226)   (2,261,226)  

Fund balances – beginning (275,535)   (275,535)   305,458    580,993   
Fund balances – ending $ 703,465    703,465    (976,768)   (1,680,233)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – 2006 Transportation Bond Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Grants and contributions $ 9,699,000    9,699,000    2,021,435    (7,677,565)  

Total revenues 9,699,000    9,699,000    2,021,435    (7,677,565)  

Expenditures:
Capital outlay 12,347,000    12,347,000    9,121,003    3,225,997   

Total expenditures 12,347,000    12,347,000    9,121,003    3,225,997   

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (2,648,000)   (2,648,000)   (7,099,568)   (4,451,568)  

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out —     —     (1,278,845)   (1,278,845)  
Proceeds from sale of bonds 7,285,000    7,285,000    4,300,000    (2,985,000)  

Total other financing sources 7,285,000    7,285,000    3,021,155    (4,263,845)  

Net change in fund balance 4,637,000    4,637,000    (4,078,413)   (8,715,413)  

Fund balances – beginning 1,203,000    1,203,000    3,404,299    2,201,299   
Fund balances – ending $ 5,840,000    5,840,000    (674,114)   (6,514,114)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – 2006 Public Safety Bond Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
$ —     —     —     —    

Total revenues —     —     —     —    

Expenditures:
Capital outlay 215,000    215,000    1,247,233    (1,032,233)  

Total expenditures 215,000    215,000    1,247,233    (1,032,233)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (215,000)   (215,000)   (1,247,233)   (1,032,233)  

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out 365,000    365,000    (169,270)   (534,270)  

Total other financing sources (uses) 365,000    365,000    (169,270)   (534,270)  

Net change in fund balance 150,000    150,000    (1,416,503)   (1,566,503)  

Fund balances – beginning 855,055    855,055    2,898,555    2,043,500   
Fund balances – ending $ 1,005,055    1,005,055    1,482,052    476,997   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – 2006 Public Facilities Bond Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
$ —     —     —     —    

Total revenues —     —     —     —    

Expenditures:
Culture and parks —     —     2,684    (2,684)  
Capital outlay 1,827,000    1,827,000    2,322,261    (495,261)  

Total expenditures 1,827,000    1,827,000    2,324,945    (497,945)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (1,827,000)   (1,827,000)   (2,324,945)   (497,945)  

Other financing sources:
Proceeds from sale of bonds 2,600,000    2,600,000    1,100,000    (1,500,000)  

Total other financing sources 2,600,000    2,600,000    1,100,000    (1,500,000)  

Net change in fund balance 773,000    773,000    (1,224,945)   (1,997,945)  

Fund balances – beginning (773,420)   (773,420)   3,001,297    3,774,717   
Fund balances – ending $ (420)   (420)   1,776,352    1,776,772   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – 2006 Parks and Recreation Bond Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Special assessments $ —     —     339,017    339,017   
Investment income —     —     4    4   
Contributions and grants 80,000    80,000    1,205,190    1,125,190   

Total revenues 80,000    80,000    1,544,211    1,464,211   

Expenditures:
Capital outlay 2,800,000    2,800,000    4,633,333    (1,833,333)  

Total expenditures 2,800,000    2,800,000    4,633,333    (1,833,333)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (2,720,000)   (2,720,000)   (3,089,122)   (369,122)  

Other financing sources:
Transfers in —     —     88,899    88,899   
Proceeds from sale of bonds 4,365,000    4,365,000    2,500,000    (1,865,000)  

Total other financing sources 4,365,000    4,365,000    2,588,899    (1,776,101)  

Net change in fund balance 1,645,000    1,645,000    (500,223)   (2,145,223)  

Fund balances – beginning (1,629,416)   (1,629,416)   1,816,191    3,445,607   
Fund balances – ending $ 15,584    15,584    1,315,968    1,300,384   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Stadium Expansion/Improvement Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Grants and contributions 33,167    33,167    —     (33,167)  

Total revenues 33,167    33,167    —     (33,167)  

Expenditures:
Culture and parks 50,000    50,000    —     50,000   

Total expenditures 50,000    50,000    —     50,000   

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (16,833)   (16,833)   —     16,833   

Other financing uses:
Transfers out —     —     (79,599)   (79,599)  

Total other financing uses —     —     (79,599)   (79,599)  

Net change in fund balance (16,833)   (16,833)   (79,599)   (62,766)  

Fund balances – beginning 63,743    63,743    79,599    15,856   
Fund balances – ending $ 46,910    46,910    —     (46,910)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Library Facilities Capital Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Investment income $ —     —     1,484    1,484   
Grants and contributions —     —     24,000    24,000   

Total revenues —     —     25,484    25,484   

Expenditures:
Capital outlay 644,000    644,000    2,091,276    (1,447,276)  

Total expenditures 644,000    644,000    2,091,276    (1,447,276)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (644,000)   (644,000)   (2,065,792)   (1,421,792)  

Other financing sources:
Transfers in —     —     143,453    143,453   
Proceeds from sale of bonds 644,000    644,000    —     (644,000)  

Total other financing sources 644,000    644,000    143,453    (500,547)  

Net change in fund balance —     —     (1,922,339)   (1,922,339)  

Fund balances – beginning —     —     1,882,437    1,882,437   
Fund balances – ending $ —     —     (39,902)   (39,902)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Special Assessment Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Special assessments $ —     —     7,309    7,309   
Investment income 100,000    100,000    83,133    (16,867)  
Charges for services 527,500    527,500    471,290    (56,210)  

Total revenues 627,500    627,500    561,732    (65,768)  

Expenditures:
General government 35,000    35,000    130,419    (95,419)  
Transportation services 75,000    75,000    —     75,000   
Culture and parks 550,000    550,000    36,734    513,266   
Debt service Principal —     —     257,000    (257,000)  
Debt service Interest 45,000    45,000    7,541    37,459   
Capital outlay —     —     490,647    (490,647)  

Total expenditures 705,000    705,000    922,341    (217,341)  

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (77,500)   (77,500)   (360,609)   (283,109)  

Other financing sources (uses):
Adjustment of bank loan 100,000    100,000    —     (100,000)  
Transfers in —     —     750,000    750,000   
Transfers out —     —     (750,000)   (750,000)  

Total other financing sources 100,000    100,000    —     (100,000)  

Net change in fund balance 22,500    22,500    (360,609)   (383,109)  

Fund balances – beginning 8,082    8,082    (196,671)   (204,753)  
Fund balances – ending $ 30,582    30,582    (557,280)   (587,862)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Permanent Funds

December 31, 2010

Total
Western Endowment Permanent

Assets Heritage for library Funds

Cash and pooled investments $ 122,099    4,168    126,267   
Investments 2,999,433    58,189    3,057,622   
Accrued interest 42,104    40    42,144   

Total assets $ 3,163,636    62,397    3,226,033   

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 21,719    —     21,719   

Total liabilities 21,719    —     21,719   

Fund balances (deficits):
Reserved for:

Endowment 2,717,918    57,471    2,775,389   
Unreserved, undesignated reported in:

Permanent fund 423,999    4,926    428,925   

Total fund balance 3,141,917    62,397    3,204,314   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 3,163,636    62,397    3,226,033   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Permanent Funds

December 31, 2010

Total
Western Endowment Permanent
Heritage for library Funds

Revenues:
Investment income (loss) $ (23,603)   294    (23,309)  

Total revenues (23,603)   294    (23,309)  

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and parks 86,874    100    86,974   

Total expenditures 86,874    100    86,974   

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in —     —     —    
Transfers out —     —     —    

Total other financing sources —     —     —    

Net change in fund balance (110,477)   194    (110,283)  

Beginning fund balance 3,252,394    62,203    3,314,597   
Ending fund balance $ 3,141,917    62,397    3,204,314   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Budgetary Comparison Schedule – Western Heritage Permanent Fund

Year ended December 31, 2010

Variance with
final budget

Budgeted amounts positive
Original Final Actual (negative)

Revenues:
Investment income (loss) $ 86,875    86,875    (23,603)   (110,478)  

Total revenues 86,875    86,875    (23,603)   (110,478)  

Expenditures:
Culture and parks 100,000    100,000    86,874    13,126   

Total expenditures 100,000    100,000    86,874    13,126   

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (13,125)   (13,125)   (110,477)   (97,352)  

Net change in fund balance (13,125)   (13,125)   (110,477)   (97,352)  

Fund balances – beginning 3,281,966    3,281,966    3,314,597    32,631   
Fund balances – ending $ 3,268,841    3,268,841    3,204,120    (64,721)  

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Net Assets

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

December 31, 2010

City Wide Printing Riverfront
Sports Dodge Park Tennis Golf Golf Services Plaza & Total

Assets Revenue Marinas Marina Dredge Operations Operations Concessions Air Quality Compost and Graphics Marina Enterprise

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 81,357    686,165    36,587    68,347    —     12,816    172,423    —     75,654    107,475    1,240,824   
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —     —     —     —     34,636    —     107,643    15,614    15,931    6,293    180,117   
Due from other funds —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     24,913    —     24,913   
Other assets —     —     —     —     —     —     —     2,874    —     —     2,874   
Inventories —     —     —     —     —     9,859    —     —     —     —     9,859   

Total current assets 81,357    686,165    36,587    68,347    34,636    22,675    280,066    18,488    116,498    113,768    1,458,587   

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Building and systems —     3,388,192    —     3,648,929    2,632,090    264,715    —     —     —     —     9,933,926   
Furniture and fixtures —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Machinery and equipment —     110,202    —     —     1,639,881    —     —     969,409    76,471    —     2,795,963   
Construction in progress —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Less accumulated depreciation —     (1,611,464)   —     (1,418,127)   (3,008,424)   (238,965)   —     (369,046)   (76,471)   —     (6,722,497)  

Total capital assets (net of accumulated
depreciation) —     1,886,930    —     2,230,802    1,263,547    25,750    —     600,363    —     —     6,007,392   

Total noncurrent assets —     1,886,930    —     2,230,802    1,263,547    25,750    —     600,363    —     —     6,007,392   
Total assets $ 81,357    2,573,095    36,587    2,299,149    1,298,183    48,425    280,066    618,851    116,498    113,768    7,465,979   

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and other $ 1,275    6,128    —     9,163    37,475    1,450    16,670    6,277    28,523    17    106,978   
Current installments of long-term debt —     —     —     —     —     —     —     25,000    —     —     25,000   
Workers’ compensation and healthcare claims —     7,857    —     8,781    106,949    —     21,136    15,525    5,951    —     166,199   
Accrued interest payable —     —     —     —     —     —     —     3,842    —     —     3,842   
Due to other funds —     471    —     777    845,952    —     3,061    82,582    462    —     933,305   
Compensated absences —     88    —     1,151    9,735    —     5,075    3,558    332    —     19,939   

Total current liabilities 1,275    14,544    —     19,872    1,000,111    1,450    45,942    136,784    35,268    17    1,255,263   

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt excluding current installments —     —     —     —     —     —     —     372,012    —     —     372,012   
Pension obligation —     61,466    —     45,052    651,698    —     218,873    161,717    51,873    —     1,190,679   
Postretirement benefit obligation —     48,265    —     35,376    511,738    —     171,868    126,986    40,730    —     934,963   
Workers’ compensation and healthcare claims —     14,169    —     15,836    192,869    —     38,117    27,995    10,733    —     299,719   
Compensated absences —     1,670    —     21,878    184,974    —     96,441    67,558    6,298    —     378,819   

Total noncurrent liabilities —     125,570    —     118,142    1,541,279    —     525,299    756,268    109,634    —     3,176,192   

Total liabilities 1,275    140,114    —     138,014    2,541,390    1,450    571,241    893,052    144,902    17    4,431,455   

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt —     1,886,930    —     2,230,802    1,263,547    25,750    —     203,351    —     —     5,610,380   
Unrestricted 80,082    546,051    36,587    (69,667)   (2,506,754)   21,225    (291,175)   (477,552)   (28,404)   113,751    (2,575,856)  

Total net assets 80,082    2,432,981    36,587    2,161,135    (1,243,207)   46,975    (291,175)   (274,201)   (28,404)   113,751    3,034,524   
Total liabilities and net assets $ 81,357    2,573,095    36,587    2,299,149    1,298,183    48,425    280,066    618,851    116,498    113,768    7,465,979   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

December 31, 2010

City Wide Printing Riverfront
Sports Dodge Park Tennis Golf Golf Services Plaza & Total

Revenue Marinas Marina Dredge Operations Operations Concessions Air Quality Compost and Graphics Marina Enterprise

Operating revenues:
Charges for services $ 193,202    446,039    —     263,691    2,888,814    532,890    802,199    835,696    474,093    48,532    6,485,156   

Total operating revenues 193,202    446,039    —     263,691    2,888,814    532,890    802,199    835,696    474,093    48,532    6,485,156   

Operating expenses:
Personal services 47,563    158,618    —     141,438    1,581,597    147,060    608,789    444,317    122,584    —     3,251,966   
Outside services 100,641    57,269    —     76,614    440,624    11,741    47,871    86,339    46,868    15,250    883,217   
Operation and maintenance 1,325    18,161    —     27,772    761,811    8,142    152,671    339,853    235,170    —     1,544,905   
Cost of sales and service —     49,494    —     —     432    181,161    —     —     —     —     231,087   
Depreciation and amortization —     131,177    —     116,324    137,979    —     —     71,565    —     —     457,045   

Total operating expenses 149,529    414,719    —     362,148    2,922,443    348,104    809,331    942,074    404,622    15,250    6,368,220   

Operating income (loss) 43,673    31,320    —     (98,457)   (33,629)   184,786    (7,132)   (106,378)   69,471    33,282    116,936   

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment expense —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (20,823)   —     —     (20,823)  

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (20,823)   —     —     (20,823)  

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 43,673    31,320    —     (98,457)   (33,629)   184,786    (7,132)   (127,201)   69,471    33,282    96,113   

Transfers in 1,339    —     4,000    —     195,000    —     —     —     —     —     200,339   
Transfers out —     (4,000)   —     —     (3,103)   (196,339)   —     —     —     —     (203,442)  

Change in net assets 45,012    27,320    4,000    (98,457)   158,268    (11,553)   (7,132)   (127,201)   69,471    33,282    93,010   

Total net assets (deficit) – beginning 35,070    2,405,661    32,587    2,259,592    (1,401,475)   58,528    (284,043)   (147,000)   (97,875)   80,469    2,941,514   
Total net assets (deficit) – ending $ 80,082    2,432,981    36,587    2,161,135    (1,243,207)   46,975    (291,175)   (274,201)   (28,404)   113,751    3,034,524   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

December 31, 2010

City Wide Printing Riverfront
Sports Dodge Park Tennis Golf Golf Services Plaza & Total

Revenue Marinas Marina Dredge Operations Operations Concessions Air Quality Compost and Graphics Marina Enterprise

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 193,202    446,039    —     263,691    2,891,981    529,401    717,627    827,587    510,170    46,780    6,426,478   
Payments to suppliers (107,852)   (146,341)   —     (106,831)   (1,224,329)   (199,909)   (200,410)   (424,478)   (270,941)   (15,233)   (2,696,324)  
Payments to employees (47,563)   (140,416)   —     (160,166)   (1,899,464)   (147,060)   (432,492)   (337,527)   (117,535)   —     (3,282,223)  

Net cash provided by (used in)
   operating activities 37,787    159,282    —     (3,306)   (231,812)   182,432    84,725    65,582    121,694    31,547    447,931   

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Transfers in/out 1,339    (4,000)   4,000    —     191,897    (196,339)   —     —     —     —     (3,103)  
Advances from (to) other funds —     760,377    —     46,696    36,810    17,555    87,228    (20,570)   (46,040)   21,421    903,477   

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital
   financing activities 1,339    756,377    4,000    46,696    228,707    (178,784)   87,228    (20,570)   (46,040)   21,421    900,374   

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital expenditures —     (230,088)   —     —     3,105    —     —     —     —     —     (226,983)  
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (3,031)   —     —     (3,031)  
Payments on long-term debt —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (25,000)   —     —     (25,000)  
Interest paid —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (16,981)   —     —     (16,981)  

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and
   related financing activities —     (230,088)   —     —     3,105    —     —     (45,012)   —     —     (271,995)  

Cash flows from investing activity:
Interest received —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Net cash provided by investing
   activity —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
   cash equivalents 39,126    685,571    4,000    43,390    —     3,648    171,953    —     75,654    52,968    1,076,310   

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 42,231    594    32,587    24,957    —     9,168    470    —     —     54,507    164,514   
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 81,357    686,165    36,587    68,347    —     12,816    172,423    —     75,654    107,475    1,240,824   

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $ 43,673    31,320    —     (98,457)   (33,629)   184,786    (7,132)   (106,378)   69,471    33,282    116,936   
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization —     131,177    —     116,324    137,979    —     —     71,565    —     —     457,045   
Cash flows impacted by changes in:

Accounts receivable —     —     —     —     3,167    —     (84,572)   (8,109)   36,077    (1,752)   (55,189)  
Prepaid assets —     —     —     —     —     —     —     3,096    —     —     3,096   
Inventories —     —     —     —     —     (3,489)   —     —     —     —     (3,489)  
Due from other governments —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Accounts payable and other (5,886)   (21,417)   —     (2,445)   (21,462)   1,135    132    (1,382)   11,097    17    (40,211)  
Claims payable —     21,904    —     3,242    (100,207)   —     22,453    11,703    (1,116)   —     (42,021)  
Pension obligation —     (2,955)   —     (13,102)   (132,661)   —     84,333    51,758    2,781    —     (9,846)  
Postretirement benefit obligation —     (747)   —     (8,868)   (84,999)   —     69,511    43,329    3,384    —     21,610   

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
   activities $ 37,787    159,282    —     (3,306)   (231,812)   182,432    84,725    65,582    121,694    31,547    447,931   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds

December 31, 2010

Civilian Police/Fire Total
Retirement Retirement Pension

Assets Fund Reserve Fund Trust

Cash and cash equivalents $ 765,729    780,721    1,546,450   
Receivables:

Accounts receivable 3,990    88,371    92,361   
Accrued interest 456,729    1,488,637    1,945,366   

Due from other funds 232,666    883,877    1,116,543   
Investments, at fair value —    

Government securities 24,304,539    28,921,724    53,226,263   
Municipal issues 1,837,801    2,084,133    3,921,934   
Corporate bonds 24,733,021    74,932,540    99,665,561   
Domestic equities 69,011,468    179,834,382    248,845,850   
International equities 34,721,347    63,454,266    98,175,613   
Domestic real estate securities 30,032,902    76,348,242    106,381,144   
Commodities 24,975,356    12,114,767    37,090,123   
Private equity 3,866,754    —     3,866,754   
Cash and cash equivalents 17,741,452    12,500,778    30,242,230   

Total assets $ 232,683,754    453,432,438    686,116,192   

Liabilities and Net Assets

Accounts payable and other current liabilities $ 337,170    792,135    1,129,305   

Total liabilities 337,170    792,135    1,129,305   

Held in trust for pension benefits 232,346,584    452,640,303    684,986,887   
Total liabilities and net assets $ 232,683,754    453,432,438    686,116,192   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds

December 31, 2010

Civilian Police/Fire Total
Retirement Retirement Pension

Fund Reserve Fund Trust

Additions:
Contributions:

Employer $ 5,717,610    24,183,614    29,901,224   
Employee 4,858,097    16,271,773    21,129,870   

Total contributions 10,575,707    40,455,387    51,031,094   

Investment income:
Dividends and interest 3,841,307    5,972,261    9,813,568   
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 32,609,186    60,886,531    93,495,717   

Total investment earnings 36,450,493    66,858,792    103,309,285   
Investment expenses (1,561,382)   (2,447,700)   (4,009,082)  

Net investment earnings 34,889,111    64,411,092    99,300,203   

Total additions 45,464,818    104,866,479    150,331,297   

Deductions:
Benefit payments 26,337,866    57,616,214    83,954,080   

Change in net assets 19,126,952    47,250,265    66,377,217   

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits,
beginning of year 213,219,632    405,390,038    618,609,670   

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits,
end of year $ 232,346,584    452,640,303    684,986,887   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA    

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities       

Agency Funds  

December 31, 2010   

Redevelopment R/D #77 Board of
126 First ConAgra TIF First National Hammons/ Automobile Education

National Bank Campus and TIF Bond Redevelopment Child Care Embassy Appeal Bond Impounding Liquor 
Assets Tower Parking Debt Service Projects Facility Suites Deposit Deposit Bid Deposit  Deposit

Cash and pooled investments $ —     633,486    455,942    64,942    —     —     1,125    107,678    109,987    144,513   
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     3,100   
Accrued interest —     —     2,817    —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Investments —     —     1,158,509    —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total assets $ —     633,486    1,617,268    64,942    —     —     1,125    107,678    109,987    147,613   

Liabilities and Fund Balances    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ —     633,486    1,617,268    64,942    —     —     1,125    107,678    109,987    147,613   

Total liabilities —     633,486    1,617,268    64,942    —     —     1,125    107,678    109,987    147,613   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ —     633,486    1,617,268    64,942    —     —     1,125    107,678    109,987    147,613   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. (Continued)
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

December 31, 2010

Board of
Education Humane Board of Park Arterial Street
Tobacco Society Omaha Transit Sales Tax After Hours Education Development Improvement Total

Assets Deposit Kennel Permits Bus Ticket Deposit Dance Deposit Parking Fines Deposits Program Agency

Cash and pooled investments $ 3,803    —     638    1,058    5,000    84,572    43    2,784,673    4,397,460   
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles) 13,285    2,400    —     47,087    —     —     —     —     65,872   
Accrued interest —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     2,817   
Investments —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     1,158,509   

Total assets $ 17,088    2,400    638    48,145    5,000    84,572    43    2,784,673    5,624,658   

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 17,088    2,400    638    48,145    5,000    84,572    43    2,784,673    5,624,658   

Total liabilities 17,088    2,400    638    48,145    5,000    84,572    43    2,784,673    5,624,658   
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 17,088    2,400    638    48,145    5,000    84,572    43    2,784,673    5,624,658   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Balance Balance
Redevelopment 126 January 1, December 31,

First National Bank Tower 2010 Additions Deductions 2010

Assets:
Accounts receivable $ 450    2,949,883    2,950,333    —    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 450    7,157,227    7,157,677    —    

ConAgra Campus and Parking

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 404,213    506,373    277,100    633,486   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 404,213    506,373    277,100    633,486   

TIF Bond Debt Service

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 141,615    2,967,692    2,653,365    455,942   
Accrued interest —     2,817    —     2,817   
Investments 1,345,647    1,200,000    1,387,138    1,158,509   

$ 1,487,262    4,170,509    4,040,503    1,617,268   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 1,487,262    288,332    158,326    1,617,268   

TIF Development Projects

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 46,851    31,199,413    31,181,322    64,942   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 46,851    16,832,865    16,814,774    64,942   

First National Child Care Facility

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 1,594    142,509    144,103    —    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 1,594    72,051    73,645    —    

R/D #77 Hammons/Embassy Suites

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 280,464    601,085    881,549    —    

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 280,464    78,315    358,779    —    

Appeal Bond Deposit

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 1,600    31,625    32,100    1,125   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 1,600    31,625    32,100    1,125   

Automobile Impounding Deposit

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 118,323    55,197    65,842    107,678   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 118,323    55,183    65,828    107,678   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

Bid Deposit 2010 Additions Deductions 2010

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 230,161    1,571,419    1,691,593    109,987   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 230,161    1,490,977    1,611,151    109,987   

Board of Education Liquor Deposit

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 139,613    528,925    524,025    144,513   
Accounts receivable 28,131    481,482    506,513    3,100   

$ 167,744    1,010,407    1,030,538    147,613   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 167,744    577,526    597,657    147,613   

Board of Education Tobacco Deposit

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 10,418    36,321    42,936    3,803   
Accounts receivable 7,061    20,232    14,008    13,285   

$ 17,479    56,553    56,944    17,088   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 17,479    26,376    26,767    17,088   

Humane Society Kennel Permits

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 60    4,860    4,920    —    
Accounts receivable 2,440    2,240    2,280    2,400   

$ 2,500    7,100    7,200    2,400   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 2,500    4,700    4,600    2,600   

Omaha Transit Bus Ticket

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 853    22,115    22,330    638   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 853    22,115    22,330    638   

Sales Tax Deposit

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 12,943    543,063    554,948    1,058   
Accounts receivable —     181,439    134,352    47,087   

$ 12,943    724,502    689,300    48,145   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 12,943    569,409    534,207    48,145   

After Hours Dance Deposit

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 5,000    —     —     5,000   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 5,000    —     —     5,000   
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CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

Year ended December 31, 2010

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,

Board of Education Parking Fines 2010 Additions Deductions 2010

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 59,773    527,049    502,250    84,572   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 59,773    552,573    527,774    84,572   

Park Development Deposits

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 76,397    76,361    152,715    43   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 76,397    76,361    152,715    43   

Arterial Street Improvement Program

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 5,758,750    6,081,477    9,055,554    2,784,673   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 5,758,750    5,053,848    8,027,925    2,784,673   

Total Agency Funds

Assets:
Cash and pooled investments $ 7,288,628    44,895,484    47,786,652    4,397,460   
Accounts receivable 38,082    3,635,276    3,607,486    65,872   
Accrued interest —     2,817    —     2,817   
Investments 1,345,647    1,200,000    1,387,138    1,158,509   

Total assets $ 8,672,357    49,733,577    52,781,276    5,624,658   

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and other liabilities $ 8,672,357    33,395,856    36,443,355    5,624,858   

Total liabilities $ 8,672,357    33,395,856    36,443,355    5,624,858   

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 1
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Net Assets by Component

Last Eight Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2003 to 2010

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Governmental activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt $ 235,711,911    201,522,874    213,958,527    237,357,059    261,308,456    295,937,697    309,036,583    327,786,022   
Restricted 32,067,872    11,898,950    13,163,721    14,612,499    16,814,445    15,189,807    8,238,405    6,350,609   
Unrestricted 17,111,405    65,166,250    80,623,315    60,396,134    49,343,457    (540,888)   (24,680,926)   (87,779,242)  

Total governmental
activities net assets $ 284,891,188    278,588,074    307,745,563    312,365,692    327,466,358    310,586,616    292,594,062    246,357,389   

Business-type activities:
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt $ 287,633,189    271,157,078    261,232,484    244,078,865    222,456,144    235,667,494    228,900,267    195,594,307   
Restricted —     —     10,135,739    12,362,000    6,898,070    4,248,375    8,253,046    31,292,774   
Unrestricted (1,656,667)   3,999,636    (2,984,272)   10,157,757    40,308,588    23,937,327    25,401,260    37,903,634   

Total business-type
activities net assets $ 285,976,522    275,156,714    268,383,951    266,598,622    269,662,802    263,853,196    262,554,573    264,790,715   

Primary government:
Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt $ 523,345,100    472,679,952    475,191,011    481,435,924    483,764,600    531,605,191    537,936,850    523,380,329   
Restricted 32,067,872    11,898,950    23,299,460    26,974,499    23,712,515    19,438,182    16,491,451    37,643,383   
Unrestricted 15,454,738    69,165,886    77,639,043    70,553,891    89,652,045    23,396,439    720,334    (49,875,608)  

Total primary government
net assets $ 570,867,710    553,744,788    576,129,514    578,964,314    597,129,160    574,439,812    555,148,635    511,148,104   

GASB 34 was adopted in 2002.
Source: City of Omaha Financial Statements.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 2
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Changes in Net Assets

Last Eight Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2003 to 2010

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Expenses:
Governmental activities:

General government $ 51,899,189    62,025,849    43,617,209    40,179,313    93,334,595    95,914,300    100,443,246    116,720,038   
Public safety 152,915,729    161,458,004    172,241,162    193,303,487    182,854,883    205,824,014    188,694,996    193,001,551   
Transportation services 44,481,809    47,492,991    44,550,196    47,021,969    53,248,665    60,683,765    61,124,356    60,380,233   
Other public services 14,774,426    14,147,624    14,185,823    14,797,970    15,650,815    17,366,093    17,355,052    21,001,115   
Community development 32,536,567    29,345,088    27,550,352    19,774,789    19,460,381    25,723,952    27,376,811    31,987,295   
Culture and parks 38,376,920    62,713,346    33,992,416    37,818,310    44,894,282    40,980,138    47,480,688    64,931,722   
Interest on long-term debt 30,310,243    24,203,951    32,326,682    32,437,752    34,696,594    36,519,588    37,443,658    38,360,978   

Total governmental activities expenses 365,294,883    401,386,853    368,463,840    385,333,590    444,140,215    483,011,850    479,918,807    526,382,932   

Business-type activities:
Convention center hotel 285,153    11,352,991    12,008,197    11,591,414    11,290,566    11,114,593    10,172,478    8,905,205   
Sewer 32,505,709    35,181,325    38,084,381    39,582,646    45,508,217    49,533,194    47,580,754    51,529,157   
Other 10,491,445    10,912,170    11,807,899    11,680,369    11,377,633    12,155,403    12,122,555    10,744,969   

Total business-type activities expenses 43,282,307    57,446,486    61,900,477    62,854,429    68,176,416    72,803,190    69,875,787    71,179,331   
Total primary government $ 408,577,190    458,833,339    430,364,317    448,188,019    512,316,631    555,815,040    549,794,594    597,562,263   

Component unit:
MECA $ 2,466,771    20,025,873    20,532,090    22,647,661    25,035,984    27,211,194    27,425,166    26,355,147   

Program revenues:
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
General government $ 27,286,779    7,606,199    8,430,849    8,098,358    5,854,592    5,729,600    8,560,906    11,432,415   
Public safety 5,263,466    13,696,238    8,869,544    8,941,612    15,205,428    15,812,344    14,736,190    18,373,482   
Transportation services 10,922,388    15,746,806    14,022,227    15,604,717    18,133,477    18,848,115    19,092,487    22,167,354   
Other public services 5,921,059    5,996,874    5,367,287    3,286,082    9,620,112    6,205,471    3,877,405    2,582,651   
Community development 6,215,809    13,247,956    11,118,776    10,757,992    8,343,329    6,397,642    7,465,072    5,748,813   
Culture and parks 286,588    4,082,523    6,598,990    11,881,082    4,789,667    3,545,845    10,177,203    8,772,389   

Operating grants and contributions 61,720,136    58,647,742    58,198,805    52,895,766    76,410,773    82,615,753    70,638,578    65,624,631   
Capital grants and contributions 29,908,919    20,425,832    32,117,784    17,134,301    29,598,164    30,129,275    27,255,802    31,671,217   

Total governmental activities
program revenues 147,525,144    139,450,170    144,724,262    128,599,910    167,955,542    169,284,045    161,803,643    166,372,952   

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Convention center hotel —     2,250,535    4,623,041    6,447,117    7,732,472    8,918,038    6,819,371    7,824,146   
Parking 3,821,967    3,299,347    3,749,533    3,790,010    4,151,923    4,115,811    4,144,920    4,170,400   
Sewer revenue fund 34,266,350    32,150,414    33,328,738    34,892,510    38,474,534    41,194,630    43,633,767    49,944,627   
Citywide sports 184,193    150,135    145,468    153,668    117,543    148,420    130,940    193,202   
Marinas 415,690    406,643    395,825    786,525    737,166    550,236    486,878    446,039   
Tennis operations 186,565    165,971    237,017    270,768    248,238    267,683    268,028    263,691   
Golf operations and concessions 3,180,770    3,339,390    3,311,079    3,406,750    3,537,287    3,441,617    3,644,417    3,421,704   
Air quality 537,439    591,923    512,456    536,475    532,192    509,037    537,111    802,199   
Compost 599,139    542,702    756,279    798,411    756,900    561,151    769,070    835,696   
Printing and graphics 418,110    490,540    478,632    515,262    528,309    543,339    551,847    474,093   
Riverfront plaza and marina —     34,665    20,661    31,011    85,482    38,350    40,179    48,532   

Operating grants and contributions —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Capital grants and contributions 1,609,802    3,004,158    5,795,266    9,011,366    4,486,724    4,565,282    5,491,917    —    

Total business-type activities
program revenues 45,220,025    46,426,423    53,353,995    60,639,873    61,388,770    64,853,594    66,518,445    68,424,329   

Total primary government $ 192,745,169    185,876,593    198,078,257    189,239,783    229,344,312    234,137,639    228,322,088    234,797,281   

Component unit:
MECA:

Charges for services $ 1,666,667    19,642,608    20,754,599    23,467,353    24,863,872    29,865,018    30,629,846    28,717,594   
Operating grants and contributions —     2,666,667    1,500,000    1,500,000    1,500,000    1,815,000    —     —    

$ 1,666,667    22,309,275    22,254,599    24,967,353    26,363,872    31,680,018    30,629,846    28,717,594   

Net (expense) revenue:
Governmental activities $ (217,769,739)   (261,936,683)   (223,739,578)   (256,733,680)   (276,184,673)   (313,727,805)   (318,115,164)   (360,009,980)  
Business-type activities 1,937,718    (11,020,063)   (8,546,482)   (2,214,556)   (6,787,646)   (7,949,596)   (3,357,342)   (2,755,002)  

Total $ (215,832,021)   (272,956,746)   (232,286,060)   (258,948,236)   (282,972,319)   (321,677,401)   (321,472,506)   (362,764,982)  

Component unit:
MECA $ (800,104)   2,283,402    1,722,509    2,319,692    1,327,888    4,468,824    3,204,680    2,362,447   
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Schedule 2
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Changes in Net Assets

Last Eight Fiscal Years
(Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2003 to 2010

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

General revenues and other changes in net assets:
Governmental activities:

Taxes:
Property tax $ 79,254,616    101,370,004    94,292,799    99,432,780    114,935,220    118,979,538    130,016,943    138,320,939   
Motor vehicle tax 8,637,101    8,814,977    9,030,957    8,818,011    8,825,629    9,374,405    9,299,184    9,309,995   
Sales and use tax 102,413,934    111,007,911    114,184,544    113,625,998    116,051,364    124,470,354    120,735,362    126,910,238   
Business taxes 27,423,096    27,000,112    26,845,997    28,781,008    30,884,535    33,963,566    34,251,049    38,228,765   
Payments in lieu of taxes 4,315,438    4,132,805    5,575,592    5,259,341    5,543,008    5,898,722    4,595,289    4,538,014   

Unrestricted investment earnings 1,618,924    2,325,730    2,298,930    5,446,225    6,722,915    4,720,079    1,663,491    1,440,989   
Sale of capital assets 1,190,261    1,105,685    1,781,215    (63,554)   (143,254)   —     1,290,879    (252,225)  
Transfers 471,805    (123,655)   (1,112,967)   54,000    (1,385,123)   (558,601)   (1,729,587)   (4,723,408)  

Total governmental activities 225,325,175    255,633,569    252,897,067    261,353,809    281,434,294    296,848,063    300,122,610    313,773,307   

Business-type activities:
Unrestricted investment earnings (66,022)   74,475    657,991    483,227    2,810,340    1,581,389    328,132    267,736   
Sale of capital assets 1,280    2,125    2,761    —     (13,447)   —     —     —    
Transfers (471,805)   123,655    1,112,967    (54,000)   1,385,123    558,601    1,729,587    4,723,408   

Total business-type activities (536,547)   200,255    1,773,719    429,227    4,182,016    2,139,990    2,057,719    4,991,144   
Total $ 224,788,628    255,833,824    254,670,786    261,783,036    285,616,310    298,988,053    302,180,329    318,764,451   

Component unit:
MECA:

Donations not restricted to specific programs $ 901,556    1,074,365    1,848,013    2,129,239    2,562,289    —     —     —    
Unrestricted investment earnings 15,708    60,361    229,544    615,691    821,148    984,508    506,343    —    

$ 917,264    1,134,726    2,077,557    2,744,930    3,383,437    984,508    506,343    —    

Change in net assets:
Governmental activities $ 7,555,436    (6,303,114)   29,157,489    4,620,129    5,249,621    (16,879,742)   (17,992,554)   (46,236,673)  
Business-type activities 1,401,171    (10,819,808)   (6,772,763)   (1,785,329)   (2,605,630)   (5,809,606)   (1,298,623)   2,236,142   

Total $ 8,956,607    (17,122,922)   22,384,726    2,834,800    2,643,991    (22,689,348)   (19,291,177)   (44,000,531)  

Component unit:
MECA $ 117,160    3,418,128    3,800,066    5,064,622    4,711,325    5,453,332    3,711,023    2,362,447   

Net assets – beginning of year
Governmental activities $ 277,335,752    284,891,188    278,588,074    307,745,563    322,216,737    327,466,358    310,586,616    292,594,062   
Business-type activities 284,575,351    285,976,522    275,156,714    268,383,951    272,268,432    269,662,802    263,853,196    262,554,573   

Total $ 561,911,103    570,867,710    553,744,788    576,129,514    594,485,169    597,129,160    574,439,812    555,148,635   

Component unit:
MECA $ 857,080    974,240    4,392,368    8,192,434    13,257,056    17,968,381    23,421,713    27,132,736   

Net assets – end of year:
Governmental activities $ 284,891,188    278,588,074    307,745,563    312,365,692    327,466,358    310,586,616    292,594,062    246,357,389   
Business-type activities 285,976,522    275,156,714    268,383,951    266,598,622    269,662,802    263,853,196    262,554,573    264,790,715   

Total $ 570,867,710    553,744,788    576,129,514    578,964,314    597,129,160    574,439,812    555,148,635    511,148,104   

Component unit:
MECA $ 974,240    4,392,368    8,192,434    13,257,056    17,968,381    23,421,713    27,132,736    29,495,183   

Source: City of Omaha Financial Statements.

¹ The end balance in 2006 for the City does not match the 2007 beginning balance because it was restated to include the annexation of Elkhorn.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.



177

Schedule 3
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2003 to 2010

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

General fund:
Reserved $ 3,863,287    3,994,560    4,142,557    2,517,525    3,550,983    4,492,350    1,896,788    2,810,463    3,921,976    3,637,299   
Unreserved 15,612,680    25,239,367    21,753,773    27,380,450    29,222,049    28,415,728    27,071,866    28,855,951    24,167,995    25,940,212   

Total general fund $ 19,475,967    29,233,927    25,896,330    29,897,975    32,773,032    32,908,078    28,968,654    31,666,414    28,089,971    29,577,511   

All other governmental funds:
Reserved $ 66,193,967    147,241,952    59,826,935    53,614,256    48,781,150    65,570,634    55,180,529    42,178,023    44,190,404    40,659,061   
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds 22,192,957    6,630,044    10,618,697    26,393,945    21,200,398    24,558,745    27,285,911    19,190,703    4,876,004    5,273,301   
Capital projects funds 94,869,191    754,714    (25,167,428)   (10,854,927)   16,307,510    (23,163,386)   (2,097,906)   (15,493,032)   35,431,679    17,252,775   
Permanent funds —     1,571,173    1,678,506    1,153    1,848    360    4,058    4,525    539,208    428,925   

Total all other
governmental funds $ 183,256,115    156,197,883    46,956,710    69,154,427    86,290,906    66,966,353    80,372,592    45,880,219    85,037,295    63,614,062   

Source: City of Omaha Financial Statements.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 4
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2003 to 2010

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property $ 76,892,227    79,663,600    82,686,854    96,380,823    89,341,424    94,917,441    102,681,478    112,384,610    117,561,400    130,625,280   
Motor vehicle 8,297,315    8,575,697    8,637,101    8,814,977    9,030,957    8,818,011    8,825,629    9,374,405    9,299,184    9,309,995   
City sales and use 94,847,848    99,992,087    102,413,934    111,007,911    114,184,544    113,625,998    116,051,364    124,470,354    120,735,362    126,910,238   
Business 27,000,552    28,069,612    27,423,096    27,000,112    26,845,997    28,781,008    30,884,535    34,249,571    34,251,051    38,228,765   
In lieu —     3,257,550    4,315,438    4,132,805    5,575,592    5,259,341    5,543,008    5,898,722    4,590,903    4,538,013   

Licenses and permits 8,341,810    8,633,941    7,899,272    8,699,324    8,248,962    8,216,566    8,044,824    8,022,731    7,125,362    8,447,524   
Intergovernmental 68,198,073    66,244,093    69,705,617    49,655,652    47,399,603    43,152,752    48,850,176    41,275,818    37,433,627    38,943,475   
Investment income 15,682,425    12,903,968    1,618,924    2,004,225    2,298,930    5,446,225    6,722,915    4,720,079    1,663,490    1,291,935   
Revenue from Keno 6,213,880    6,263,185    6,113,009    6,016,221    6,209,779    6,811,365    7,693,010    7,455,212    6,195,196    6,959,045   
Charges for services 27,098,611    29,150,713    41,105,575    41,237,971    38,469,645    38,312,408    45,183,420    45,347,323    60,769,869    49,441,858   
Special assessments 2,154,779    454,122    260,156    634,255    337,734    933,946    543,655    430,022    509,799    —    
Rents and royalties 131,239    734,629    518,077    3,788,825    2,487,922    2,521,666    5,353,045    2,726,418    1,459,459    2,388,690   
Contributions and grants 28,250,783    20,719,300    17,066,045    32,664,861    31,790,177    19,733,628    48,985,045    56,815,186    41,657,358    44,964,597   
Miscellaneous and other 1,759,594    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total revenues 364,869,136    364,662,497    369,763,098    392,037,962    382,221,266    376,530,355    435,362,104    453,170,451    443,252,060    462,049,415   

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 23,688,646    33,657,743    47,971,879    35,042,752    30,437,115    35,503,736    40,689,673    52,797,201    44,237,217    45,480,158   
Public safety 122,304,491    141,973,745    142,681,554    154,177,140    164,988,313    174,588,175    183,747,875    197,108,649    195,327,042    192,681,892   
Transportation services —     34,909,756    37,621,204    39,987,448    37,312,546    39,232,879    43,421,768    48,623,732    48,208,708    47,095,867   
Other public services —     17,698,906    14,613,586    13,957,226    13,928,763    14,364,818    14,750,946    16,929,963    16,403,382    20,012,730   
Community development 25,636,670    39,514,812    32,424,252    45,157,257    27,680,503    19,346,165    18,744,993    25,035,148    26,735,726    27,990,036   
Culture and parks —     32,911,152    35,399,038    33,900,044    31,431,397    28,351,405    31,551,223    30,321,658    29,906,063    31,916,664   
Parks, recreation, and public property 19,702,865    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public works 55,310,343    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Public library 9,989,436    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Keno statutory and contractual 3,059,892    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Judgments and related costs 2,197,736    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
County collection fees 366,368    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Debt service:
Principal 31,650,000    26,028,916    54,988,208    24,281,667    25,925,284    28,511,654    42,832,712    72,787,515    36,895,854    35,934,250   
Interest 22,738,197    28,357,708    30,044,064    21,744,997    31,086,344    31,506,802    33,532,480    34,954,674    36,899,394    38,360,978   
Bond issuance costs —     —     —     2,090,217    302,799    161,026    303,209    1,346,460    1,271,689    740,548   
Lease-purchase agreements 4,385,000    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Fiscal charges 1,403,179    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Capital outlay 128,416,415    140,207,856    136,739,116    39,033,370    47,748,502    42,654,753    58,734,797    76,692,920    64,895,974    79,278,779   
Other 25,722,604    —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total expenditures 476,571,842    495,260,594    532,482,901    409,372,118    410,841,566    414,221,413    468,309,676    556,597,920    500,781,049    519,491,902   

Deficiency of revenues
under expenditures (111,702,706)   (130,598,097)   (162,719,803)   (17,334,156)   (28,620,300)   (37,691,058)   (32,947,572)   (103,427,469)   (57,528,989)   (57,442,487)  

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 15,277,422    4,015,974    8,205,766    4,798,222    750,000    654,000    1,434,525    679,238    5,570,605    6,442,775   
Transfers out (17,770,326)   (5,649,786)   (7,733,961)   (4,921,877)   (1,862,967)   (600,000)   (2,819,648)   (1,237,839)   (7,300,192)   (11,169,286)  
Sales of capital assets —     1,921,870    1,243,595    1,759,448    1,877,271    —     —     421,700    1,334,919    647,484   
Proceeds from bonds issued 28,520,380    73,734,398    47,210,633    36,964,036    47,369,296    18,521,516    57,565,000    146,483,605    91,592,000    77,485,000   
Proceeds from special assessment debt —     —     1,215,000    —     —     —     —     —     —     —    
Proceeds of refunding bonds —     —     —     256,730,785    6,890,000    11,425,000    —     —     45,560,000    —    
Proceeds from issuance of notes —     —     —     2,962,858    —     —     —     —     —     —    
Proceeds/payment from bond

premium/discount, net —     —     —     —     543,236    168,836    671,698    4,350,806    4,649,445    2,435,125   
Payment to refund bond escrow agent —     —     —     (254,759,954)   (6,935,000)   (11,667,801)   (17,900,194)   (79,064,654)   (48,297,153)   (37,988,113)  
Discount on sale of bonds —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (346,191)  
Transfer to component unit (1,220,544)   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total other financing
sources (uses) 24,806,932    74,022,456    50,141,033    43,533,518    48,631,836    18,501,551    38,951,381    71,632,856    93,109,624    37,506,794   

Net change in fund balances $ (86,895,774)   (56,575,641)   (112,578,770)   26,199,362    20,011,536    (19,189,507)   6,003,809    (31,794,613)   35,580,635    (19,935,693)  

Debt Service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures 33.06% 18.09% 27.37% 14.93% 18.74% 19.33% 33.03% 29.42% 16.93% 20.55%

Source: City of Omaha Financial Statements.

¹ Note: GASB 34 implemented.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 5
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Tax Revenues by Source

2002 to 2010

Street
General highway Telephone Motor vehicle Hotel/vehicle MUD Cable

Year Sales tax property tax allocation occupation tax Wheel tax taxes occupation tax In lieu of tax franchise tax

2001 $ 105,846,630    76,357,274    24,123,810    14,978,891    7,157,464    8,297,315    3,871,632    4,798,204    3,367,270   
2002 107,565,620    79,240,695    25,510,299    14,767,810    8,641,992    8,575,697    3,714,662    3,794,615    3,598,700   
2003 110,910,102    82,018,063    25,203,929    14,034,329    9,167,644    8,637,101    3,775,915    4,131,352    3,352,617   
2004 117,526,998    84,730,700    25,889,143    14,136,577    11,766,177    8,814,977    4,234,814    3,946,630    3,523,756   
2005 120,873,521    88,660,364    25,503,946    13,725,215    11,896,323    8,808,677    4,475,250    6,360,672    3,589,703   
2006 122,721,806    93,165,028    24,790,938    14,352,217    11,751,030    8,818,011    4,864,298    5,056,174    4,048,296   
2007 128,625,275    98,142,156    28,638,167    14,965,695    14,934,190    8,825,629    5,480,361    5,229,233    4,312,349   
2008 131,801,803    109,912,905    29,459,975    15,932,992    15,525,838    9,374,405    5,887,235    5,714,591    4,727,391   
2009 127,301,965    115,586,354    27,572,563    15,746,026    15,638,431    9,299,184    4,556,261    4,411,087    4,952,987   
2010 131,452,524    128,501,803    27,674,536    14,815,170    18,348,772    9,309,995    4,672,662    4,356,585    5,198,243   

Source: City of Omaha Financial Statements.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 6
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real property Other property
Personal/

Residential/ centrally Total taxable Total
commercial assessed assessed direct

property property value tax rate

Year ended December 31:
2001 $ 16,386,298,200 2,175,320,911 18,561,619,111 43.387
2002 16,747,492,995 2,259,237,425 19,006,730,420 43.387
2003 17,209,603,450 2,193,041,999 19,402,645,449 43.387
2004 18,140,043,695 1,951,348,065 20,091,391,760 43.387
2005 19,561,022,580 1,934,101,080 21,495,123,660 43.387
2006 20,407,325,900 1,858,658,545 22,265,984,445 43.387
2007 23,466,618,660 1,835,621,110 25,302,239,770 43.387
2008 24,851,524,870 1,658,411,000 26,509,935,870 43.387
2009 25,148,357,122 1,929,355,078 27,077,712,200 43.387
2010 24,966,532,305 1,923,371,175 26,889,903,480 49.922

Note: Property is assessed at actual value; therefore, the assessed values are equal to actual value.

Source: Douglas County Assessor’s Office.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 7
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Property Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments

2005 – 2010

2010 – 2011 2009 – 2010 2008 – 2009 2007 – 2008 2006 – 2007

City of Omaha:
General fund $ 0.28447    0.26112    0.24312    0.24312    0.24312   
Judgment 0.00600    0.00600    0.00600    0.00600    0.00600   
Debt service 0.19281    0.19281    0.17581    0.17581    0.17581   
Redevelopment debt service 0.01594    0.01594    0.00894    0.00894    0.00894   

Total City of Omaha 0.49922    0.47587    0.43387    0.43387    0.43387   

Overlapping rates1:
Douglas County 0.26459    0.24519    0.24519    0.24519    0.26144   
Omaha Douglas Building Commission 0.01300    0.01300    0.01300    0.01096    0.01096   
Papio NRD 0.03275    0.03275    0.03375    0.03485    0.03844   
Omaha Public Schools 0.25863    0.25572    1.20064    1.20059    1.19930   
Metro Community College 0.08500    0.08500    0.06740    0.06740    0.06740   
Education service units 0.01500    0.01500    0.01500    0.01500    0.01500   
Omaha Transit Authority 0.04872    0.04674    0.04613    0.04617    0.04871   
Learning community 0.95000    0.96000    —     —     —    
Learning community – capital projects 0.00125    0.00500    —     —     —    

Total overlapping rates 1.66894    1.65840    1.62111    1.62016    1.64125   
Total tax rate $ 2.16816    2.13427    2.05498    2.05403    2.07512   

Note: 1 Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners 
within the City of Omaha.

Sources: Douglas County Clerk’s Office and City of Omaha Finance Department.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 8
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Principal Property Taxpayers

2009 – 2010

2009 2010
Percentage Percentage
of total City of total City

Taxable taxable Taxable taxable
Type of assessed assessed assessed assessed

Taxpayer business value Rank value value Rank value

Oak View Mall LLC Retail management $ 102,806,973    1    0.39% $ 103,070,800    1    0.38%
United of Omaha Life Insurance Insurance 96,319,743    3    0.36 96,363,200    2    0.36
Westroads Mall LLC Retail management 82,216,174    5    0.31 92,602,800    3    0.34
168th and Dodge LP Real estate management 77,771,368    6    0.29 92,461,200    4    0.34
Nebraska Furniture Mart Retail —     —     74,414,700    5    0.27
Walmart Stores, Inc Retail —     —     65,401,900    6    0.24
Creighton St. Joseph Regional Healthcare —     —     62,978,500    7    0.23
Target Retail 70,415,413    9    0.27 58,679,400    8    0.22
Commercial Federal Bank Banking —     —     56,303,800    9    0.21
First Data Corp Payment processing 96,677,542    2    0.36 56,256,200    10    0.21
IRET Properties Real estate investment 83,662,754    4    0.32 —     —
First National Bank of Omaha Banking 77,008,639    7    0.29 —     —
Walmart Stores, Inc Retail 72,204,178    8    0.27 —     —
Woodmen of the World Life Insurance Insurance 59,504,648    10    0.22 —     —

Total $ 818,587,432    3.08% $ 758,532,500    2.80%

Source: Douglas County Assessor.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 9
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the
year of the levy years’ tax Total collections by year

Taxes levied
for the Percentage Percentage Tax and

fiscal year Amount Interest of levy Amount Interest Amount of levy interest

Year ended December 31:
2001 $ 76,293,126    74,827,346    98.08 1,529,927    76,357,273    100.08
2002 80,533,297    78,176,656    97.07 1,061,170    79,237,826    98.39
2003 82,464,501    80,538,622    97.66 1,479,440    82,018,062    99.46
2004 84,182,258    83,107,249    98.72 1,623,451    84,730,700    100.65
2005 87,170,521    85,897,631    98.54 2,762,734    88,660,365    101.71
2006 93,260,893    91,592,309    98.21 1,572,719    93,165,028    99.90
2007 96,605,427    96,518,641    99.91 1,623,515    98,142,156    101.59
2008 109,778,828    107,891,215    98.28 2,021,690    109,912,905    100.12
2009 115,018,659    113,644,205    98.81 1,708,782    115,586,354    100.49
2010 128,854,709    126,195,724    189,878    97.94 1,873,134    243,067    128,068,858    99.39 128,501,803   

Note: Property taxes are certified in August of each year by the Douglas County Assessor. The taxes are based on cents per $100 of taxable value. Taxes become
due on January 1 of the following year and may be paid in two equal installments. Taxes become delinquent if not paid by April 1 and August 1. Delinquent taxes
bear 14% interest. The figures above include interest in every year except 2010. The City includes total interest for late payments with taxes on the
financial statements.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

Collections of subsequent
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Schedule 10
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Total City Taxable Sales

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total City Total
taxable direct

sales tax rate

Year ended December 31:
2001 $ 7,251,510,800    0.0150
2002 7,368,729,867    0.0150
2003 7,605,363,133    0.0150
2004 8,058,991,867    0.0150
2005 8,292,560,467    0.0150
2006 8,347,206,667    0.0150
2007 8,819,720,867    0.0150
2008 9,037,370,000    0.0150
2009 8,989,044,733    0.0150
2010 9,023,780,333    0.0150

Source: City of Omaha Revenue Division.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 11
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Sales Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Direct Overlapping1

City of State of Total
Omaha Nebraska tax rate

Fiscal year:
2001 0.015 0.050 0.065
2002 0.015 0.055 0.070
2003 0.015 0.055 0.070
2004 0.015 0.055 0.070
2005 0.015 0.055 0.070
2006 0.015 0.055 0.070
2007 0.015 0.055 0.070
2008 0.015 0.055 0.070
2009 0.015 0.055 0.070
2010 0.015 0.055 0.070

Note: 1 Overlapping rates are those of other governments that apply to consumers within the City of Omaha.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 12
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amounts in thousands, except per capita)

Governmental activities Business-type activities
Special

General Tax assessment Hotel Tax Sewer Sewer Total Percentage Net
obligation supported notes Revenue Notes Capital revenue supported revenue notes Revenue Capital primary of personal debt per

bonds bonds payable bonds payable leases bonds bonds bonds payable bonds leases government income1 capita1

Fiscal year:
2001 $ 449,256    13,805    1,750    —     1,531    26,135    —     —     4,765    2,772    965    26,685    527,664    3.14    $ 1,304   
2002 435,801    83,895    1,260    —     2,288    35,750    108,973    22,200    945    4,741    845    25,725    722,423    4.16    1,770   
2003 432,927    82,427    1,215    —     820    34,007    108,973    21,743    —     9,797    715    52,460    745,084    4.12    1,805   
2004 463,106    101,271    1,396    —     3,702    31,756    108,973    21,299    —     11,264    585    51,255    794,607    4.13    1,902   
2005 484,756    99,524    741    —     3,507    34,102    110,155    20,836    —     17,116    445    49,920    821,102    4.05    1,940   
2006 476,256    97,520    1,025    —     3,305    34,730    110,155    20,355    53,170    33,031    305    49,765    879,617    4.11    2,054   
2007 536,827    99,040    215    2,350    3,096    37,418    109,750    19,855    54,430    37,056    155    47,815    948,007    4.16    2,190   
2008 558,062    108,491    706    2,210    2,881    41,312    109,750    19,335    53,295    34,879    —     46,200    977,121    4.17    2,228   
2009 545,829    110,873    257    2,065    2,658    107,131    109,750    18,792    82,095    32,628    —     44,505    1,056,583    N/A N/A
2010 526,180    107,306    —     1,920    2,428    141,098    146,435    18,229    148,074    6,650    —     42,010    1,140,330    N/A N/A

Note: Details regarding the City’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
1 See Table 17, Demographic and Economic Statistics, for income and population data.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 13
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of
net debt

Less amounts Net to estimated
General available in bonded valuation

obligation debt debt per of taxable
bonds service fund Total capita1 real property2

Fiscal year:
2001 $ 449,256,472    25,917,537    423,338,935    1,047    2.28
2002 435,801,472    18,379,731    417,421,741    1,023    2.20
2003 432,926,472    11,057,002    421,869,470    1,022    2.17
2004 463,106,472    23,555,462    439,551,010    1,052    2.19
2005 484,756,472    18,892,007    465,864,465    1,101    2.17
2006 476,256,472    11,888,320    464,368,152    1,084    2.09
2007 536,826,472    16,491,540    520,334,932    1,202    2.06
2008 558,062,463    18,976,244    539,086,219    1,229    2.03
2009 545,829,194    13,489,712    532,339,482    1,171    1.97
2010 526,180,000    16,693,476    509,486,524    1,246    1.89

Note: Details regarding the City’s outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
1 Population data can be found in Table 17, Demographic and Economic Statistics.
2 Property value information can be found in Table 9, Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 14
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

December 31, 2010

Estimated Direct and
Debt percentage overlapping

Governmental units outstanding applicable1 debt to the City

Direct:
City $ 526,180,000    100.00% $ 526,180,000   

Overlapping:
Douglas County 71,770,000    74.79 53,676,783   
Omaha-Douglas Public Bldg. Commission2 40,715,000    74.79 30,450,749   
School District of Omaha3 263,122,918    85.13 223,996,540   
School District of Ralston3 29,110,000    72.25 21,031,975   
School District of Millard3 135,500,000    66.45 90,039,750   
School District of Elkhorn3 139,090,000    51.25 71,283,625   
School District No. 66 of Douglas County3 28,065,000    100.00 28,065,000   

707,372,918    518,544,422   
Total $ 1,233,552,918    $ 1,044,724,422   

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of
the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments
that is borne by the residents and business of the City. This process recognizes that,
when considering the government’s ability to issue and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden
borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply
that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping
government.
1 The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values.
Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the City’s taxable assessed value
and dividing it by the corresponding overlapping government unit’s taxable assessed value.
2 Payable from certain property tax revenues and payments to be made to it by the City of Omaha
and Douglas County under certain contractual agreements. Actual rental payments by the City for
2010 were $1,400,558. The Act authorizing issuance of bonds by the Omaha-Douglas Public Building
Commission permits them to levy a tax of $0.17 per $100 of actual valuation on all the taxable property
in Douglas County. However, although the same Act authorizes the City to levy a tax on all the taxable
property in the City, except intangible property, of $0.17 per $100 of actual valuation in excess of the
Charter limitation described under “AUTHORITY TO LEVY TAXES,” if and to the extent necessary
to make the City’s payments to the Commission, no such levy has ever been made by the City for
such purpose.
3 Residents of the City reside in one of the five school districts and pay taxes only to that
school district. These numbers represent bonds outstanding as of December 30, 2010.
4 The debt for the City of Omaha is based on the general obligation debt.

Source: The information regarding the bonds outstanding comes from the State of Nebraska Auditor of
Public Accounts Web site, reported as of December 30, 2010.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 15
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Legal Debt Margin Information

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Amount in thousands)

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Debt limit $ 627,956    649,656    665,235    679,093    752,329    779,309    885,578    927,848    947,720    941,147   
Total net debt applicable to limit 423,338    417,421    421,869    439,551    465,864    464,368    520,335    539,086    532,339    509,487   

Legal debt margin $ 204,618    232,235    243,366    239,542    286,465    314,941    365,243    388,762    415,381    431,660   

Total net debt applicable
to the limit as a
percentage of debt limit 67.42% 64.25% 63.42% 64.73% 61.92% 59.59% 58.76% 58.10% 56.17% 54.13%

Legal debt margin calculation for fiscal year 2010

Taxable property values:
Real estate $ 24,966,532   
Personal property 1,923,371   

Total assessed value 26,889,903   

Debt limit (3.5% of total assessed value) 941,147   

Debt applicable to limit:
General obligation bonds 526,180   

Less amount set aside for repayment
of general obligation debt 16,693   

Total net debt applicable to limit 509,487   
Legal debt margin $ 431,660   

Note: Under Article V. Section 5.27, Home Rule Charter of the City of Omaha, 1956 as amended, the City of Omaha’s outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed 3.5% of the actual value of taxable
real and personal property in the City. By law, the general obligation debt subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying general obligation bonds.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 16
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Pledged Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Direct Net
Gross operating available Debt service requirements 

revenue1 expenses2 revenue Principal Interest Total3 Coverage
Utility service

Sewer System charges

2001 $ 34,879,019    21,276,479    13,602,540    4,170,271    216,565    4,386,836    3.10
2002 34,518,700    23,155,281    11,363,419    4,385,710    90,900    4,476,610    2.54
2003 34,232,617    20,084,158    14,148,459    1,614,506    888,373    2,502,879    5.65
2004 32,182,282    22,072,931    10,109,351    1,487,511    1,745,792    3,233,303    3.13
2005 33,279,697    23,515,095    9,764,602    1,439,030    1,512,034    2,951,064    3.31
2006 34,759,942    24,434,713    10,325,229    2,475,854    2,558,781    5,034,635    2.05
2007 40,573,046    26,148,634    14,424,412    2,436,679    5,078,921    7,515,600    1.92
2008 41,969,126    29,381,293    12,587,833    3,832,682    5,080,556    8,913,238    1.41
2009 43,704,193    29,341,757    14,362,436    3,968,039    4,867,190    8,835,229    1.63
2010 49,783,043    32,629,953    17,153,090    4,790,945    6,246,860    11,037,805    1.55

(1) Generally, gross revenues include sewer use fees and interest on investments.
(2) Generally, direct operating expenses include sewage treatment and pumping, sewer maintenance, administrative

and general, and industrial waste control. Excluded from direct operating expense are depreciation and amortization.
(3) The numbers reflect the total annual fiscal year’s debt service requirements on all the outstanding senior and

junior revenue bonds and notes.

Net revenues
Convention Center Hotel from Manager

2004 4 $ 2,250,535    4,981,155    (2,730,620)   —     1,795,577    1,795,577    (1.52)
2005 5,197,148    1,111,614    4,085,534    —     4,280,527    4,280,527    0.95
2006 7,046,759    1,766,738    5,280,021    —     5,318,665    5,318,665    0.99
2007 8,414,989    1,835,394    6,579,595    —     5,299,307    5,299,307    1.24
2008 9,715,892    1,956,436    7,759,456    —     6,158,546    6,158,546    1.26
2009 7,065,949    1,863,396    5,202,553    —     5,192,217    5,192,217    1.00
2010 8,274,289    1,569,043    6,705,246    315,000    5,185,917    5,500,917    1.22

(1) Generally, gross revenues include net revenues from manager and interest on investments.
(2) Generally, direct operating expenses include administrative costs, taxes, and insurance

Excluded from direct operating expense are depreciation and amortization.
(3) Debt service not covered by capitalized interest.
(4) Hotel opened April 1, 2004.

Dock rental
Dodge Park Marina Fund fees

2000 $ 406,995    265,746    141,249    110,000    50,655    160,655    0.88
2001 413,882    189,002    224,880    120,000    46,155    166,155    1.35
2002 467,548    233,494    234,054    120,000    41,355    161,355    1.45
2003 407,690    240,315    167,375    130,000    36,309    166,309    1.01
2004 406,644    219,965    186,679    130,000    30,524    160,524    1.16
2005’ 424,648    277,860    146,788    140,000    24,628    164,628    0.89
2006 444,992    261,985    183,007    140,000    18,398    158,398    1.16
2007 517,829    300,929    216,900    150,000    12,038    162,038    1.34
2008 504,623    325,086    179,537    155,000    5,288    160,288    1.12
2009 498,450    450,812    47,638    —     —     —     N/A
2010 504,623    325,086    179,537    —     —     —     N/A

(1) Generally, gross revenues include net slip rental fees, concessions, and interest on investments.
(2) Generally, direct operating expenses include operating and maintenance costs.

Excluded from direct operating expense are depreciation and amortization.

Special tax revenue Redevelopment
redevelopment bonds levy

2000 $ 1,437,048    —     1,437,048    750,000    328,224    1,078,224    1.33
2001 1,608,451    —     1,608,451    780,000    750,921    1,530,921    1.05
2002 1,631,668    —     1,631,668    810,000    1,830,447    2,640,447    0.62
2003 1,698,219    —     1,698,219    855,000    1,721,344    2,576,344    0.66
2004 1,757,854    —     1,757,854    885,000    1,125,071    2,010,071    0.87
2005 1,815,671    —     1,815,671    1,125,000    2,082,762    3,207,762    0.57
2006 1,924,414    —     1,924,414    1,360,000    1,929,602    3,289,602    0.58
2007 1,987,825    —     1,987,825    1,095,000    1,768,361    2,863,361    0.69
2008 2,266,497    —     2,266,497    1,420,000    1,889,680    3,309,680    0.68
2009 2,386,049    —     2,386,049    1,730,000    2,105,945    3,835,945    0.62
2010 4,175,584    —     4,175,584    2,315,000    2,302,714    4,617,714    0.90

(1) Gross revenue include the Special Tax Redevelopment Property Tax Levy.
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Schedule 16
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Pledged Revenue Coverage

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Direct Net
Gross operating available Debt service requirements 

revenue1 expenses2 revenue Principal Interest Total3 Coverage
Utility service

Sewer System charges

Special Obligation Bonds

2003 $ 105,555,834    —     105,555,834    613,217    3,425,480    4,038,697    26.14
2004 114,508,723    —     114,508,723    596,024    3,401,295    3,997,319    28.65
2005 119,192,495    —     119,192,495    621,813    3,376,938    3,998,751    29.81
2006 116,878,412    —     116,878,412    643,542    3,352,007    3,995,549    29.25
2007 121,702,023    —     121,702,023    670,527    3,325,702    3,996,229    30.45
2008 128,318,818    —     128,318,818    699,182    2,455,815    3,154,997    40.67
2009 125,060,406    —     125,060,406    1,442,837    3,645,523    5,088,360    24.58
2010 130,252,172    —     130,252,172    1,251,492    3,589,306    4,840,798    26.91

(1) Gross revenues include state cigarette tax, TIF revenues, land sales, and sales tax.
(2) Generally, direct operating expenses include administrative costs, taxes and insurance.
(3) Sewer Revenue portion of debt service requirement reported under the Sewer Revenue Fund.

Street & Highway Tax
Allocation Bonds

2008 $ 29,459,975    —     29,459,975    97,018    140,000    237,018    124.29
2009 27,572,563    —     27,572,563    91,084    145,000    236,084    116.79
2010 27,674,538    —     27,674,538    145,000    84,503    229,503    120.58

(1) Gross revenues include state street and highway allocation taxes.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 17
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per capita
Personal personal School Unemployment

Population1 income2 income2 enrollment3 rate4

Fiscal year:
2001 404,516    $ 16,811,493    35,928    70,032    3.3
2002 408,202    17,373,867    36,852    70,695    3.9
2003 412,679    18,084,044    38,008    71,325    4.3
2004 417,702    19,221,889    39,970    72,407    4.3
2005 423,255    20,283,646    41,693    73,182    4.3
2006 428,263    21,424,933    43,599    74,288    3.4
2007 432,791    22,786,541    45,946    75,318    3.3
2008 438,646    N/A N/A 75,764    3.7
2009 454,731    N/A N/A 77,096    5.0
2010 409,850    N/A N/A 77,560    4.7

Sources: 1 U.S. Census Bureau.
2 U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau of Economic Analysis. Personal Income and Per Capita Income
are based on Douglas County figures. The figures for the year 2000 Personal Income and Per Capita
Personal Income are based on estimates.
3 Omaha Public Schools, Millard Public Schools, District 66.
4 United States Department of Labor – Bureau of Labor Statistics
The unemployment rates are for the Omaha – Council Bluffs Metropolitan Statistical Area.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 18
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Principal Employers

2010
Percentage
of total City

Employer Employees Rank employment

Alegent Health 7,500+    1    1.99%
Offutt Air Force Base 7,500+    2    1.99
Omaha Public Schools 7,500+    3    1.99
The Nebraska Medical Center 5,000+    4    1.65
Methodist Health System 5,000+    5    1.65
First Data 5,000+    6    1.65
Union Pacific Corporation 2,500+    7    0.99
University of Nebraska Medical Center 2,500+    8    0.99
West Corp. 2,500+    9    0.99
First National Bank of Omaha 2,500+    10    0.99
Mutual of Omaha 2,500+    11    0.99
Wal-Mart Stores 2,500+    12    0.99
City of Omaha 2,500+    13    0.99
ConAgra Foods 2,500+    14    0.99
Creighton University 2,500+    15    0.99

Total 60,000+    19.83%

2009
Percentage
of total City

Employer Employees Rank employment

Offutt Air Force Base 7,500+    1    1.99%
Alegent Health 7,500+    2    1.99
Omaha Public Schools 7,500+    3    1.99
Methodist Health System 5,000+    4    1.32
The Nebraska Medical Center 5,000+    5    1.32
First Data 2,500+    6    1.32
Union Pacific Corp. 2,500+    7    0.66
University of Nebraska Medical Center 2,500+    8    0.66
West Corp. 2,500+    9    0.66
First National Bank of Nebraska 2,500+    10    0.66
Mutual of Omaha 2,500+    11    0.66
ConAgra Foods 2,500+    12    0.66
Creighton University 2,500+    13    0.66
City of Omaha 2,500+    14    0.66
University of Nebraska Omaha 2,500+    15    0.66

Total 57,500+    15.87%

Note: Data not available for employers eight years prior.

Sources: Greater Omaha Economic Development Partnership – Omaha Chamber of Commerce Web site.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 19
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Function:
General government 269    255    194    178    182    165    161    170    170    176   
Public safety:

Police:
Sworn 754    756    708    745    768    772    751    796    765    787   
Civilians 183    190    182    173    180    170    161    147    143    149   

Fire:
Sworn 588    632    636    637    634    651    630    662    667    640   
Civilians 10    10    10    9    8    8    9    9    5    —    

Prosecutors 19    17    17    17    17    17    13    11    12    12   
Transportation services 265    264    251    229    229    244    249    255    262    262   
Community development 101    101    101    103    103    102    106    118    117    120   
Culture and parks 288    270    251    228    210    208    211    221    208    221   
Other public services 102    94    88    93    87    96    98    96    95    105   
Golf 32    32    31    29    25    25    23    21    22    17   
Tennis 1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1   
Dodge Park Marina 1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1   
Printing and graphics 8    7    4    4    —     7    5    5    3    3   
Sewer 59    42    45    45    45    42    57    57    57    57   
Air quality control 6    6    6    6    7    7    7    7    7    6   
Compost 7    5    6    6    6    7    7    7    7    5   
Parking facilities —     1    1    1    1    1    1    —     —     —    
Environmental engineering —     17    16    15    —     —     —     —     —     —    

Total 2,693    2,701    2,549    2,520    2,504    2,524    2,491    2,584    2,542    2,562   

Source: City of Omaha Annual Budgets.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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 Schedule 20
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Function:
General government:

Law – civic:
Civil active cases 480    400    452    416    416    350    389    161    241    245   

Public safety:
Police:

Calls for service 295,664    273,437    236,038    231,104    234,149    235,065    232,586    226,616    236,670    229,933   
Incidents of arrests 28,651    28,548    28,194    26,572    28,019    32,266    32,732    32,178    25,009    39,973   

Traffic citations: 42,326    37,844    18,875    29,257    30,611    33,238    28,834    20,120    24,409    43,186   
Moving

Fire:
Fire calls answered 2,130    2,185    1,911    1,784    1,825    1,834    1,905    1,620    1,549    1,585   
Average response time 4 min 50 sec 4 min 50 sec 4 min 34 sec 4 min 21 sec 4 min 34 sec 4 min 36 sec 4 min 34 sec 4 min 31 sec 4 min 25 sec 4 min 28 sec

Transportation services:
Street maintenance:

Asphalt repair (lane miles) 1,570    1,570    1,570    1,570    1,600    1,600    1,682    1,682    1,682    1,682   
Culture and recreation:

Library:
Number of items checked out

by public 2,503,981    2,512,701    2,425,399    2,375,781    2,500,000    2,889,557    2,855,393    3,002,144    3,131,585    3,205,734   
Recreation:

Attendance: community centers 549,000    660,285    659,182    630,964    629,618    638,835    720,778    611,081    615,000    893,737   
Community development:

Planning:
Planning board case reviews 370    268    418    422    561    390    452    233    277    218   

Golf:
Golf rounds played 230,050    214,912    207,850    214,000    206,000    195,911    189,346    182,157    181,000    157,500   

Note: The figures shown above are based on actuals.

Source: City of Omaha Annual Budget.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Schedule 21
CITY OF OMAHA, NEBRASKA

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
Function:

Public safety:
Police precincts (includes headquarters) 5    5    5    5    5    5    5    5    5    5   
Police horse patrol facility 1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1   
Emergency response and traffic facility 1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1   
Police air support facility 1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1    1   
Fire stations (includes headquarters) 23    23    23    23    23    23    23    24    24    24   
Police/fire training facility —     —     —     —     —     1    1    1    1    1   
Medic units 11    13    13    13    13    13    15    15    15    15   

Transportation services:
Lane miles of streets, striped 790    790    825    825    830    840    870    870    940    1,200   
Streetlights 49,829    50,634    50,672    51,100    51,528    52,834    53,696    54,852    56,277    57,074   

Culture and recreation:
Parks acreage 8,238    8,238    8,284    8,284    8,284    8,537    8,537    8,680    9,455    9,475   
Parks * * * * * * * * 192    225   
Swimming pools (outdoor) 17    16    17    16    16    16    16    16    14    16   
Swimming pools (indoor) 2    2    2    2    2    2    3    3    3    3   
Golf courses (public) 8    8    8    8    8    8    8    8    8    8   
Community centers 15    15    15    15    15    15    15    15    16    15   
Libraries 10    10    10    10    10    10    11    11    12    12   

Sewer:
Sewer line cleaned (linear feet) 2,345,135    2,602,317    2,527,691    2,182,938    3,171,496    3,405,072    3,383,994    3,150,344    3,383,994    3,711,211   

Note: These figures are based on actuals from the City budget.

Sources: Various City departments.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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